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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

(Unaudited)

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data (1, 2, 3, 4):
Netrevenue ......... ...,
(Loss) income from continuing operations before taxes ..
(Loss) income from continuing operations ..............
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes ......

(Loss) gain from the sale of discontinued operations, net
of taXes ...

(Loss) income before cumulative effect of accounting
changes ......... . e

Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 133, net of
BAXES ..

Cumulative effect of adopting SAB 101, net of taxes .....
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 142 ............

Net(loss)income ...........oouiiiiininnnnnnan.

Net (loss) income per share — Basic:
(Loss) income from continuing operations ..........
Income from discontinued operations, net ..........

(Loss) gain from the sale of discontinued operations,
NeL .

Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 133, net ....
Cumulative effect of adopting SAB 101, net .........
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 142 ........

Net (loss)income ........... ... iiiiiiennon..

Net (loss) income per share — Diluted:
(Loss) income from continuing operations ..........
Income from discontinued operations, net ..........

(Loss) gain from the sale of discontinued operations,
NEL

Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 133, net .. ..
Cumulative effect of adopting SAB 101, net .........
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 142 ........

Net (loss)income ........... ... iiiiiiiinnnnnn..

Weighted average shares used in computing basic net
(loss) income pershare ..................ccvuiun...

Weighted average shares used in computing diluted net
(loss) income pershare .............. ... . ... ......

Years Ended October 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(in millions, except per share data)

$ 6,066 $ 6,010 $8,396 $9,361 $6,830

$ (690) $(1,647) $ (477) $1,018 $ 463

$(1,790) $(1,022) $ (406) $ 672 $ 306

— — 6 85 206

- (10) 646 - —

(1,790) (1,032) 246 757 512

— — (25) — —

— — 47 — —

(268) - — - —

$(2,058) $(1,032) $ 174 $ 757 $ 512

$ (3.78) $ (2.20) $(0.89) $ 1.49 $ 0.81

— — 0.01 0.19 0.564

—  (0.02) 141 — —

- —  (0.05) - —

- —  (0.10) - —

(0.57) - — - —

$ (4.35) $ (2.22) $ 0.38 $ 1.68 $ 1.35

$ (3.78) $ (2.20) $(0.89) $ 1.48 $ 0.81

— — 0.01 0.18 0.54

—  (0.02) 141 - -

- —  (0.05) - —

- —  (0.10) - —

(0.57) - - - -

$ (4.35) $ (2.22) $ 0.38 $ 1.66 $ 1.35

473 465 458 449 380

473 465 458 455 380
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October 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(in millions)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data (1, 4):

Working capital . .......... .o $1,983 $2,899 $2,797 $2476 $1,275
TOtal ASSELS . ..ottt ettt $6,297 $8,203 $7,986 $8,330 $5,364
Senior convertible debentures ........................ $1,150 $1,1560 $ — $ — $ —
Stockholders’ equity .............oviiiiiiiiiiiniin.. $2,824 $4,627 $5,669 $5,265 $3,382
(1) Consolidated financial data and notes for all periods present our healthcare solutions business

2

3

(€]

as a discontinued operation. See Note 6, “Discontinued Operations” to the consolidated financial
statements in Item 15 of this report.

Loss from continuing operations for the year ended October 31, 2003 includes a pre-tax
restructuring charge of $372 million, including a pre-tax asset impairment charge of $15 million,
and a non-cash charge recorded during the third quarter of 2003 to establish a tax valuation
allowance of $1.4 billion. The $1.4 billion included $0.4 billion of tax benefits recorded during
the first six months of 2003 resulting in approximately $1.0 billion net tax provision recorded
within provision for taxes for the year ended October 31, 2003; the valuation allowance
essentially eliminated our net deferred tax assets. Loss from continuing operations for the year
ended October 31, 2002 includes a pre-tax restructuring charge of $474 million including a
pre-tax asset impairment charge of $163 million. Loss from continuing operations for the year
ended October 31, 2001 includes a pre-tax gain of $269 million relating to the sale of surplus
land in California, inventory charges of $460 million, a pre-tax restructuring charge of

$154 million primarily relating to severance expenses and a pre-tax asset impairment charge of
$74 million for our customer support software. Income from continuing operations for the year
ended October 31, 1999 includes a pre-tax asset impairment charge of $51 million. See Note 14,
“Restructuring and Asset Impairment,” to the consolidated financial statements in Item 15 of
this report.

Consolidated statement of operations data for the year ended October 31, 2001 and 2000
includes the impact of the sale of our portfolio of lease assets to CIT Group Inc. (formerly known
as Tyco Capital Corporation). In 2001, net proceeds from this sales transaction were

$287 million and we recognized $254 million in net revenue from continuing operations and
$131 million in cost of products from continuing operations. In 2000, net proceeds from this
sales transaction were $234 million and we recognized $197 million in net revenue from
continuing operations and $83 million in cost of products from continuing operations. See

Note 7, “Acquisitions and Sale of Assets” to the consolidated financial statements in Item 15 of
this report.

The historical financial data for 1999 was carved out from the historical financial information of
Hewlett-Packard using the historical results of operations and historical bases of the assets and
liabilities of the Hewlett-Packard businesses that comprise our company. We began
accumulating retained income on November 1, 1999. Therefore, the historical financial data
presented for 1999 is not indicative of our future performance and does not reflect what our
consolidated financial position and results of operations would have been had we operated as a
separate, stand-alone entity during those periods.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. This report
contains forward-looking statements including, without limitation, statements regarding trends,
cyclicality, seasonality and growth in the markets we sell into, our strategic direction, expenditures
in research and development, contracts and remediation, our future effective tax rate, new product
introductions, changes to our manufacturing processes, our liquidity position, our ability to generate
cash from continuing operations, our expected growth, the potential impact of our adopting new
accounting pronouncements, our financial results, the impact of our enterprise resource planning
systems implementation, our obligations under our retirement and post-retirement benefit plans,
savings from our restructuring programs and the existence or length of an economic recovery that
involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ from the results contemplated by
these forward-looking statements due to certain factors, including those discussed in Item 7 and
elsewhere in this report.

Overview

Agilent Technologies, Inc. (“we”, “Agilent” or the “company”), incorporated in Delaware in May
1999, is a global diversified technology company that provides enabling solutions to markets within
the communications, electronics, life sciences and chemical analysis industries. Prior to our initial
public offering of 15.9 percent of our stock in November 1999, we were a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hewlett-Packard Company (“Hewlett-Packard”). Hewlett-Packard distributed the remaining
84.1 percent of our stock to its stockholders on June 2, 2000 in the form of a stock dividend.

On August 1, 2001 we completed the sale of our healthcare solutions business to Koninklijke
Philips Electronics, N.V. The results of the healthcare solutions business are presented as
discontinued operations for all periods in the consolidated financial statements included herein. See
Note 6, “Discontinued Operations” in Item 15 of this report.

Our fiscal year end is October 31. Unless otherwise stated, all years and dates refer to our fiscal year.

Reclassifications

Amounts in the consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended October 31,
2002 and October 31, 2001 have been reclassified to conform to the presentation used in 2003.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the U.S. requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Management
bases its estimates on historical experience and various other assumptions believed to be
reasonable. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events
and actions that may impact the company in the future, actual results may be different from the
estimates. Our critical accounting policies are those that affect our financial statements materially
and involve difficult, subjective or complex judgments by management. Those policies are revenue
recognition, restructuring and asset impairment charges, inventory valuation, retirement and post
retirement plan assumptions, valuation of long-lived assets and accounting for income taxes.

Revenue recognition. We enter into agreements to sell products (hardware and/or
software), services, and other arrangements (multiple element arrangements) that include
combinations of products and services. Revenue from product sales, net of trade discounts and
allowances, is recognized provided that persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has

3
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occurred, the price is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. Delivery is
considered to have occurred when title and risk of loss have transferred to the customer. Revenue is
reduced for estimated product returns and distributor price protection, when appropriate. For sales
that include customer-specified acceptance criteria, revenue is recognized after the acceptance
criteria have been met. For products that include installation, if the installation meets the criteria to
be considered a separate element, product revenue is recognized upon delivery, and recognition of
installation revenue is delayed until the installation is complete. Otherwise, neither the product nor
the installation revenue is recognized until the installation is complete. Revenue from services is
deferred and recognized over the contractual period or as services are rendered and accepted by the
customer. When arrangements include multiple elements, we use objective evidence of fair value to
allocate revenue to the elements and recognize revenue when the criteria for revenue recognition
have been met for each element. The amount of product revenue recognized is affected by our
judgments as to whether an arrangement includes multiple elements and if so, whether vendor-
specific objective evidence of fair value exists for those elements. Changes to the elements in an
arrangement and the ability to establish vendor-specific objective evidence for those elements could
affect the timing of the revenue recognition. Most of these conditions are subjective and actual
results could vary from the estimated outcome, requiring future adjustments to revenue.

Restructuring and asset impairment charges. We recognize a liability for restructuring
costs at fair value only when the liability is incurred. The three main components of our
restructuring plans are related to workforce reductions, the consolidation of excess facilities and
asset impairments, primarily property, plant and equipment. Workforce-related charges are accrued
when it is determined that a liability has been incurred which is generally after individuals have
been notified of their termination dates and expected severance payments. Plans to consolidate
excess facilities result in charges for lease termination fees and future commitments to pay lease
charges, net of estimated future sublease income. We recognize charges for consolidation of excess
facilities when we have vacated the premises. Asset impairment charges are based on an estimate of
the amounts and timing of future cash flows related to the expected future remaining use and
ultimate sale or disposal of buildings and equipment. These estimates were derived using the
guidance of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS No. 144”), Staff Accounting Bulletin 100,
“Restructuring and Impairment Charges” (“SAB 100”), Emerging Issues Task Force 94-3, “Liability
Recognition for Costs to Exit an Activity (Including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring)”
(“EITF 94-3”) and lastly, SFAS No. 146 “Accounting for Exit or Disposal Activities” (“SFAS No. 146")
which is effective for exit and disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. If the amounts
and timing of cash flows from restructuring activities are significantly different from what we have
estimated, the actual amount of restructuring and asset impairment charges could be materially
different, either higher or lower, than those we have recorded.

Inventory Valuation. We assess the valuation of our inventory on a quarterly basis and
periodically write down the value for estimated excess and obsolete inventory based upon estimates
about future demand and actual usage. Such estimates are difficult to make under current economic
conditions. The excess balance determined by this analysis becomes the basis for our excess
inventory charge. Our marketing department plays a key role in our excess inventory review process
by providing updated sales forecasts, managing product rollovers and working with manufacturing
to maximize recovery of excess inventory. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those
projected by management, additional write-downs may be required. If actual market conditions are
more favorable than anticipated, inventory previously written down may be sold, resulting in lower
cost of sales and higher income from operations than expected in that period.

Retirement and post retirement plan assumptions. Retirement and post retirement
benefit plans are a significant cost of doing business and yet represent obligations that will be

ultimately settled far in the future and therefore are subject to estimation. Pension accounting is
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intended to reflect the recognition of future benefit costs over the employee’s approximate service
period based on the terms of the plans and the investment and funding decisions made by us. We are
required to make assumptions regarding such variables as the expected long-term rate of return on
assets and the discount rate applied to determine service cost and interest cost to arrive at pension
income or expense for the year. As of October 31, 2003, the expected long-term rate of return in the
U.S. was 8.75 percent, and ranged from 5.0 to 7.50 percent for our plans outside the U.S. We have
analyzed the rates of return on assets used and determined that these rates are reasonable based on
the plans’ historical performance relative to the overall markets in the countries where the plans are
effective. Management will continue to assess the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets
assumption for each plan based on relevant market conditions as prescribed by accounting
principles generally accepted in the U.S. and will make adjustments to the assumptions as
appropriate. Discount rate assumptions were based on the prevailing market long-term interest rates
at the measurement date. We are also required to make assumptions for the long-term health care
cost trend rates for our post retirement benefit plans. If any of our assumptions were to change, our
benefit plan expenses would also change. A one percent decrease in the estimated return on plan
assets would result in increased pension expense of $5 million for 2004 in the U.S. and $9 million for
2004 for all plans outside the U.S. Retirement and post retirement benefit plan expense is allocated
to cost of sales, research and development and selling, general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated statement of operations. We incurred expenses of $187 million in 2003, $122 million in
2002 and $81 million in 2001 for our retirement and post retirement plans. We expect expenses of
approximately $144 million in 2004 for our retirement and post retirement plans.

Workforce-related events such as restructuring cause curtailment and settlement gains or losses
when they have a material impact on the average future working lifetime or total number of
participants in our retirement and postretirement plans. Our restructuring programs have resulted
in material changes to our plan demographics in the U.S. and several other countries in 2002 and
2003. The curtailment and settlement gains and losses related to each event are separately identified
in Note 15, “Retirement Plans and Post Retirement Benefits” to the consolidated financial statements
in Item 15 of this report.

Valuation of long-lived assets. We have assessed the recoverability of long-lived assets,
including intangible assets, by determining whether the carrying value of such assets will be
recovered through undiscounted future cash flows according to the guidance of SFAS No. 144 and
discounted future cash flows according to the guidance of SFAS No. 142 “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” (“SFAS No. 142”™). The process of evaluating the potential impairment of goodwill
and other intangibles is highly subjective and requires significant judgment. We estimate expected
future cash flows of our various businesses which operate in a number of markets and geographical
regions. We then determine the carrying value of these businesses. We exercise judgment in
assigning and allocating certain assets and liabilities to these businesses. We make these estimates
consistent with the way we forecast, plan and run our businesses. We then compare the carrying
value including goodwill and other intangibles to the discounted future cash flows. If the total of
future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the assets, we recognize an impairment loss
based on the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of the assets. Estimates of the future
cash flows associated with the assets are critical to these assessments. Changes in these estimates
based on changed economic conditions or business strategies could result in material impairment
charges in future periods. We performed the required transitional impairment test upon our
adoption of SFAS No. 142 in the first quarter of 2003 and wrote-off $268 million of goodwill.

The process of evaluating the potential impairment of long-lived assets such as our property
plant and equipment according to SFAS No. 144 is also highly subjective and requires significant
judgment. In order to estimate the fair value of long-lived assets, we typically make various
assumptions about the future prospects for the business that the asset relates to, consider market
factors specific to that business and estimate future cash flows to be generated by that business.

5
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Based on these assumptions and estimates, we determine whether we need to take an impairment
charge to reduce the value of the asset stated on our balance sheet to reflect its estimated fair value.
Assumptions and estimates about future values and remaining useful lives are complex and often
subjective. They can be affected by a variety of factors, including external factors such as the real
estate market, industry and economic trends, and internal factors such as changes in our business
strategy and our internal forecasts. Although we believe the assumptions and estimates we have
made in the past have been reasonable and appropriate, changes in assumptions and estimates could
materially impact our reported financial results.

Accounting for Income Taxes. Significant management judgment is required in
determining our provision for income taxes and in determining whether deferred tax assets will be
realized in full or in part. When it is more likely than not that all or some portion of specific deferred
tax assets such as net operating losses or foreign tax credit carryforwards will not be realized, a
valuation allowance must be established for the amount of the deferred tax assets that are
determined not to be realizable. Realization is based on our ability to generate sufficient future
taxable income. During the third quarter of 2003, we recorded a non-cash charge to establish a tax
valuation allowance of $1.4 billion, which included approximately $0.4 billion of tax benefits
recorded during the first six months of 2003, resulting in approximately $1.0 billion net tax
provision recorded within provision for taxes for 2003; the valuation allowance essentially
eliminated our net deferred tax assets. The valuation allowance was determined in accordance with
the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109 “Accounting for Income
Taxes” (“SFAS No. 109”), which requires an assessment of both positive and negative evidence when
determining whether it is more likely than not that deferred tax assets will be recoverable in future
periods; such assessment is required on a jurisdiction by jurisdiction basis. Cumulative losses
incurred in the U.S. and the U.K. in recent years represented sufficient negative evidence under
SFAS No. 109 to require a full valuation allowance in these jurisdictions. We intend to maintain a
full valuation allowance until sufficient positive evidence exists to support its reversal. We expect
future pre-tax income in fiscal 2004 will be recognized at a lower rate because future income taxes in
the U.S. and the U.K will be offset against reversals of the valuation allowance to effectively
eliminate any tax charge in those jurisdictions. Additionally, to the degree we have pre-tax losses in
the U.S. and U.K., no tax benefit will be recognized until such time as the valuation allowance is
reversed. Income taxes will continue to be recorded for various jurisdictions subject to the need for
further valuation allowance in those jurisdictions.

We have not provided for U.S. federal income and foreign withholding taxes on a portion of our
non-U.S. subsidiaries undistributed income as of October 31, 2003 because we intend to reinvest
such income indefinitely. If management decides to remit this income to the U.S. in a future period,
our provision for income taxes may increase materially in that period.

We are subject to ongoing tax examinations of our tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service
and other tax authorities in various jurisdictions. We regularly assess the likelihood of adverse
outcomes resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of our provision for income
taxes.

Cyclical and Seasonal Business and General Economic Conditions

The sales of our products and services are dependent, to a large degree, on customers whose
industries are subject to cyclical trends in the demand for their products. Shifts in the
semiconductor market, electronics industry, computer industry and telecommunications markets, as
well as rapidly shifting global economic conditions, have had and will have significant impacts on
our businesses.

In those industry segments where we are a capital equipment provider, our revenue is driven by
the capital expenditure budgets and spending patterns of our customers, who often delay or
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accelerate purchases in reaction to changes in their businesses and in the economy. We expect some
portions of our businesses to remain cyclical in the foreseeable future. Given that a high proportion
of our costs are fixed, variability in revenue as a result of these business cycles could
disproportionately affect our quarterly and annual results. However, we are moving towards a more
variable cost structure through the use of outsourcing partners and instituting variable pay
programs for our employees in order to reduce the proportion of our costs that have typically been
fixed in nature.

Additionally, we estimate that approximately 40 percent of our revenue is generated either
directly from sales of components incorporated in consumer electronics, such as cell phones,
cameras, games, personal computers, and printers, or indirectly from sales of test and measurement
equipment used to design or manufacture and test such components or products. Sales of these
consumer electronic products are concentrated during the holiday season. This seasonal pattern
means that we typically experience higher revenues and orders during our fourth quarter as
manufacturers ramp up production and then decline in our first quarter. We also see larger volumes
of business in our fourth quarter for products that we sell to the aerospace and defense industry and
the U.S. government and generally experience reduced volumes during our first quarter.

In 2001, an economic downturn reduced consumer and capital spending in most of the markets
that we serve. This economic downturn continued through 2002 and has stabilized throughout 2003.
More recently we have seen signs of an economic upturn, although it is uncertain as to how strongly
this may be sustained in the markets we serve over the next year. Orders and revenue in our
semiconductor products, automated test and life sciences business segments during 2003 increased
compared to 2002. However, this is offset by the continued decline in the wireline
telecommunication and general purpose test markets within our test and measurement group and a
recovery in these markets is not expected for some time. In 2003, total net revenue was flat
compared to 2002, but decreased 28 percent from 2001. Orders followed the same trend. In 2003,
orders were flat compared to 2002, but decreased by six percent from 2001.

Restructuring and Asset Impairment
Summary

We currently have three restructuring plans — one initiated in the fourth quarter of 2001 (the
“2001 Plan”), a second initiated in the fourth quarter of 2002 (the “2002 Plan”), and a third initiated
in the first quarter of 2003 (the “2003 Plan”) after it became clear that the actions taken in fiscal
2001 and fiscal 2002 would not be sufficient to return the company to profitability.

All of our plans were designed to reduce costs and expenses in order to return the company to
profitability. As of the end of 2003, we have reduced our workforce by approximately 15,000 people
(approximately 13,400 from involuntary terminations and approximately 1,600 from net attrition) to
29,000 employees.

Our plans to consolidate excess facilities resulted in charges for lease termination fees and
losses anticipated from sub-lease agreements. We have exited, or plan to exit in the near future,
more than 110 production, support and sales facilities in the U.S., Korea, Japan, U.K. and other
countries, representing more than 4.3 million square feet, or about 22 percent of our worldwide
property. As of October 31, 2003, we had vacated approximately 90 percent of this space, however
we will continue to make lease payments on some of this space over the next five years. We lease
most of these buildings from third parties, and the closures impacted all segments. In most cases, we
are exiting administrative office buildings housing sales and administrative employees. However, a
small number of production facilities were closed as a result of our plans to consolidate
manufacturing into fewer sites.
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Actions for all plans have been focused on segments that were impacted most severely by the
market downturn — primarily our test and measurement and semiconductor products groups — but
actions have also been taken to reduce the costs associated with support services such as finance,
information technology, workplace services and to a lesser extent our other business segments. Cost
reductions were initiated by moving manufacturing and some of our global shared services
operations sites to lower cost regions, reducing the number of properties, particularly sales and
administrative sites, and by reducing our workforce through involuntary terminations and selected
outsourcing of manufacturing and administrative functions. Our strategy is to move towards a more
variable operating cost structure.

We have executed all key actions under our 2001 Plan, although there may be changes in
estimates for the consolidation of excess facilities due to changes in market conditions from those
originally expected at the time the charges were recorded. Our 2002 Plan is substantially complete.
We are continuing to see the estimated savings of $350 million per quarter ($300 million from the
2001 Plan and $50 million from the 2002 Plan) that was initially projected. The 2003 Plan is still
being implemented, however, we have already begun to realize the expected $125 million reduction
in quarterly operational costs. We expect to incur further restructuring costs and increase the
savings related to the 2003 Plan in the first half of 2004.

The 2001 Plan

As a result of the economic downturn we announced a plan and reduced our workforce by
approximately 8,400 jobs and reduced costs across all functions, primarily manufacturing and
selling, general and administrative costs, including sales and marketing. Research and development
activities were terminated on some product development initiatives, none of which were
individually or in total significant to our future revenues or profitability. We also took actions to
reduce the number of employees at production facilities that had experienced declining demand,
such as those making equipment for the long-haul wireline business. This plan was designed to
reduce costs across almost all of our administrative and support services, including sales and
marketing, and to focus our production activities on those products that we believed would return
us to profitability, such as those in life sciences, semiconductor test and wireless
telecommunications. Our plan impacted the test and measurement group and the semiconductor
products group and had little direct impact on the automated test and life sciences and chemical
analysis groups except as the plan related to support services reductions across all of our
businesses. We reduced production capacity dramatically for communications test product lines and
for product lines in networking, especially long-haul networks. We also reduced production capacity
for some personal systems, general purpose and semiconductor test product lines.

The three main components of the 2001 Plan related to workforce reductions, consolidation of
excess facilities and impairments of property, plant and equipment. The impairments of machinery
and equipment in our production facilities that we have closed or scaled back have been recognized.
We have executed all key actions under this plan, however we will continue to make lease payments
over the next five years.

Asset impairment charges relate to fixed assets and were determined using estimates of the
expected future cash flows generated from those assets. Impairments were recorded for machinery
and equipment in production facilities that we were closing or scaling back, such as for the long-haul
wireline business and for leasehold improvements in leased facilities that we planned to exit. One
production facility in Kobe, Japan accounted for approximately $60 million of the $129 million of
asset impairment charges in 2002. In order to determine the amount of the impairment, under the
held-for-use model in accordance with SFAS No. 121, we estimated the cash flows that would result
from our continued use of the building until we expect to vacate it and also estimated the sales
proceeds that we expected to be able to realize. The resulting impairment was approximately 80
percent of the net book value of the facility, primarily due to the decline in the local property market.
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In 2002, we also took a $53 million charge for exiting a number of leased facilities. During 2003
we recorded an additional $15 million in net charges and adjustments due primarily to reductions in
our estimate of expected sublease income. Due to the length of some of the lease terms and the
uncertainty of the real estate market, we expect to make periodic adjustments to the accrual balance
to reflect changes in our estimates, and to reflect actual events as they occur.

The cost of the 2001 Plan through October 31, 2003 was $526 million; $154 million in 2001, $357
million in 2002 and $15 million in 2003.

A summary of restructuring activity for the 2001 Plan through October 31, 2003 is shown in the
table below:

Impairment of

Consolidation Assets,
Workforce of Excess Property, Plant
Reduction Facilities and Equipment Total
(in millions)

Beginning balance at July 31, 2001 . ... $ — $ — $ - $ -
Totalcharge ........................ 117 20 17 154
Cashpayments ...................... __(65) = — (65)
Ending balance at October 31, 2001 .. .. 52 20 17 89
Totalcharge ........................ 175 53 129 357
Asset impairment ................... — — (146) (146)
Cashpayments ...................... _(210) _(10) — (220)
Ending balance at October 31, 2002 . . .. 17 63 — 80
Total charge and adjustment (a) ....... — 24 (©) 15
Asset impairment ................... — — 9 9
Cashpayments ...................... . an _(25) — 42)
Ending balance at October 31, 2003 . . .. $ - $ 62 $ - $ 62

(a) Represents primarily changes in estimates relating to consolidation of excess facilities arising
from a decline in real estate market conditions and an adjustment recorded within property,
plant and equipment, net.

The 2002 Plan

On August 19, 2002, we announced our intention to further reduce our workforce by 2,500 to
achieve a quarterly operating cost structure of approximately $1.6 billion. This plan primarily
affected the manufacturing and field operations serving the wireline markets that are components of
our test and measurement group as well as information technology support services.

As part of the 2002 Plan we have reduced our workforce by approximately 2,400 as of
October 31, 2003. Similar to the 2001 Plan, this reduction impacted all regions, all expense
categories and most of our segments particularly our test and measurement and semiconductor
products segments. We continued to reduce the number of employees at production facilities that
experienced declining demand, outsourced selective operations and also reduced the number of
employees that provided information technology support services as we streamlined our operations
with the implementation of our new information systems. We expect that the 2002 Plan will be
completed by the first quarter of 2004.

We have incurred total asset impairment charges of $39 million. Asset impairment charges of
$34 million recognized in 2002 relate to machinery and equipment, primarily owned by the
semiconductor products group in Singapore. The equipment had been purchased in support of
communications research but as a result of our restructuring plans we have decided to sell the

9
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equipment and conduct the research using existing equipment in the U.S. Asset impairment charges
of $5 million recognized in 2003 primarily related to semiconductor products machinery and
equipment that will be abandoned. The equipment had been purchased to support a manufacturing
facility whose operations will be moved as a result of our plans to consolidate our excess facilities.
However, no material charges for the consolidation of excess facilities have yet occurred under the
2002 Plan.

The cost of the 2002 Plan through October 31, 2003 was $166 million; $117 million in 2002 and
$49 million in 2003.

A summary of restructuring activity for the 2002 Plan through October 31, 2003 is shown in the
table below:

Impairment of
Assets,
Workforce Property, Plant
Reduction and Equipment Total

(in millions)

Beginning balance at July 31,2002 ........... $ — $ — $ —
Total charge .............. ... ... ........ 83 34 117
Asset impairment .............. ... ... ..... — 34 34
Cashpayments ............... ... ..., (15) — (15)
Ending balance at October 31, 2002 .......... 68 — 68
Total charge ............... ... . ... ........ 44 5 49
Assetimpairment ......................... — (5) )
Cashpayments ............... ... ..., (98) — 98)
Ending balance at October 31, 2003 .......... $ 14 $ — $ 14
The 2003 Plan

On February 21, 2003, we announced our intention to further reduce our quarterly operational
costs to a level of $1.45 billion as part of the 2003 Plan. In order to accomplish this, we announced a
workforce reduction of approximately 4,000 jobs in addition to previously-announced cuts.

As part of the 2003 Plan we have reduced our workforce by approximately 4,300 as of
October 31, 2003, primarily in our U.S. operations. Reductions were made across all businesses with
significant reductions in our test and measurement and semiconductor products groups. We
continued to reduce the number of employees at production facilities and employees that provide
support services across all businesses. We have also reduced the number of research and
development employees as we continue to look for opportunities to align our business with available
markets.

As we execute on all of our plans, we have continued to consolidate excess facilities. We have
and plan to exit administrative office buildings, research and development facilities, and move
manufacturing to lower cost regions. Our plan to consolidate excess facilities resulted in increased
charges of $13 million for lease termination fees and losses anticipated from sub-lease agreements
primarily located in Europe.

As part of the 2003 Plan, we incurred asset impairment charges of $57 million for fixed assets
primarily owned by our semiconductor products segment. Impairments were recorded for
machinery, equipment and buildings used in research and development or production that are
impacted by our plans to consolidate excess facilities or are no longer needed due to over capacity.
During the third quarter, we closed a production facility in the U.K. and have substantially vacated
the remaining buildings on that site except for a minor portion of the facility, which will be used for
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research and development. We are progressing as planned through our transition towards
reestablishing production in Singapore and have entered into an agreement to sell the site to a third
party. In accordance with SFAS No. 144, we measured the assets at their fair value based on the
sales agreement less the cost to sell. We recorded an impairment of $27 million as a result of the
significant decline in the U.K. property market.

Although we are still implementing the 2003 Plan, we have realized the expected $125 million
reduction in quarterly operational costs from the reductions in salary and benefit expenses due to
the workforce reductions under the 2003 Plan. As of October 31, 2003, the cost of the 2003 Plan was
$308 million.

A summary of restructuring activity for the 2003 Plan through October 31, 2003 is shown in the
table below:

Impairment of
Assets,
Workforce Consolidation of Property, Plant
Reduction Excess Facilities and Equipment Total

(in millions)

Total charge ...................... $ 238 $13 $ 57 $ 308
Asset impairments ................ — — (B7) B7
Cashpayments .................... (234) ﬁ) — (238)
Ending balance at October 31,

2003 ... $ 4 $_9 $ — $ 13

Summary information for combined plans

The restructuring accrual for all plans, which totaled $89 million as of October 31, 2003 and
$148 million as of October 31, 2002 (for the 2001 and 2002 Plans only), is recorded in other accrued
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet and represents estimated future cash outlays. Lease
payments are expected over the next 5 years. Other payments, primarily severance, are expected
within a one-year period. We have met our expected savings goals for all of our restructuring plans.
Future charges should be primarily associated with our 2003 Plan.

As our restructuring plans were all intended to return Agilent to profitability given predicted
revenue amounts, we are unable to estimate the amount and timing of future restructuring charges.

A summary of the statement of operations impact of the charges resulting from the all of the
restructuring plans is shown below.

Years Ended October 31,
2003 2002 2001
(in millions)

Cost of products and services ...............c.cooueuun... $111  $210 $ 79
Research and development ............................ 66 56 17
Selling, general and administrative ..................... 195 208 58
Total restructuring and asset impairment charges ........ $372  $474 $154

Other asset impairment charges

In July 2003, we recorded an impairment charge pursuant to SFAS No. 144 of approximately
$10 million for intangible assets (representing developed technology and customer relationships) in
our test and measurement business as a result of a decline in the projected cash flows. The
impairment charge has been recorded in cost of sales and selling, general, and administrative in the
consolidated statement of operations.
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In June 2001, we recorded a $74 million asset impairment charge with respect to our decision to
cancel the development of a software system for our customer support activities. We entered into an
agreement with Hewlett-Packard to extend our use of their legacy customer support systems in place
of the one that we were developing. In 2002, we began to develop a new Customer Relationship
Management (“CRM”) system independent from Hewlett-Packard.

We also incurred asset impairment charges primarily to write down investments that we hold
on a cost basis to their fair value. Impairment charges related to these asset impairments were
$15 million in 2003, $24 million in 2002 and $8 million in 2001. These impairment charges were
recorded in cost and expenses and other income (expense), net in the consolidated statement of
operations.

New Accounting Pronouncements
Adoption of New Pronouncements

On November 1, 2002, we adopted SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets,” (“SFAS No. 144”), which amends existing accounting guidance on asset
impairment and provides a single accounting model for long-lived assets to be disposed of. Among
other provisions, the standard changes the criteria for classifying an asset as held-for-sale. The
standard also broadens the scope of businesses to be disposed of that qualify for reporting as
discontinued operations, and changes the timing of recognizing losses on such operations. The initial
impact of adopting SFAS No. 144 was not material to our consolidated financial statements.

On January 1, 2003, we adopted SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or
Disposal Activities,” (“SFAS No. 146”), which nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) 94-3,
“Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an
Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring)”. SFAS No. 146 requires that a liability
be recognized for restructuring costs only when the liability is incurred, that is, when it meets the
definition of a liability in the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASB’s”) conceptual
framework. SFAS No. 146 also establishes fair value as the objective for initial measurement of
liabilities related to exit or disposal activities and is effective for exit or disposal activities that are
initiated after December 31, 2002. The adoption of SFAS No. 146 did not have a material impact on
our results of operations, financial position or cash flows, although it has impacted the timing of
recognition of costs associated with restructuring activities in our 2003 Plan. (See Note 14,
“Restructuring and Asset Impairment” of this report.)

On January 1, 2003, we adopted FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others”
(“FIN 45”). FIN 45 requires that upon issuance of a guarantee, we must disclose and may be required
to recognize a liability for the fair value of the obligation we assume under that guarantee. The initial
recognition and measurement requirement of FIN 45 is effective for guarantees issued or modified
after December 31, 2002. As of October 31, 2003, there were no material guarantees issued or
modified by us after December 31, 2002. The disclosure requirements of FIN 45, applicable to our
product warranty liability and certain guarantees issued before December 31, 2002, were effective
for our first quarter report and all subsequent quarterly and annual reports. As of October 31, 2003
and October 31, 2002, our product warranty liability was $71 million and $72 million (see Note 13,
“Guarantees” of this report).

On February 1, 2003, we adopted FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities” (“FIN 46”). FIN 46 addresses consolidation by business enterprises of variable
interest entities. Under this interpretation, certain entities known as Variable Interest Entities
(“VIEs”) must be consolidated by the primary beneficiary of the entity. The primary beneficiary is
generally defined as having the majority of the risks and rewards arising from the VIE. For VIEs in
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which a significant (but not majority) variable interest is held, certain disclosures are required. We
have not entered into any arrangements or made any investments which qualify as a VIE in the
period from January 31, 2003 to October 31, 2003. Effective August 1, 2003, we have also applied the
accounting and disclosure rules set forth in FIN 46 for VIEs acquired before January 31, 2003. The
adoption of FIN 46 did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

On February 1, 2003, we adopted SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation —
Transition and Disclosure — an amendment of SFAS No. 123” (“SFAS No. 148”). This statement
amends SFAS No. 123, to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair
value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, this
statement amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require disclosures in both
annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. The adoption of SFAS No. 148
did not have any impact to our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows as
our adoption of this standard involved disclosures only; see Note 2, “Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies” and Note 5, “Stock-Based Compensation” of this report for those disclosures.

On July 1, 2003, we adopted SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS No. 149”). SFAS No. 149 amends and clarifies
accounting for derivative instruments including certain derivative instruments embedded in other
contracts and hedging activities under SFAS No. 133. The adoption of SFAS No. 149 did not have any
impact to our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

On August 1, 2003, we adopted EITF Issue 00-21, “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple
Deliverables,” (“EITF 00-21”), which requires companies to determine whether an arrangement
involving multiple deliverables contains more than one unit of accounting. We have applied the
provisions of EITF 00-21 for sales arrangements entered into after August 1, 2003. In applying EITF
00-21, revenue arrangements with multiple deliverables should be divided into separate units of
accounting if the deliverables in the arrangement meet certain criteria. Arrangement consideration
should be allocated among the separate units of accounting based on their relative fair values. The
adoption of EITF 00-21 did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results
of operations or cash flows.

On August 1, 2003, we adopted SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments
with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity” (“SFAS No. 150”). SFAS No. 150 establishes
standards for the classification and measurement of financial instruments with characteristics of
both liabilities and equity. The adoption of SFAS No. 150 did not have a material impact on our
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Acquisitions

On January 5, 2001, we acquired Objective Systems Integrators, Inc. (“OSI”) for approximately
$716 million. Of this total, $690 million was cash and the remainder represents the fair value of
options granted. Using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with Accounting Principles
Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 16, “Business Combinations” (“APB No. 16”), the purchase price was
allocated to tangible and intangible assets including goodwill. The original goodwill balance of $593
million was being amortized over three years. At the time of acquisition, OSI was a leading provider
of next-generation operations-support-system software for communications service providers and
has become part of our test and measurement business. The net book value of goodwill associated
with this acquisition at October 31, 2002 was $234 million. In the first quarter of 2003, we
implemented SFAS No. 142 and wrote-off this goodwill. See Note 12, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets”.
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In addition to the OSI acquisition, we acquired several other companies during 2002 and 2001,
which were not significant to our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
These acquisitions were accounted for under the purchase method of accounting as defined in APB
No. 16 or SFAS No. 141 depending on the date of acquisition. The results of operations of the
acquired companies were included prospectively from the date of acquisition and the acquisition
cost was allocated to the acquired tangible assets and liabilities and identifiable intangible assets
based on fair values at the date of acquisition. Residual amounts were recorded as goodwill. In-
process research and development write-offs have been insignificant.

Unaudited pro forma statement of operations information has not been presented because the
effects of these acquisitions were not material on either an individual or an aggregated basis.

Discontinued Operations

On August 1, 2001, we completed the sale of our healthcare solutions business to Koninklijke
Philips Electronics, N.V. (“Philips”) pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement for a total purchase
price of $1.7 billion. Philips paid initial proceeds of $1.6 billion to us on August 1, 2001, with further
payments following pursuant to the terms of the Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of
November 17, 2000, as amended and supplemented by the Amendment and Supplemental
Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2001 (collectively, the “Asset Purchase Agreement”). The total
purchase price was subject to adjustment based on the determination of the final purchased net
assets and on our performance of integration services for Philips.

Our consolidated financial statements reflect our healthcare solutions business as discontinued
operations in accordance with Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 30 “Reporting the
Results of Operations—Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions” (“APB No. 30”). The
financial position, results of operations and cash flows of our healthcare solutions business have
been classified as discontinued, and prior periods have been restated, including the reallocation of
general overhead charges to our three remaining business segments. We recorded an after-tax gain
of $646 million in 2001 and an after-tax loss of $10 million in 2002 as a result of the sale to Philips.
In 2002, adjustments were made to the gain as a result of purchase price adjustments to reflect the
final purchased net assets and additional costs that were not anticipated at the time of the sale.

We signed an agreement with Philips, dated as of May 15, 2002, finalizing the purchase price
adjustments from the sale. The adjustments did not result in a material adjustment to the gain on
sale. Since August 1, 2001, we received all of the $100 million withheld by Philips from the total
purchase price at the time of the sale plus adjustments for the final purchased net assets. For
incremental fees, we provided support services to Philips after August 1, 2001 and a portion of these
fees offset costs that include an element of fixed costs which are recognized in selling, general and
administrative expenses in 2001 and 2002. As of October 31, 2002, we have completed our
contractual obligation to provide services to Philips.

Under the Asset Purchase Agreement, we are restricted from competing in the development,
manufacturing, selling or servicing of certain medical products for five years after the sale. We do
not expect any material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows from
this non-compete agreement because we do not intend to engage in those specified businesses.
Asset Sales

Sale of Leasing Portfolio

In the fourth quarter of 2000, we entered into an asset purchase agreement with CIT Group Inc.
(“CIT,” formerly Tyco Capital Corporation) pursuant to which we sold them substantially all of our
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leasing portfolio (the “CIT Group Sale”) over the course of 2000 and 2001. There was no impact on
our consolidated cash flows and results of operations for the CIT Group Sale in 2003 and 2002. The
impact on our consolidated cash flows and results of operations of the CIT Group Sale in 2001 is
shown below.

Year Ended
October 31, 2001

(in millions)

Net proceeds from the CIT Group Sale . ........................ $287
Productrevenue ........ ... .. . 254
Costof products ......... ... 131

We also entered into a vendor financing arrangement with CIT whereby CIT will provide
equipment financing and leasing services to our customers on a global basis. This agreement has
been in place since the fourth quarter of 2000.

In addition to the CIT Group Sale and the sale of the healthcare solutions business, we sold
assets related to portions of our businesses to third parties during 2002 and 2001. Gross proceeds
from these dispositions were $31 million in 2002 and $13 million in 2001. Gains from the
dispositions, included in other income (expense), net, in the consolidated statement of operations,
were $15 million in 2002 and $9 million in 2001. There were no cash proceeds or gains from these
dispositions in 2003.

Sale of San Jose Land

In February 2001, we sold a parcel of surplus land in San Jose, California for $287 million in
cash, resulting in a pre-tax gain of approximately $269 million. In August 2001, we invested the
proceeds in the leasehold of several municipal properties in southern California for a total value of
$289 million. In 2002, we received $237 million in non-refundable prepaid rent related to the
investment in leaseholds as described above.

Foreign Currency

Our revenues, costs and expenses, and monetary assets and liabilities are exposed to changes in
foreign currency exchange rates as a result of our global operating and financing activities. We hedge
net cash flow and balance sheet exposures that are not denominated in the functional currencies of
our subsidiaries on a short term and anticipated basis. We do experience some fluctuations within
individual lines of the consolidated statement of operations and balance sheet as our hedging
program is not designed to offset the currency movements in each category of revenues, expenses,
monetary assets and liabilities. However, movements in exchange rates net of our hedging activities
had no material effect on our net loss in the periods presented. For example, the weakening of the
U.S. dollar throughout 2003 led to an increase in revenue of approximately $140 million, which
primarily affected Europe and Asia Pacific. However, this was offset by an increase to cost of sales
of approximately $60 million and an increase to operating expenses of approximately $85 million.
Our hedging activities resulted in an increase of cost of sales of approximately $12 million.

Effective November 1, 2001, we determined that the functional currency for many of our
subsidiaries outside the U.S. changed from the U.S. dollar to local currency based on the criteria of
SFAS No. 52 “Foreign Currency Translation”. This change did not have a material impact on our
consolidated financial position as of November 1, 2001.
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Indemnifications
Indemnifications to Hewlett-Packard Company

We have given multiple indemnities to Hewlett-Packard Company in connection with our
activities prior to our spin-off from Hewlett-Packard for the businesses that constituted Agilent prior
to the spin-off. These indemnifications cover a variety of aspects of our business, including, but not
limited to, employee, tax, intellectual property and environmental matters. The agreements
containing these indemnifications have been previously disclosed as exhibits to our registration
statement on Form S-1 filed on August 16, 1999. In our opinion, the fair value of these
indemnifications is not material.

Indemnifications to Koninklijke Philips Electronics, N.V. (“Philips”)

In connection with the sale of our healthcare solutions business to Philips on August 1, 2001, we
indemnified Philips for various matters, including product liability issues arising within two years of
the sale agreement. In our opinion, the fair value of these indemnifications is not material.

Indemnifications to Officers and Directors

Our corporate by-laws require that we indemnify our officers and directors, as well as those
who act as directors and officers of other entities at our request, against expenses, judgments, fines,
settlements and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred in connection with any proceedings
arising out of their services to Agilent. In addition, we have entered into separate indemnification
agreements with each director and each board-appointed officer of Agilent which provides for
indemnification of these directors and officers under similar circumstances and under additional
circumstances. The indemnification obligations are more fully described in the by-laws and the
indemnification agreements. See Exhibits 3.2 and 10.7 of this document. We purchase standard
insurance to cover claims or a portion of the claims made against our directors and officers. Since a
maximum obligation is not explicitly stated in our by-laws or in our indemnification agreements and
will depend on the facts and circumstances that arise out of any future claims, the overall maximum
amount of the obligations cannot be reasonably estimated. Historically, we have not made payments
related to these obligations, and the fair value for these obligations is zero on the consolidated
balance sheet as of October 31, 2003.

Other Indemnifications

As is customary in our industry and as provided for in local law in the U.S. and other
jurisdictions, many of our standard contracts provide remedies to our customers and others with
whom we enter into contracts, such as defense, settlement, or payment of judgment for intellectual
property claims related to the use of our products. From time to time, we indemnify customers, as
well as our suppliers, contractors, lessors, lessees, companies that purchase our businesses or assets
and others with whom we enter into contracts, against combinations of loss, expense, or liability
arising from various triggering events related to the sale and the use of our products and services,
the use of their goods and services, the use of facilities and state of our owned facilities, the state of
the assets and businesses that we sell and other matters covered by such contracts, usually up to a
specified maximum amount. In addition, from time to time we also provide protection to these
parties against claims related to undiscovered liabilities, additional product liability or
environmental obligations. In our experience, claims made under such indemnifications are rare and
the associated estimated fair value of the liability is not material.

Results of Continuing Operations

The loss from continuing operations increased for a third year to $1,790 million in 2003 from
$1,022 million in 2002 and $406 million in 2001. The increase in loss from 2002 to 2003 of
approximately $768 million was primarily due to our provision for income taxes for 2003 which
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included a $1,022 million net tax provision related to our valuation allowance charge, which was
offset by a reduction of $326 million of goodwill amortization charges. The increase in loss from
2001 to 2002 of approximately $616 million related to a significant decrease in revenues as a result
of the weak economy, which primarily affected our key market segments and $320 million in
additional restructuring charges offset by a $386 million reduction in inventory charges in 2002.

In the fourth quarter of 2003, we saw signs of a market upturn in several of our business
segments. The fourth quarter orders of $1,731 million represented our highest level of orders since
the first quarter of 2001. Prior to the fourth quarter, orders were stagnant for the past ten quarters
at a level around $1,430 million on the average. We remain cautiously optimistic about our recent
growth in orders and believe that a recovery in the economy will be gradual.

We realigned our businesses in response to weakened economic conditions. We have achieved
our goal of reducing our quarterly operating cost structure to $1.45 billion. As long as revenue
amounts do not fall below $1.45 billion in the long term, we believe that we will be able to sustain
operational breakeven. This goal was primarily accomplished through savings generated from our
restructuring plans. We have reduced our workforce to 29,000 employees from a peak of 44,000 in
April 2001. We have also consolidated excess manufacturing facilities, moved many of our global
shared services to lower cost regions and have outsourced selective functions and processes. We
have also reduced our indirect spending by approximately $160 million. This reduction was
accomplished by decreasing the number of vendors with whom we do business in order to maximize
vendor discounts and by putting in place new policies that provide stricter guidelines for handling
business expenses such as travel, mobile phone services and usage, consulting covered by
professional service agreements, supplies and equipment. Overall, we have decreased our operating
expenses from 2002 by 19% on a dollar basis despite a $45 million increase in major information
technology project costs. We are committed to maintaining this cost structure as a percentage of
revenue on average throughout the business cycle. Costs incurred for the implementation of our
Enterprise Resource Planning (“ERP”) and Customer Relationship Management (“CRM”) projects
were $180 million in 2003 and $146 million in 2002. We believe that we will further reduce our costs
once we complete our systems implementation and are able to eliminate some of the costs associated
with maintaining multiple systems. We will be focusing on reducing our costs of products and
services and have moved towards a more variable cost structure through the use of outsourcing
partners and instituting variable pay programs for our employees. We continue to invest in our
future by maintaining significant investments in research and development.
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Orders and Net Revenue

Years Ended October 31, 5403 (uer 2002 2002 over 2001

2003 2002 2001 % Change % Change
(in millions)
Orders .........uuiiiin i, $6,084 $6,013 $6,414 1% (6)%
Net Revenue:
Products .............. .. .. .. .. ..., $5,240 $5,234 $7,485 - 30)%
Servicesand other ...................... 816 776 911 5 % (15)%
Total net revenue .. ..............uvuuun... $6,056 $6,010 $8,396 1% (28)%

Years Ended October 31, 5403 var 2002 2002 over 2001

2003 2002 2001 Ppts Change Ppts Change
% of Total Net Revenue:
Products .......... .. ... ... .. ... 87% 87% 89% — (2)
Servicesandother ...................... 13% 13% 11% — 2
Total ........... ... .. .. . . . 100% 100% 100% — —

Years Ended October 31, 5403 var 2002 2002 over 2001

2003 2002 2001 % Change % Change

(in millions)
Americas ........ i $2,347 $2,553 $3,913 (8)% (35)%
Europe ... ... .. 1,214 1,164 1,772 5 % 35)%
AsiaPacific ........ .. ..o o i 2,495 2303 2,711 8 % (15)%
Total netrevenue ....................... $6,056 $6,010 $8,396 1% (28)%

Although we saw signs of a recovery in several of our end markets during the fourth quarter of
2003, orders in 2003 were flat compared to 2002. Quarterly orders were flat at a level of
approximately $1,500 million from 2002 through the third quarter of 2003. During the fourth quarter
of 2003, we saw a marked increase to $1,731 million, our best performance since the first quarter of
2001. Orders for semiconductor products, automated test, and life sciences and chemical analysis
have reached their highest level since the early part of 2001. However, orders for our test and
measurement business’ general purpose test and wireline test markets remain weak. Orders in 2003
have been driven by an increase in orders from cell phone manufacturers and consumer demand for
components that are included in consumer electronics, such as cell phones, cameras, games,
personal computers, printers and test and measurement solutions used in the design and
manufacturing of consumer electronics. Orders in 2002 declined compared to 2001 primarily due to
continued weakness in telecommunications markets, which primarily affected our test and
measurement business, but the decline was partially offset by orders growth in our semiconductor
products and life sciences and chemical analysis businesses.

Net revenue in 2003 was flat compared to 2002. Quarterly revenues in 2003 were flat throughout
the third quarter at a level of $1,450 million. Similar to the trend in orders, we saw a sizable increase
in net revenue over the third quarter of 2003 during our seasonally high fourth quarter, reaching
$1,675 million. Net revenues in our automated test, semiconductor products and life sciences and
chemical analysis segments increased, however this growth was offset by the continued decline in
the wireline telecommunications market in our test and measurement segment. Geographically,
revenue increased in Europe and Asia Pacific and declined in the U.S., Canada, Latin America
(collectively referred to as the “Americas”). The decrease in the Americas was primarily a result of
our customers shifting their production facilities from Americas to Asia Pacific. Growth in our Asian
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and European markets also contributed to the revenue increase in those regions. We expect to see
further growth in Asia Pacific as companies expand their capacity and as more contract
manufacturers move to these lower cost regions. We also expect to see a modest improvement in the
Americas as the economy in the U.S. recovers and the excess supply of used equipment is depleted.
Net revenue declined in 2002 as compared to 2001 primarily due to continued weakness in key
market segments, particularly wireless and wireline telecommunications, as well as pricing
pressures from both customers and competitors in the face of a weak economy. Declines in the
Americas and Europe were higher than in Asia Pacific in part due to our customers buying
infrastructure products in Asia.

Services and other includes revenue generated from servicing our installed base of products,
warranty extensions and consulting in all years, in addition to operating lease revenue in 2001. In
2003, service and other revenue increased slightly from 2002 as a result of customers servicing their
installed base of products as opposed to purchasing new products. Continued slow markets in
communications drove declines in product revenue in 2002; declines in service revenue for 2002
were driven by reduced contract renewal rates as an increasingly large portion of our customers
have elected to receive service on a time-and-materials basis.

Costs and Expenses

Years Ended
__ October3l, 5003 gver 2002 2002 over 2001

As a % of Net Revenue % w % Ppts Change Ppts Change
Cost of products as a percentage of product

TEVEIMUEL . o o\t ot et et ettt et et e et eees 61% 64% 62% 3) 2
Cost of services and other as a percentage of services

and otherrevenue ............ ... ... 70% 65% b52% 5 13
Total costs as a percentage of total net revenue ...... 62% 64% 61% 2 3
Research and development ........................ 17% 21% 16% 4) 5
Selling, general and administrative ................. 32% 41% 32% €)) 9

Cost of products and services and other as percentage of net revenue was relatively flat from
2002 to 2003. Cost of services and other as a percentage of services and other revenue increased by 5
percentage points while cost of products as a percentage of product revenue decreased slightly from
2002. The increase in cost of services and other was driven by increased materials consumption for
our service and support businesses, especially in our automated test segment. Cost of products
decreased on a dollar basis primarily due to net incremental restructuring savings of $310 million,
and a reduction of inventory charges. This decrease was offset by unfavorable mix and volume
impacts and the unfavorable currency impact due to the weakening of the U.S. dollar. We will be
focusing on moving to a more variable cost structure through the use of selective outsourcing and
our variable pay programs for our employees. Cost of products and services as a percentage of net
revenue increased in 2002 compared to 2001, despite decreases in the actual dollar amounts of
costs, due to the steep decline in revenue we experienced in 2002. Our fixed costs relating to
continued overcapacity increase as a percentage of net revenue with any decline in net revenue.
Savings in dollar terms were primarily from reduced inventory charges of $386 million and net
incremental restructuring savings of approximately $194 million.

Inventory charges totaled $11 million in 2003, $74 million in 2002, and $460 million in 2001. The
abnormally high charges in 2001 were the result of the rapid and steep market decline that year,
which caused excess inventory of then-current products and made older products obsolete. Inventory
charges in 2001 spanned the vast majority of our products and particularly impacted raw materials.
Inventory charges in 2002 reflected continuing weakness in some of our largest markets, particularly
in the telecommunications market. We have seen a significant decline in inventory charges in 2003
compared to 2002 primarily due to our efforts to effectively manage our inventory levels.
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Research and development expenses as a percentage of net revenue decreased by 4 percentage
points as a direct result of net incremental savings from our restructuring efforts of approximately
$220 million and decreased indirect spending of approximately $95 million in 2003. These savings
were offset by increased costs due to the weakening of the U.S. dollar of approximately $30 million.
Research and development expenses as a percentage of net revenue increased in 2002 compared to
2001 as a direct result of decreased revenue. Our research and development efforts focus on
potential new products and product improvements covering a wide variety of technologies in
communications, electronics, life sciences and chemical analysis, none of which is individually
significant to our operations. At our central research facility, Agilent Laboratories, we conduct five
types of research and development: basic research, which contributes to the fundamental
understanding of areas anticipated to be important in the very long term; foundation technologies
research, which enables fundamental advances across all businesses; communications research,
which creates technologies to enable pervasive access to information; life sciences research, which
enables new measurement solutions to facilitate the development of next-generation
pharmaceuticals and molecular diagnostics; and measurement research, which provides critical
advances in test and measurement electronics and systems. The research at Agilent Laboratories
represents less than 10% of Agilent’s consolidated spending on research and development and is
intended to be relatively high in technical risk and to be the foundation for future products over a
longer time horizon, generally five to ten years out. The majority of our research and development is
nearer term and occurs in Agilent’s four business segments. This research and development is aimed
at improving the more than 20,000 products already in production and on new product releases.
Because of the large number of new and existing products and research and development projects
across all of our businesses and at Agilent Laboratories, it is difficult to quantify the impact of any
specific products or projects. We are committed to bringing new products to the market and have
focused our development efforts on key strategic opportunities in order to align our business with
available markets and position ourselves to capture market share when the economy recovers.

Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net revenue decreased
9 percentage points in 2003 compared to 2002. Selling and general and administrative expenses
declined primarily due to a decrease in goodwill amortization and impairments of $326 million. The
decline was also driven in part by a decline in indirect spending of $55 million, and incremental net
restructuring savings of approximately $170 million, which were partially offset by increased costs
due to the weakening of the U.S. dollar. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage
of net revenue increased in 2002 compared to 2001, despite reductions in overall spending, due to
the significant decline in net revenue. Overall our spending on selling, general and administrative
expenses in 2002 was $250 million lower than in 2001 as a result of savings from the 2001 Plan,
despite an increase of approximately $89 million in expense for our ERP and CRM systems.

At October 31, 2003, our headcount was 29,000 compared to 36,000 in 2002 and 41,000 in 2001.
We expect to recognize additional net savings from restructuring savings throughout the first half of
2004.

Loss from Operations

Years Ended October 31, 2003 over 2002 2002 over 2001

2003 2002 2001 Change Change
(in millions)
Loss from operations ................. $(725) $(1,607) $(778) 55% (107)%
Operating (deficit) margin ............. (12)% 27)% (9)% 15 points (18) points

The loss from operations in 2003 was $725 million, a decrease of approximately $882 million.
The decrease was primarily due to a decrease in goodwill amortization and impairments of
$326 million, decreased spending on indirect expenses of approximately $160 million, decreased
inventory charges of $63 million and net incremental savings from our restructuring plans.
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Our increased loss from operations in 2002 compared to 2001 was a direct result of the decline
in revenue that we experienced, as well as increases in restructuring and asset impairment charges
related to restructuring. The increase of $829 million in our loss from operations in 2002 was less
than 35 percent of our total revenue decline of $2,386 million.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Years Ended October 31, 2003 over 2002 2002 over 2001
2003 2002 2001 % Change % Change
(in millions)
Other income (expense), net ........... $35 $60 $301 (42)% (80)%

Other income (expense), net generally includes interest income, interest expense, rental income,
currency gain (loss) on balance sheet remeasurement, our share of income from joint ventures and
equity investments and other miscellaneous items. Other income (expense), net decreased by $25
million in 2003 compared to 2002. This decrease was driven primarily by a decrease in net interest
income of $17 million as interest rates and cash decreased. Other income (expense), net decreased
$241 million in 2002 over 2001. This decrease primarily related to a $269 million gain for the sale of
land in San Jose, California in 2001. Excluding this impact, other income (expense), net increased
$28 million in 2002 compared to 2001. This net increase was primarily due to reduced losses on
equity investments, increased interest income from cash deposits and reduced interest expense due
to the pay down of commercial paper following the sale of our healthcare solutions business. These
increases were partially offset by approximately $34 million of interest expense for our convertible
debt issued in early 2002.

We sold assets related to portions of our businesses to third parties during 2003, 2002 and 2001.
Gross proceeds from these dispositions were zero in 2003, $31 million in 2002 and $13 million in
2001. Gains from the dispositions, included in other income (expense), net in the consolidated
statement of operations, were $5 million in 2003, $15 million in 2002 and $9 million in 2001.

Tax Valuation Allowance and Provision (Benefit) for Taxes

Years Ended October 31,

2003 2002 2001
(in millions)
Provision (benefit) fortaxes ......................... $1,100 $(525) $(71)

Our provision for taxes included a non-cash charge recorded during the third quarter of 2003 to
establish a valuation allowance of $1.4 billion, which included approximately $0.4 billion of tax
benefits recorded during the first six months of 2003, resulting in approximately $1.0 billion net tax
provision recorded within provision for taxes for 2003; the valuation allowance essentially
eliminated our net deferred tax assets. During the fourth quarter of 2003, we maintained a full
valuation allowance on our net deferred tax assets in the U.S. and the U.K. The valuation allowance
was determined in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109 which requires an assessment of
both positive and negative evidence when determining whether it is more likely than not that
deferred tax assets are recoverable; such assessment is required on a jurisdiction by jurisdiction
basis. Cumulative losses incurred in the U.S. and the U.K. in recent years represented sufficient
negative evidence under SFAS No. 109 to require a full valuation allowance in these jurisdictions.
We intend to maintain a full valuation allowance until sufficient positive evidence exists to support
its reversal. See Accounting for incomes taxes in our Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates.

For 2003 the effective tax rate was affected by the charge for a valuation allowance. For 2002
and 2001, the effective tax benefit rate was 34 percent and 19 percent, respectively. In 2002
compared to 2001, the higher benefit rate was due to the relatively higher loss from continuing
operations. Taxes on the sale of our healthcare solutions business in 2001 were reflected in gain
from sale of discontinued operations.
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Our future effective tax rate will continue to be calculated using our projected annual pre-tax
income or loss and taxes imposed by various jurisdictions and will be affected by changes in
valuation allowance, research and development tax credits, the expected level of other benefits, the
effects of business acquisitions and dispositions as well as changes in the mix of our pre-tax income
and losses among jurisdictions with varying statutory rates.

Segment Results

For 2003, we changed the method by which costs and operating expenses have been classified
and allocated to the business segments, and we are presenting our Automated Test business as a
separate segment. Prior period (loss) income from operations have been restated accordingly.
Management measures the profitability of each of the business segments after excluding goodwill,
other intangible amortization and items such as restructuring charges. Such items are discussed at
the enterprise level above.

General Infrastructure and Shared Services

Overall we have significantly decreased our infrastructure costs primarily through our
restructuring plans. We have reduced the number of employees in our workforce that provide
support services such as finance, information technology and workplace services, decreased the
spaces that we occupy in our sales and administrative buildings and moved some of our global
shared services operations sites to lower cost regions. Incremental savings for infrastructure costs
associated with restructuring plans were approximately $210 million. Cost savings related to
restructuring our infrastructure were allocated to all businesses.

In addition to the restructuring programs, we implemented cost controls to reduce our indirect
spending costs. We put in place new policies that provide stricter guidelines for handling business
expenses such as travel, mobile phone services and usage, consulting covered by professional service
agreements, supplies and equipment. We have also streamlined our procurement process by
decreasing the number of vendors with which we do business in order to maximize vendor discounts
with preferred suppliers. Incremental savings associated with these new processes were
approximately $160 million, which were also allocated to all businesses.

Test and Measurement

Our test and measurement business provides standard and customized solutions that are used
in the design, development, manufacture, installation, deployment and operation of electronic
equipment and systems and communications networks and services. Our communications test
solutions generated approximately two-thirds of test and measurement revenues in 2003 while our
general purpose test solutions generated approximately one-third. Overall orders activity over the
last 12 quarters indicates that the markets for our test and measurement products remain weak.
Orders dropped dramatically during 2001 and have continued to trend more gradually downward
through 2002 and 2003. Declines in all three years were generally the result of a weak market for
telecommunications products and price competition.
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Orders and Net Revenue

Years Ended October 31, 2003 over 2002 2002 over 2001
2003 2002 2001 Change Change
(in millions)
Orders ...........coiiiiiiiinnnnn.. $2,413 $2,549  $3,569 B5)% 29)%
Net revenue from products ............ $2,135  $2,219  $4,036 (4% (45)%
Net revenue from services and other . ... 394 393 511 0% (23)%
Total netrevenue ..................... $2529 $2,612  $4,547 (3)% (43)%
(Loss) income from operations ......... (315) (710) 52 56% N/M(a)
Operating margin (deficit) ............. (12)% 27% 1% 15 points (28) points

(a) Not meaningful

The decrease in orders in 2003 compared to 2002 was affected by low order volume in the first
quarter due to the acceleration of orders that occurred in the fourth quarter of last year and the
overall weak economy. Generally, our decline in orders performance has been driven by the
continued deterioration of the wireline communications market, pricing pressures, the competitive
pressures of the used equipment market and continued reduction in capital expenditure spending by
telecommunications providers. We saw strong performance in our wireless handset test business
offset by continued weakness in the wireless infrastructure market. We saw some weakness in
aerospace defense compared to a year ago (down 7 percent) as U.S. customers focused on military
operations rather than equipment modernization. General purpose test showed signs of a recovery
driven by rising demand for our new high-end oscilloscope product lines yet ended the year down
4 percent from one year ago because of relative weakness in services and support. The decrease in
2002 over 2001 was the result of a weak market for telecommunications products.

Net revenue of $2,529 million for 2003 declined 3 percent compared to 2002, essentially
following the same trends as orders. The decline in net revenue for 2003 compared to 2002 was
primarily the result of the slowdown in the telecommunications industry partially offset by favorable
currency impact of $53 million. Looking ahead, approximately 30 percent of our test and
measurement business’ revenues are tied to consumer electronics, primarily wireless test. The
decline in net revenue for 2002 compared to 2001 was primarily due to deterioration of the
telecommunications market. The slowdown was particularly sharp in the second half of 2001 as we
became increasingly dependent on incoming orders, which declined in virtually all of the product
lines of our test and measurement businesses. Net revenue from services and other primarily
remained unchanged in 2003 compared to 2002 while net revenue from products dropped about 4
percent due to the weak telecommunications market. Net revenue from services and other declined
less dramatically than product revenue in 2002 compared to 2001 despite customers increasingly
moving away from contracts and towards service on a time-and-materials basis; service revenue is
generally more stable than product revenue in difficult market conditions.

Costs and Expenses

The following table shows the percentage point (decrease)/increase in our test and
measurement business’ costs and expenses as a percentage of net revenue for 2003 versus 2002 and
2002 versus 2001.

2003 over 2002 2002 over 2001

(Decrease)/Increase as a % of Net Revenue Ppts Change Ppts Change
Cost of products and services .................... 4) 7
Research and development ...................... ) 8
Selling, general and administrative ............... 5) 13
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Over the past two years, we have implemented cost reduction and restructuring plans to help
the company achieve a $1.45 billion operating cost structure. Our test and measurement segment
ended 2003 with approximately 11,900 employees, a decrease of approximately 3,900 employees
from one year ago and 7,100 employees from two years ago. We have transferred our manufacturing
lines to lower cost regions, scaled down various manufacturing sites and increased the level of
outsourcing of production of our products. Our restructuring efforts provided approximately
$378 million of savings. We also reduced our indirect expenses by $61 million, or 17 percent in 2003
compared to 2002.

Cost of products and services as a percentage of net revenue decreased in 2003 over 2002
primarily due to consolidation of manufacturing sites, transfer of some manufacturing lines from
Sonoma, California to Penang, Malaysia, and outsourcing of production activities such as the printed
circuit assembly boards. Overall, our restructuring efforts provided $140 million of savings. The
decrease was also attributable to $62 million of reduced inventory charges. These reductions were
offset by a $41 million increase due to changes in the mix of products we sold from relatively higher
margin to relatively lower margin offerings, erosion in average selling prices, and an unfavorable
currency impact of $21 million. The increase in 2002 compared to 2001 was primarily due to an
overall decrease in net revenue offset by a decrease of $205 million in inventory charges. Inventory
charges totaled $8 million in 2003 compared to $69 million in 2002 and $275 million in 2001.
Inventory charges in 2003 were primarily the result of decisions made to discontinue or exit several
weak product families in the wireline market as we continued to rebalance our business portfolio.
Inventory charges in 2002 primarily affected optical communications measurement products,
inventory and raw materials. Inventory charges in 2001 resulted from the rapidly deteriorating
conditions in the telecommunications and electronics markets, which hastened the obsolescence of
older products; the charges affected parts for the majority of all product types.

Research and development expense as a percentage of net revenue decreased in 2003 from
2002. On a dollar basis, expenses were down 25 percent, predominantly due to $132 million of
restructuring savings and a $23 million reduction in indirect expenses. We have achieved some
market share gains resulting from new product introductions such as our high-end oscilloscopes. We
expect that much of our future growth will be generated through growing markets such as the
wireless test markets. Research and development expense as a percentage of net revenue increased
in 2002 from 2001 due to the overall decrease in net revenue. On a dollar basis, expenses were down
10 percent for the year, predominantly as a result of restructuring savings and from delays and
reductions in the rate and number of new product introductions.

Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net revenue decreased in 2003
compared to 2002 due to $106 million in restructuring savings, efficiencies gained from our ERP
implementation and $45 million reduction in indirect expenses. We expect further savings once we
actually complete our ERP implementation and are able to eliminate some of the costs associated
with maintaining multiple systems. These reductions were partially offset by an unfavorable
currency impact of $42 million. On a dollar basis in 2003, expenses were down 15 percent. Selling,
general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net revenue increased in 2002 compared to
2001 due to the overall decrease in net revenue. On a dollar basis in 2002, expenses were down 18%
compared to 2001 due to restructuring savings.

(Loss) Income from Operations

Losses decreased by $395 million in 2003 compared to 2002 even as net revenue declined 3%.
Aggressive restructuring resulted in favorable comparable results, mainly driven by restructuring
savings and lower inventory charges. These favorable results were offset slightly by reduced revenue
and changes in the mix of products we sold, from relatively higher margins to relatively lower
margin offerings. The restructuring plans contributed approximately $378 million in savings and
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headcount was reduced by 25 percent in 2003. Savings resulted from reductions in employee-related
costs and from shifting manufacturing and sales into lower-cost geographic regions. We anticipate
further headcount reduction in test and measurement throughout the first half of 2004 until
completion of the restructuring programs currently underway. Reduced revenue also drove the loss
from operations in 2002 compared to 2001; weak sales overcame significant new product wins and
restructuring savings during 2002.

Automated Test

Our automated test segment provides test system solutions that are used in the manufacture of
semiconductor devices and printed circuit assemblies. Our test solutions enable electronics
designers and manufacturers to reduce the design to production cycle, lower manufacturing cost of
test, confirm the functional quality of their devices and of their manufacturing processes, and
accelerate the high-volume delivery of their products. Following the industry bubble of 2000, the
main driver of our customers’ business has visibly shifted from communication, IT, networking, and
internet infrastructure to consumers who are driving the market for PC’s, cell phones, electronic
games, and similar consumer electronics. Orders and net revenue have trended upward. The second
half of 2003 showed marked improvement in our loss from operations. We are seeing strength,
particularly in the semiconductor test markets, based on design wins we have achieved and due to
the extent to which our installed product base is being used.

Orders and Net Revenue

Years Ended October 31, 5443 (uer- 2002 2002 over 2001

2003 2002 2001 Change Change
(in millions)

Orders .........ouiuiiiiiiiiian $845 $745 $ 452 13% 65%
Net revenue from products ................. $604  $572 $ 727 6% 2D%
Net revenue from services and other ......... 151 134 158 13% (15)%
Total Nt TeVENUE . . ... oo eeeeee e, $755 $706 $ 885 7% (20)%
Loss from operations ...................... (34) (70) (128) 51% 45%
Operating deficit .......................... B)%  (10)%  (14)% 5 points 4 points

Semiconductor test equipment markets grow when new customer products requiring new test
capability achieve volume production. Orders in 2003 increased compared to 2002 primarily due to
increasing strength in the semiconductor test market as customers started to build increased
production capacity for next generation devices. This increase was mainly driven by demand for
customer products in computation (PC chip sets, graphics) and networking, digital consumer
products and wireless products. In the fourth quarter of 2003, our automated test segment reached
its highest level of quarterly orders since the fourth quarter of 2000 and has continued to achieve
market growth through design wins. We anticipate that this upturn in the second half of 2003 may be
the beginning of a recovery.

The growth in orders for 2002 compared to 2001 was mainly driven by design wins in the U.S.
and by expanded production in the SCMs (Semiconductor Contract Manufacturers) in Asia,
particularly for our SOC (system-on-a-chip) business. Growth was also driven by the IDMs
(Integrated Design Manufacturers). We introduced the V4400 Flash Memory product (new
generation platform for Flash memory test) in 2001 which contributed to the 2002 growth of the
Flash memory test business. Orders in 2001 were adversely impacted by $215 million cancellations
at the end of the strong market cycle in 2000.
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The increase in net revenue for 2003 compared to 2002 was the result of increased sales of our
products across the board in semiconductor test (flash memory, system-on-a-chip) and electronic
manufacturing test markets. Semiconductor test grew seven percent and electronic manufacturing
test also grew seven percent. Support and services revenue increased 13 percent. Support and
services includes the sale of up-time support for hardware and software, and the sale of services
(training, application development and test consulting), for new installations and our installed base.

Net revenue in 2002 compared to 2001 decreased by 20 percent. Net revenue in 2001 included
$93 million for the sale of the lease portfolio to CIT. Net revenue from our semiconductor test
products (without the leasing impact) showed a two-percent increase driven by SOC and flash
memory products. Although service and support net revenue declined 15 percent from 2001, the
share of total net revenue increased to 19 percent from 18 percent in 2001. Net revenue from our
electronic manufacturing test products declined 50 percent from 2001. Service revenue tends to be
more stable than product revenue because service revenues reflect services offered on an installed
base of products, which does not shift as quickly as orders or revenue for products and furthermore,
support revenue is recognized over the life of the service contract. Service revenue declined in 2002
following the decline in product orders during 2001. Support revenue lags hardware sales due to the
warranty period following hardware sales and the method of revenue recognition. Support and
services contracts sold with systems during the industry boom of 2000 were recognized as revenue
ratably over the subsequent 12 months, resulting in support and service revenue growth in 2001.
System sales declined in 2001 and service revenue decreased in 2002. The second half of 2002 saw
strong hardware sales.

Costs and Expenses

The following table shows the percentage point (decrease)/increase in our automated test
segment’s costs and expenses as a percentage of net revenue for 2003, 2002 and 2001.

2003 over 2002 2002 over 2001

(Decrease)/Increase as a % of Net Revenue Ppts Change Ppts Change
Cost of products and services .................... 2 (10)
Research and development ...................... 2) 2
Selling, general and administrative ............... (6) 3

As a part of the effort to achieve a company break-even cost structure, our automated test
segment ended this fiscal year with approximately 2,300 employees, a decrease of approximately
500 employees from one year ago and 1,000 employees from two years ago. The automated test
segment does not anticipate the need for further workforce reductions.

Cost of products and services as a percentage of net revenue increased in 2003 compared to
2002. Savings from cost controls, and efficiencies from outsourcing to contract manufacturers were
offset by the mix of products and competitive pricing pressure. In 2002, IDMs, design houses, and
contract manufacturers focused on buying technology capability through high margin testers.
However in 2003, as we saw signs of economic recovery, they have started adding capacity and are
starting to buy more focused cost effective systems. Discount increases affected the majority of our
products and were the result of pressure from competitors and customers in the face of a tough
economy.

Cost of products and services as a percentage of net revenue decreased in 2002 compared to
2001 primarily due to the $90 million of inventory charges in 2001.

We sold $8 million of inventory in 2003 that was previously reserved compared to $4 million in
2002. The reduction in inventory charges for 2003 and 2002 is the result of sales of inventory
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previously written off in our semiconductor test product lines and due to our efforts to effectively
manage our inventory levels.

Research and development expenses as a percentage of net revenue decreased two percentage
points from 2002. On a dollar basis expenses were down four percent for the year. The decrease in
research and development was due to aggressive cost controls put in place, which focused our
efforts on more strategic opportunities to align our business with available markets. The increase in
research and development expenses as a percentage of net revenue in 2002 compared to 2001 was
due to the revenue decline exceeding the decline in research and development. On a dollar basis,
research and development decreased 11 percent from 2001.

Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net revenue decreased six
percentage points in 2003 compared to 2002, while on a dollar basis, expenses were down nine
percent. The decrease reflects our success in controlling discretionary spending. In 2002, selling,
general, and administrative expenses as a percentage of net revenue were up compared to 2001. The
increase in selling, general, and administrative expenses as a percentage of net revenue in 2002
compared to 2001 was due to the revenue decline exceeding the decline in selling, general and
administrative expenses. On a dollar basis, selling, general, and administrative expenses decreased
14 percent from 2001.

Loss from Operations

In 2003, our automated test segment reduced operating losses by 51 percent compared to 2002
while revenue increased 7 percent. Automated test returned to profitability in the second half of
2003 from one year ago. The reduction in loss from operations in 2003 compared to 2002 was
primarily due to higher net revenue and reduced spending resulting from our cost reduction
measures. In addition, operational efficiencies arising from outsourcing to contract manufacturers
contributed to the return to profitability in the second half and improvement for the year. The
reduction in loss from operations in 2002 compared to 2001 was primarily due to the fact that we
had no inventory write-offs, and to our restructuring efforts. The success of restructuring helped
offset the 20 percent decline in net revenue.

Semiconductor Products

Our semiconductor products business is a leading supplier of semiconductor components,
modules and assemblies for high performance communications systems. We design, develop and
manufacture products for the networking and personal systems markets. Our networking products
include fiber optic transceivers for sending and receiving data over high-speed networks and
integrated circuits (“ICs”) for enterprise storage and networking. Our personal systems products are
used in mobile phones, optical mice, flat panel displays, printers and plasma televisions. In 2003 and
2002, about two-thirds of the semiconductor products business came from customers in consumer
electronics markets.

Overall, we experienced broad-based growth in our semiconductor products business, reflective
of the upturn that we have seen in the worldwide semiconductor market as well as our success in
the mobile phone market and enterprise storage and networking market. Orders, on average, have
been trending upward over the last 12 quarters, with average quarterly orders increasing from
$323 million in 2001, to $392 million in 2002, to $413 million in 2003. These orders, though, have
been subject to continued pricing pressures. Even with these pressures, we returned to profitability
in our seasonally strong fourth quarter of 2003 due to our restructuring activities and continued cost
control measures.
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Orders and Net Revenue

Years Ended October 31, 5403 ey 2002 2002 over 2001

2003 2002 2001 Change Change
(in millions)
Orders ..........c.coiiiiinevnon.. $1,652 $1,568 $1,290 5% 22%
Netrevenue ...................... $1,586 $1,5659 $1,850 2% (16)%
Loss from operations ............. B9 (115) (222) 49% 48%
Operating deficit ................. 1% (M% (12)% 3 points 5 points

Orders for our semiconductor products in 2003 increased by 5 percent over 2002. In 2003,
orders for the personal systems market grew by 3 percent, primarily driven by increased orders for
our embedded camera modules, FBAR duplexers and E-pHEMT power modules for mobile phones.
By the fourth quarter of 2003, we were producing more than 2 million FBAR duplexers per month,
compared to one million per month at the end of 2002, and over one million E-pHEMT power
amplifiers per month, with insignificant production at the end of 2002. In addition, orders for
optical mice showed significant growth over last year. Orders for our couplers also were strong in
2003. As expected, orders for hardcopy application specific integrated circuits (“ASICs”), dropped
sharply throughout the year. Excluding hardcopy ASICs, the personal systems market grew by
23 percent compared to 2002. Within our networking market, orders grew 10 percent compared to
2002, driven by strength in networking ICs and modest growth in fiber optics. Networking ICs orders
were driven by strong growth in storage and networking ASICs and Application-Specific Standard
Products (“ASSPs”). In fiber optics we saw strong demand for our Ethernet products and received
orders from new customers for our Fibre Channel transceivers sold primarily to storage networking
customers.

The overall increase in orders for 2002 compared to 2001 was the result of growth in our
personal systems products, partially offset by reductions in our networking products. In personal
systems, we saw orders growth of 50 percent for our imaging products and 33 percent for general
optoelectronic components while orders for our wireless products were flat from the prior year. The
growth in our imaging products benefited from an unexpected one-time increase in these ASIC
orders from Hewlett-Packard in 2002 when some of their other suppliers failed to meet demand and
we were able to capture additional business. In networking, our optical products declined 11 percent
compared to 2001 while our smaller overall orders for integrated circuits grew 20 percent.

Revenue was up 2 percent in 2003 compared to 2002. Moreover, revenues increased each
quarter from the first quarter through the fourth quarter in 2003. The growth was driven by strength
in the camera modules used in mobile phones and optical mice products, wireless components,
networking ASICs, and couplers. Currency had a favorable impact on revenue growth as well. This
growth, however was offset in part by the decline in hardcopy ASIC products. Semiconductor
markets remained highly competitive resulting in the erosion of average selling prices across all
product lines.

Fiscal years 2001 and 2002 were periods of declining orders and revenues due to end market
decrease in demand. Non-recurring royalty revenue relating to changes in our agreement with
Adaptec Inc. in 2001 also contributed $35 million to the decrease in the comparison between 2002
and 2001. No individual new product had a material impact on results in 2002.

Revenue from sales to Hewlett-Packard, consisting primarily of hardcopy ASICs and motion
control products, represented 20 percent of the business’ total net revenue for 2003, down from
33 percent in 2002 and 31 percent in 2001. The previously-mentioned decline in the Hewlett-Packard
hardcopy ASICs business and growth in other products caused revenue from Hewlett-Packard sales
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to drop as a percentage of total net revenues. We expect this decline to continue into 2004. However,
we are offsetting this reduction with growth in existing mobile and networking products and new
product introductions to other customers.

Looking forward to 2004, we anticipate order and revenue growth across a wide-range of
products in our personal systems and networking markets. In the personal systems market, demand
for consumer products, such as mobile phones, is expected to drive growth in our camera modules,
analog front-end modules, and optoelectronic components. On the networking side, networking
ASICs and ASSPs should benefit from expected growth in enterprise storage and networking in
2004.

Costs and Expenses

The following table shows the percentage point increase or decrease in our semiconductor
products business’ costs and expenses as a percentage of its net revenue for 2003 versus 2002 and
2002 versus 2001.

2003 over 2002 2002 over 2001

Increase/(Decrease) as a % of Net Revenue Ppts Change Ppts Change
Costof products ........... ..., 2 (6)
Research and development ...................... 4 —
Selling, general and administrative ............... 2) 1

Over the past two years we have implemented cost-reduction and restructuring plans to return
us to profitability and attain operational excellence. We shut down several fabrication facilities in
the United States and Europe and moved to a flexible, variable cost structure, with more than 70
percent of our manufacturing outsourced. We reduced indirect expenses by $37 million, or 17
percent, in 2003 compared to 2002. Other cost control actions include the reduction of direct
material costs, the cancellation of several long-term research and development projects, and system
savings generated by full implementation of the ERP system as multiple outdated systems were
turned off. In 2003 and 2002, we reduced average headcount by 13 percent per year compared to
2002 and 2001, respectively. Overall savings from restructuring in 2003 totaled about $400 million
for the full year and in 2002 totaled $250 million for the full year.

Cost of products as a percentage of net revenue increased slightly in 2003 compared to 2002, as
restructuring savings, lower infrastructure costs, and better yields on new products were offset by
erosion in our average selling prices. The rate of erosion was relatively stable in all product lines.
The erosion of average selling prices of established products is typical of the industry and
improvements in pricing must be based on new products. Consistent with trends in the
semiconductor markets, we anticipate that average-selling prices will continue to deteriorate in
2004. However, as part of our normal course of business, we plan to offset this deterioration with
ongoing cost reduction activities and new product introductions. The decrease in cost of products as
a percentage of net revenue in 2002 compared to 2001 despite overall reduced revenue was a direct
result of the 2001 Plan; savings from restructuring reduced total cost of products by approximately
$170 million for the year.

The sale of previously-written-down inventory, due to unanticipated demand for products
previously considered to be unmarketable, also impacted the comparison. Specifically, in 2003 we
sold $5 million in inventory that we had previously written down. This inventory was for general
fiber optics, image sensors, and base optoelectronic products. However, in 2002 we sold $18 million
of previously-written-down inventory, primarily for imaging and navigation, general fiber optics,
telecom fiber optics, and hardcopy ASICs products. In 2001, we had inventory charges of $83 million
due to the dramatic decline of market conditions; the charges affected raw materials used in all of
our major products, including imaging and navigation, telecom fiber optics, general fiber optics,
hardcopy ASICs and couplers.
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The decrease in research and development expenses and selling and general administrative
expenses as a percentage of net revenue in 2003 compared to 2002 was primarily a result of
restructuring efforts, lower infrastructure costs, and the previously mentioned cost control
activities. As mentioned above, we also experienced cost savings from the implementation of our
ERP system. In spite of these actions, investments are being focused on key markets. Research and
development and selling and general administrative expenses as a percentage of net revenue were
flat for 2002 compared to 2001.

Loss from Operations

The 2003 operating loss of $59 million improved by $56 million compared to 2002, even though
revenue increased by only $27 million. The improvement in operating results was primarily the
result of the previously-mentioned restructuring and cost reduction activities and increased demand
for new products, which offset erosion in our average selling prices. The reduced loss from
operations in 2002 compared to 2001 was the result of reduced inventory charges and our cost
containment measures.

Life Sciences and Chemical Analysis

Our life sciences and chemical analysis business provides application-focused solutions that
include instruments, software, consumables and services that enable customers to identify, quantify
and analyze the physical and biological properties of substances and products. Overall, orders grew
2 percent in 2003 compared to 2002. In the first half of this fiscal year, order performance was
negatively impacted by weakness in the U.S., uncertain geopolitical conditions, and conservative
capital spending from our pharmaceutical customers. Orders performance improved in the second
half of this fiscal year, resulting from a recovery across our markets. In 2003, the primary driver for
growth in life sciences product revenue was the strong acceptance of new products. The primary
driver of revenue growth in chemical analysis for 2003 was Asian economic development, and an
improvement in our markets in the second half of this fiscal year.

Orders and Net Revenue

Years Ended October 31, 9003 gyer 2002 2002 over 2001
2003 2002 2001 Change Change
(in millions)

Orders ........couiiiiiiiii i, $1,174 $1,151 $1,103 2% 4%
Net revenue from products ................ $ 915 $ 884 $ 872 4% 1%
Net revenue from services and other ........ 271 249 242 9% 3%
Total netrevenue ...............oouuunn... $1,186 $1,133 $1,114 5% 2%
Income from operations ................... 148 140 92 6% 52%
Operatingmargin ......................... 12% 12% 8% — 4 points

The increase in orders in 2003 compared to 2002 was driven by growth in both Asia and in new
technology areas such as gene expression and bioconsumables. Although purchases from large
pharmaceutical customers improved in the second half of 2003, customer spending remained mixed.
In our chemical analysis business, the primary driver of growth was Asian government spending on
infrastructure. Orders in Asia grew 17% this year, primarily for products in environmental and foods
markets. We expect that recently released and planned new products will continue to produce
orders growth in the coming year.

The increase in orders in 2002 compared to 2001 was the result of the overall orders growth in
both our chemical and life sciences business. Orders growth in the chemical analysis markets
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resulted from U.S. government spending in homeland security and Asian government spending on
infrastructure. In our life science markets, new technologies drove improved order performance.

Revenue grew five percent in 2003 compared to 2002. The increase in revenues resulted from
growth in Asia, gene expression products and currency effects, offset by a weak first half
performance in the U.S. In life sciences, increased revenue was driven by our introduction of new
technologies. Our chemical analysis markets continue to grow, driven by Asian government spending
on infrastructure. The increase in net revenue for 2002 compared to 2001 was the result of increased
sales of our products in both the life science and chemical analysis markets. In life sciences,
increased revenue was driven by growth in new technology areas such as microarray and
chemchips, but overall weakness in pharmaceutical industry spending continued. Growth in the
chemical analysis markets was driven by U.S. government spending on homeland defense and Asian
government spending on infrastructure.

Costs and Expenses

The following table shows the percentage point decrease in our life sciences and chemical
analysis business’ costs and expenses as a percentage of its net revenue for 2003 versus 2002, and
2002 versus 2001.

2003 over 2002 2002 over 2001
Decrease as a % of Net Revenue Ppts Change Ppts Change

Cost of products and services .................... — (2
Research and development ...................... — —
Selling, general and administrative ............... — (2)

During 2003, our life sciences and chemical analysis business enacted selective restructuring
actions, which were not a significant part of Agilent’s restructuring plans. Cost of products and
services as a percentage of net revenue was flat for 2003 compared to 2002. Savings from
restructuring programs were offset by increases in wages, restoration of full pay, and information
technology expenses associated with our ERP implementation. Cost of products and services as a
percentage of net revenue was down slightly in 2002 compared to 2001 due to tight expense
management and cost reductions, improved management of inventories and reductions in
infrastructure expenses.

Inventory charges totaled $3 million in 2003 compared to $5 million in 2002 and $12 million in
2001. The slightly increased inventory charge run rate in 2001 compared to 2003 and 2002 was due
to product obsolescence and some consolidation of our warehouses to increase efficiency.

Research and development expenses as a percentage of net revenue were flat across all periods.
We maintained our spending in research and development in line with our strategy of making
investments in our markets. Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net
revenue were flat in 2003 compared to 2002. Savings from restructuring activities was offset by wage
increase, restoration of full pay, and ERP implementation expenses. Decrease in selling, general and
administrative expenses as a percentage of net revenue for 2002 compared to 2001 reflected our
efforts to reduce cost structures and discretionary expenses.

Income from Operations

The increase in income from operations in 2003 compared to 2002 was primarily due to
increase in revenue. Operating profit as a percentage of revenue was flat in 2003 compared to 2002.
Increased expenses from wage increases, restoration of full pay, and ERP implementation was offset
by savings generated from our restructuring activities. The increase in income from operations in
2002 compared to 2001 was primarily due to increased revenue and continued cost controls.
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Healthcare Solutions — Discontinued Operations

Our healthcare solutions business has been classified as a discontinued operation. The table
below shows the results of our healthcare solutions business before general overhead allocations and
net of the costs of divestiture. Results for the year ended October 31, 2001 include operations from
November 1, 2000 to May 31, 2001, the measurement date in accordance with APB No. 30. The net
loss from discontinued operations of $58 million for the two-month period following our May 31,
2001 measurement date was included in the gain from sale of discontinued operations. The after-tax
gain resulting from the sale of our healthcare solutions business including this loss was $646 million.

The following table shows the detailed results of operations of our discontinued healthcare
solutions business for 2001. These results are also included in our consolidated statement of
operations as net income from discontinued operations for the year ended 2001.

Year Ended
October 31,
2001(a)
(in millions)
NEetTeVENUE .. ...\ttt et e e e e e $765
CoStS and EXPEeINSES . ..ottt e 747
Income from discontinued operations ............................ 18
Other income (expense), net . ...ttt 3
Income from discontinued operations beforetaxes ................. 21
Provision fortaxes ......... ... 15
Net income from discontinued operations ......................... $ 6

(a) Includes operations from November 1, 2000 to May 31, 2001, the measurement date.

Financial Condition
Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our financial position remained strong at October 31, 2003, with cash and cash equivalents of
$1,607 million.

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

We used cash from continuing operations of $144 million in 2003 compared to $585 million used
in 2002. We spent $379 million on restructuring activities in 2003, primarily in the form of severance
payments, compared to $235 million in fiscal 2002. We generated cash from continuing operations of
$229 million in the last quarter of 2003 including $82 million spent on restructuring activities. We
expect to generate cash from continuing operations in 2004 even after our investments in property,
plant and equipment.

In 2003, accounts receivables generated cash of $55 million versus cash used of $139 million in
2002. In 2003, accounts payable generated cash of $74 million versus cash used of $89 million in
2002. Cash generated from inventory was $169 million in 2003 compared to $244 million in 2002.
Inventory days on hand were relativity flat as of the end of 2003 and 2002 at 93 and 92 days,
respectively.

We used $91 million of cash in 2003 to fund our U.S. defined benefit plan and contributed $127
million to our international defined benefits plans. Cash contributions in 2003 were approximately
$29 million or 15 percent greater than in 2002. In 2004, we expect our various benefit plan funding
requirements to decrease. Our annual contributions are highly dependent on the relative
performance of our assets versus our projected liabilities, among other factors. If the value of our
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assets increases relative to our future projected obligations, we will make smaller contributions to
maintain our funded status.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142 in the first quarter of 2003, we ceased recording amortization
expense for goodwill. Approximately $326 million of goodwill amortization was recorded in 2002
and none in 2003. This is the primary cause of the decline of depreciation and amortization, which
decreased from $735 million in 2002 to $362 in 2003. We had a non-cash charge of $268 million
related to the adoption of SFAS No. 142 in the first quarter of 2003.

Our provision for income taxes for 2003 included $1.0 billion net tax provision related to a
valuation allowance charge. See Note 4, “Tax Valuation Allowance and Provision (Benefit) for Taxes”
in Item 15 of this report for further information on income taxes and the valuation allowance. Tax
refunds of approximately $131 million were received in 2003. We also paid income taxes in some
jurisdictions, amounting to $122 million in 2003.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for 2003 was $203 million compared to $71 million in 2002.
Investments in property, plant and equipment continue to decrease to $205 million, a decrease of
$96 million. The majority of the property, plant and equipment purchases were related to our
investments in information technology programs such as the ERP and CRM systems and the
development of our website. The total cash outlays for these three initiatives were $209 million in
2003 compared to $281 million in 2002 and $164 million in 2001. We estimate the total cash outlays
in 2004 for these initiatives will be approximately $72 million. In 2002, we received a lease
prepayment of $237 million. Cash used for investments in property, plant and equipment has
decreased driven by our overall strategy of tight spending controls and cash conservation.

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net cash generated by financing activities for 2003 was $110 million compared to $1,243 million
in 2002. In the first quarter of 2002, we borrowed $1,123 million, net of issuance costs, under a
private offering of three percent senior convertible debenture due 2021. In December 2004, we have
an option to redeem the debt in cash. If we choose to redeem the debt, the holders may elect to
receive common stock at the initial conversion price of $32.22 per share in place of cash. Holders of
the debentures have an option to require us to repurchase debentures, in whole or in part, on
December 1 in each of 2006, 2011 and 2016.

Other

We have contractual commitments for non-cancelable operating leases and vendor financing
arrangements with CIT. We provide lease guarantees on these financing arrangements and we have
no other material guarantees or commitments. See Note 16, “Other Accrued Liabilities” in Item 15 of
this report for further information on our non-cancelable operating leases.

Our liquidity is affected by many factors, some of which are based on normal ongoing
operations of our business and some of which arise from fluctuations related to global economics
and markets. Our cash balances are generated and held in many locations throughout the world.
Local government regulations may restrict our ability to move cash balances to meet cash needs
under certain circumstances. We do not currently expect such regulations and restrictions to impact
our ability to pay vendors and conduct operations throughout our global organization.

On February 7, 2003 Standard and Poor’s Rating Services lowered its corporate credit and
senior note ratings for Agilent to “speculative grade” status, from BBB minus to BB. On May 22, 2003
Moody’s Investors Service downgraded our senior unsecured convertible notes rating from Baa2 to
Ba2. Moody’s also assigned our company a first time senior implied rating of Ba2. Both Moody’s and
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S&P attached a “negative outlook” to their ratings. The downgrades do not have any immediate
material impact on our liquidity as we do not have any outstanding credit facilities nor do we
anticipate any third party funding needs in the near future. There are no financial covenants related
to our senior unsecured convertible notes. We believe that our current cash and cash equivalents
and other financing capabilities will be sufficient to satisfy our working capital, capital expenditure
and other liquidity needs for 2004.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of business, we enter into contractual commitments to purchase materials
and components from suppliers in exchange for favorable pricing or more beneficial terms. These
non-cancelable purchase obligations for materials were not material as of October 31, 2003.

Risks, Uncertainties and Other Factors That May Affect Future Results

Our operating results and financial condition could be harmed if the industries into which we
sell our products, remain depressed or do not continue to recover.

The economic downturn resulted in reduced purchasing in many of the markets that we serve
worldwide. The communications industry, especially wireline communications, remains in a
downward cycle characterized by diminished product demand, excess manufacturing capacity and
the increasing erosion of average selling prices. Recently several segments of the semiconductor and
electronics industries stabilized and demonstrated growth in the most recent quarter. However, the
sustainability of this market recovery during the next year is uncertain and demand in our markets
remains volatile so the underlying trend is uncertain. Pricing pressures and competition remain
intense, which could reduce our gross margins and could require us to implement additional cost
cutting measures to sustain profitability.

Visibility into our markets is limited. Any decline in our customers’ markets or in general
economic conditions would likely result in a reduction in demand for our products and services. In
addition, if our customers’ markets decline, we may not be able to collect on outstanding amounts
due to us. Such decline could harm our consolidated financial position, results of operations, cash
flows and stock price, and could limit our ability to reach our goals for sustaining profitability. Also,
in such an environment, pricing pressures could intensify, and if we were unable to respond quickly
enough this could further reduce our gross margins. Finally, we may be required to secure additional
debt or equity financing at some time in the future, and we cannot assure you that such financing
will be available on acceptable terms when required. In particular, on February 7, 2003, Standard
and Poor’s Ratings Services lowered its corporate credit and senior note ratings for us to
“speculative grade” status, from BBB minus to BB, with a negative rating outlook and on May 22,
2003, Moody’s Investor Service downgraded our senior unsecured convertible notes rating from
Baa2 to Ba2 and assigned us a first time senior implied rating of Ba2, with a negative rating outlook.
If these ratings are not upgraded or are further downgraded, we would be required to pay a higher
interest rate for future borrowing needs and we may have stricter terms.

The actions we took in response to the reduced demand for our products and services could
have long-term adverse effects on our business.

Beginning in the third quarter of 2001, our revenue started declining. To scale back our
operations and to reduce our expenses in response to this decreased demand for our products and
services and lower revenue, we reduced our workforce, froze hiring, cut back significantly on our
use of temporary workers and reduced discretionary spending. We also initiated short-term facility
closures to reduce production levels.

In calendar year 2001, we announced plans to reduce our workforce by approximately 8,000
people. This reduction was substantially completed at the end of the fourth quarter of 2002. In
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August 2002, we announced approximately 2,500 additional job cuts and in February 2003 another
4,000, which are substantially complete. About 7,000 employees left the company in fiscal year 2003,
including approximately 1,000 in the fourth quarter, which numbers include workforce reductions,
attrition, divestitures and other departures.

There are several risks inherent in our efforts to transition to a reduced cost structure. These
include the risk that we will not be able to reduce expenditures quickly enough and hold them at a
level necessary to sustain profitability, and that we may have to undertake further restructuring
initiatives that would entail additional charges. For example, prior to the third quarter of 2002, we
had not anticipated the necessity for the further restructuring initiatives to reduce costs by another
$50 million per quarter; nor did we anticipate prior to the first quarter of 2003 that we would need
to expand our restructuring measures to reduce costs by an additional $125 million per quarter. In
addition, our delay in restructuring savings, especially in our non-people-related costs, adversely
affected our results for the second quarter of 2003. If we are not able to reduce our
non-people-related costs in accordance with our previous plans, we may have to further reduce our
workforce. There is also the risk that cost-cutting initiatives will impair our ability to effectively
develop and market products, to remain competitive in the industries in which we compete and to
operate effectively. Each of the above measures could have long-term effects on our business by
reducing our pool of technical talent, decreasing or slowing improvements in our products, making it
more difficult for us to respond to customers, limiting our ability to increase production quickly if
and when the demand for our products increases and limiting our ability to hire and retain key
personnel. These circumstances could cause our income to be lower than they otherwise might be.

Failure to adjust our purchases due to changing market conditions or failure to estimate our
customers’ demand could adversely affect our income.

Our income could be harmed if we are unable to adjust our purchases to market fluctuations,
including those caused by the seasonal or cyclical nature of the markets in which we operate. The
sales of our products and services are dependent, to a large degree, on customers whose industries
are subject to cyclical trends in the demand for their products. During a market upturn, our results
could be materially and adversely impacted if we cannot increase our purchases of supplies or
components parts quickly enough to meet increasing demand for our products. In addition, some of
the parts that require custom design are not readily available from alternate suppliers due to their
unique design or the length of time necessary for design work. Should a supplier cease manufacture
of such a component, we would be forced to reengineer our product. In addition to discontinuing
parts, suppliers may also extend lead times, limit supplies or increase prices due to capacity
constraints or other factors. By contrast, in order to secure components for the production of
products, we may continue to enter into non-cancelable purchase commitments with vendors, or at
times make advance payments to suppliers, which could impact our ability to adjust our inventory to
declining market demands. Prior commitments of this type have resulted in an excess of parts as
demand for our communications, semiconductor and electronics products has decreased. For
example, in the year ended October 31, 2001, we incurred approximately $460 million of inventory-
related charges, and in the twelve months ended October 31, 2002, we incurred approximately
another $74 million in inventory-related charges. If demand for our products is less than we expect,
we may experience additional excess and obsolete inventories and be forced to incur additional
charges.

We are continuing to implement new information systems, and problems with the design or
implementation of these new systems have interfered and could further interfere with our
operations.

We are in the process of implementing new information systems to eventually replace our
current systems, which are largely based on legacy systems that were created when we were a part
of Hewlett-Packard. As a part of this effort, we are implementing new enterprise resource planning
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software and other software applications to manage our business operations. We may not be
successful in implementing these new systems and transitioning data. For example, following the
first phase of our enterprise resource planning software implementation, we experienced difficulties
in providing customer quotes and in acknowledging and shipping customer orders. Although we
believe that we have identified, to a large extent, the problems associated with the implementation
and that the system is now stabilizing, new problems could arise that we have not foreseen. During
2004, we plan to continue implementation at additional sites. As we continue our implementation
and add additional functionality, our operations could be further disrupted. Such disruptions could
adversely impact our ability to do the following in a timely manner: provide quotes, take customer
orders, ship products, provide services and support to our customers, bill and track our customers,
fulfill contractual obligations and otherwise run our business. As a result, our financial position,
results of operations, cash flows and stock price could be adversely affected. In addition, our future
revenue and profit projections could be inaccurate if we have misjudged the realization of potential
future savings from the new systems.

Fluctuations in our quarterly operating results may cause volatility in the price of our
common stock and the senior convertible debentures.

Given the nature of the markets in which we participate, we cannot reliably predict future
revenue and profitability. Our quarterly sales and operating results have become highly dependent
on the volume and timing of orders received during the quarter, which are difficult to forecast. These
results are also dependent on the seasonal and cyclical nature of our end markets such as consumer
electronics, including cell phones. For example, throughout 2002, the continued low levels of orders
significantly affected our ability to efficiently plan production and inventory levels, which led to
fluctuations in operating results. In addition, a significant portion of our operating expenses is
relatively fixed in nature due to our significant sales, research and development and manufacturing
costs. If we cannot adjust spending quickly enough to compensate for a revenue shortfall, this may
magnify the adverse impact of such revenue shortfall on our results of operations. Fluctuations in
our operating results may cause volatility in the price of our common stock and the debentures.

Our income may suffer if demand does not match our manufacturing capacity.

Because we cannot immediately adapt our production capacity and related cost structures to
rapidly changing market conditions, when demand does not meet our expectations, our
manufacturing capacity will likely exceed our production requirements. Currently, we have excess
manufacturing capacity as a result of the decrease in purchasing and capital spending in the
communications, electronics and semiconductor industries. The fixed costs associated with excess
manufacturing capacity have adversely affected, and may continue to adversely affect, our income.
Conversely, if during a general market upturn or an upturn in one of our segments, we cannot
increase our manufacturing capacity to meet product demand, we will not be able to fulfill orders in
a timely manner.

If we do not introduce successful new products and services in a timely manner, our products
and services will become obsolete, and our operating results will suffer.

We generally sell our products in industries that are characterized by rapid technological
changes, frequent new product and service introductions and changing industry standards. In
addition, many of the markets in which we operate are seasonal and cyclical. Without the timely
introduction of new products, services and enhancements, our products and services will become
technologically obsolete over time, in which case our revenue and operating results would suffer.
The success of our new product and service offerings will depend on several factors, including our
ability to:

e properly identify customer needs;

* innovate and develop new technologies, services and applications;
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¢ successfully commercialize new technologies in a timely manner;

* manufacture and deliver our products in sufficient volumes on time;
e differentiate our offerings from our competitors’ offerings;

e price our products competitively; and

e anticipate our competitors’ development of new products, services or technological
innovations.

Dependence on outsourced manufacturing may adversely affect our ability to bring products
to market and damage our reputation and dependence on outsourced information technology
Junction may impair our ability to operate effectively.

As part of efforts to streamline operations and to cut costs, we have been outsourcing and will
continue to evaluate additional outsourcing of manufacturing, mostly lower level assemblies and
sub-assemblies. If our third-party manufacturers fail to perform their obligations in a timely manner
or at satisfactory quality levels, our ability to bring products to market and our reputation could
suffer. The ability of these manufacturers to perform is largely outside of our control. In addition, we
outsourced significant portions of our information technology function. Since information
technology is critical to our operations, any failure to perform on the part of third-party contractors
could impair our ability to operate effectively. Much of our outsourcing takes place in developing
countries, and as a result may be subject to geopolitical uncertainty.

Economic, political and other risks associated with international sales and operations could
adversely affect our results of operations.

Because we sell our products worldwide, our business is subject to risks associated with doing
business internationally. We anticipate that revenue from international operations will continue to
represent a substantial portion of our total revenue. In addition, many of our manufacturing
facilities and suppliers are located outside the U.S. Accordingly, our future results could be harmed
by a variety of factors, including;:

e interruption to transportation flows for delivery of parts to us and finished goods to our
customers;

e changes in foreign currency exchange rates;

e changes in a specific country’s or region’s political, economic or other conditions;

e trade protection measures and import or export licensing requirements;

* negative consequences from changes in tax laws;

e difficulty in staffing and managing widespread operations;

e differing labor regulations;

e differing protection of intellectual property;

¢ unexpected changes in regulatory requirements; and

e geopolitical turmoil, including terrorism and war.

We are in the process of centralizing most of our accounting processes to two locations:
Malaysia and India. These processes include general accounting, accounts payable and accounts
receivables functions. If conditions change in those countries, it may adversely affect operations,
including impairing our ability to pay our suppliers and collect our receivables. Our results of

operations, as well as our liquidity, may be adversely affected and possible delays may occur in
reporting financial results.
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If we are required to account for options under our employee stock plans as a compensation
expense, our net income and net income per share would be significantly reduced.

There has been an increasing public debate about the proper accounting treatment for employee
stock options. Currently we would record compensation expense only in connection with option
grants that have an exercise price below fair market value. For option grants that have an exercise
price at fair market value we calculate compensation expense and disclose the impact on net (loss)
income and net (loss) income per share in a footnote to the consolidated financial statements. It is
possible that future laws and regulations will require us to estimate and record the fair market value
of all stock options as compensation expense in our consolidated statement of operations.

Our business will suffer if we are not able to retain and hire key personnel.

Our future success depends partly on the continued service of our key research, engineering,
sales, marketing, manufacturing, executive and administrative personnel. If we fail to retain and hire
a sufficient number of these personnel, we will not be able to maintain or expand our business.

Since 2001, we have experienced temporary pay reductions, workforce reductions and limited pay
increases, which may harm our long-term ability to retain and hire key personnel. Although the
labor market has changed dramatically within the past two years, and our attrition rate has
remained low, there is still intense competition for certain highly technical specialties in geographic
areas where we continue to recruit.

If sales of custom integrated circuits to Hewlett-Packard continue to decline, our
semiconductor products revenue will suffer, and we are limited in our ability to sell these
integrated circuits to other companies.

Historically, our semiconductor products business has sold custom products to Hewlett-Packard
and has engaged in product development efforts with divisions of Hewlett-Packard.

We have a license agreement with Hewlett-Packard that covers integrated circuit technology
used in custom integrated circuits for Hewlett-Packard’s printers, scanners and computers. The
license agreement provides that, until November 2009 in some cases, we are prohibited, with some
exceptions, from using this integrated circuit technology for the development and sale of integrated
circuits for use in inkjet products, printer products (including printer supplies, accessories and
components), document scanners and computing products to third parties other than Hewlett-
Packard.

Although we have entered into a supply agreement for the sale to Hewlett-Packard of custom
integrated circuits used in printers, scanners and computers, the agreement does not require
Hewlett-Packard to purchase a minimum amount of product from us. As Hewlett-Packard reduces its
purchases of our custom integrated circuits, we are unable to address this reduction through sales of
these kinds of integrated circuits for these types of products to other customers. Our custom
integrated circuit sales to Hewlett-Packard declined by 52 percent and 59 percent in the twelve and
three months ended October 31, 2003, respectively.

Environmental contamination from past operations could subject us to unreimbursed costs
and could harm on-site operations and the future use and value of the properties involved and
environmental contamination caused by ongoing operations could subject us to substantial
liabilities in the future.

Some of our properties are undergoing remediation by Hewlett-Packard for subsurface
contaminations that were known at the time of our separation from Hewlett-Packard.
Hewlett-Packard has agreed to retain the liability for this subsurface contamination, perform the
required remediation and indemnify us with respect to claims arising out of that contamination. The
determination of the existence and cost of any additional contamination caused by us could involve
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costly and time-consuming negotiations and litigation. In addition, Hewlett-Packard will have access
to our properties to perform remediation. While Hewlett-Packard has agreed to minimize
interference with on-site operations at those properties, remediation activities and subsurface
contamination may require us to incur unreimbursed costs and could harm on-site operations and
the future use and value of the properties. We cannot be sure that Hewlett-Packard will continue to
fulfill its indemnification or remediation obligations.

We have agreed to indemnify Hewlett-Packard for any liability associated with contamination
from past operations at all other properties transferred from Hewlett-Packard to us other than those
properties currently undergoing remediation by Hewlett-Packard. While we are not aware of any
material liabilities associated with any potential subsurface contamination at any of those
properties, subsurface contamination may exist, and we may be exposed to material liability as a
result of the existence of that contamination.

Our semiconductor and other manufacturing processes involve the use of substances regulated
under various international, federal, state and local laws governing the environment. We may be
subject to liabilities for environmental contamination, and these liabilities may be substantial.
Although our policy is to apply strict standards for environmental protection at our sites inside and
outside the U.S., even if the sites outside the U.S. are not subject to regulations imposed by foreign
governments, we may not be aware of all conditions that could subject us to liability.

Our customers and we are subject to various governmental regulations, compliance with
which may cause us to incur significant expenses, and if we fail to maintain satisfactory
compliance with certain regulations, we may be forced to recall products and cease their
manufacture and distribution, and we could be subject to civil or criminal penalties.

Our businesses are subject to various significant international, federal, state and local
regulations, including but not limited to health and safety, packaging, product content, labor and
import/ export regulations. These regulations are complex, change frequently and have tended to
become more stringent over time. We may be required to incur significant expenses to comply with
these regulations or to remedy violations of these regulations. Any failure by us to comply with
applicable government regulations could also result in cessation of our operations or portions of our
operations, product recalls or impositions of fines and restrictions on our ability to carry on or
expand our operations. In addition, because many of our products are regulated or sold into
regulated industries, we must comply with additional regulations in marketing our products.

Our products and operations are also often subject to the rules of industrial standards bodies,
like the International Standards Organization, as well as regulation by other agencies such as the
U.S. Federal Communications Commission. We also must comply with work safety rules. If we fail to
adequately address any of these regulations, our businesses could be harmed.

Some of our chemical analysis products are used in conjunction with chemicals whose
manufacture, processing, distribution and notification requirements are regulated by the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency under the Toxic Substances Control Act, and by regulatory bodies
in other countries with laws similar to the Toxic Substances Control Act. We must conform the
manufacture, processing, distribution of and notification about these chemicals to these laws and
adapt to regulatory requirements in all countries as these requirements change. If we fail to comply
with these requirements in the manufacture or distribution of our products, then we could be made
to pay civil penalties, face criminal prosecution and, in some cases, be prohibited from distributing
our products in commerce until the products or component substances are brought into compliance.
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We are subject to laws and regulations governing government contracts, and failure to
address these laws and regulations or comply with government contracts could harm our
business by leading to a reduction in revenue associated with these customers.

We have agreements relating to the sale of our products to government entities and, as a result,
we are subject to various statutes and regulations that apply to companies doing business with the
government. The laws governing government contracts differ from the laws governing private
contracts. For example, many government contracts contain pricing terms and conditions that are
not applicable to private contracts. We are also subject to investigation for compliance with the
regulations governing government contracts. A failure to comply with these regulations might result
in suspension of these contracts, or administrative penalties.

Third parties may claim that we are infringing their intellectual property, and we could suffer
significant litigation or licensing expenses or be prevented from selling products.

While we do not believe that any of our products infringe the valid intellectual property rights of
third parties, we may be unaware of intellectual property rights of others that may cover some of our
technology, products or services. Any litigation regarding patents or other intellectual property
could be costly and time-consuming and could divert our management and key personnel from our
business operations. The complexity of the technology involved and the uncertainty of intellectual
property litigation increase these risks. Claims of intellectual property infringement might also
require us to enter into costly license agreements. However, we may not be able to obtain license
agreements on terms acceptable to us, or at all. We also may be subject to significant damages or
injunctions against development and sale of certain of our products.

We often rely on licenses of intellectual property useful for our businesses. We cannot ensure
that these licenses will be available in the future on favorable terms or at all. In addition, our
position with respect to the negotiation of licenses has changed as a result of our separation from
Hewlett-Packard. In the past, as a part of Hewlett-Packard, we benefited from our access to
Hewlett-Packard’s entire intellectual property portfolio when asserting counterclaims and
negotiating cross-licenses with third parties. Our current patent cross-license agreement with
Hewlett-Packard gives us only a limited ability to sublicense a portion of Hewlett-Packard’s
intellectual property portfolio. Accordingly, we may be unable to obtain agreements on terms as
favorable as we may have been able to obtain if we could have sublicensed Hewlett-Packard’s entire
intellectual property portfolio. Nothing restricts Hewlett-Packard from competing with us other than
some restrictions on the use of patents licensed to Hewlett-Packard by us.

Third parties may infringe our intellectual property, and we may expend significant resources
enforcing our rights or suffer competitive injury.

Our success depends in large part on our proprietary technology. We rely on a combination of
patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, confidentiality provisions and licensing arrangements
to establish and protect our proprietary rights. If we fail to successfully enforce our intellectual
property rights, our competitive position could suffer, which could harm our operating results.

Our pending patent and trademark registration applications may not be allowed, or competitors
may challenge the validity or scope of our patents, copyrights or trademarks. In addition, our
patents may not provide us a significant competitive advantage.

We may be required to spend significant resources to monitor and police our intellectual
property rights. We may not be able to detect infringement and our competitive position may be
harmed before we do so. In addition, competitors may design around our technology or develop
competing technologies. Intellectual property rights may also be unavailable or limited in some
foreign countries, which could make it easier for competitors to capture market share. Furthermore,

40



some intellectual property rights are licensed to other companies, allowing them to compete with us
using that intellectual property.

Our acquisitions, strategic alliances, joint ventures and divestitures may result in financial
results that are different than expected.

In the normal course of business, we frequently engage in discussions with third parties relating
to possible acquisitions, strategic alliances, joint ventures and divestitures. As a result of such
transactions, our financial results may differ from the investment community’s expectations in a
given quarter. In addition, acquisitions and strategic alliances may require us to integrate a different
company culture, management team and business infrastructure. We may have difficulty developing,
manufacturing and marketing the products of a newly-acquired company in a way that enhances the
performance of our combined businesses or product lines to realize the value from expected
synergies. Depending on the size and complexity of an acquisition, our successful integration of the
entity depends on a variety of factors, including:

¢ the retention of key employees;
¢ the management of facilities and employees in different geographic areas;
* the retention of key customers; and

e the integration or coordination of different research and development, product manufacturing
and sales programs and facilities.

A successful divestiture depends on various factors, including our ability to:
* effectively transfer liabilities, contracts, facilities and employees to the purchaser;

¢ identify and separate the intellectual property to be divested from the intellectual property
that we wish to keep; and

e reduce fixed costs previously associated with the divested assets or business.

Any additional impairment of the value of purchased assets and goodwill could have a
significant negative impact on our future operating results.

In addition, if customers of the divested business do not receive the same level of service from
the new owners, this may adversely affect our other businesses to the extent that these customers
also purchase other Agilent products. All of these efforts require varying levels of management
resources, which may divert our attention from other business operations. Further, if market
conditions or other factors lead us to change our strategic direction, we may not realize the expected
value from such transactions. If we do not realize the expected benefits or synergies of such
transactions, our consolidated financial position, results of operations, cash flows and stock price
could be negatively impacted.

If we suffer loss to our factories, facilities or distribution system due to catastrophe, our
operations could be seriously harmed.

Our factories, facilities and distribution system are subject to catastrophic loss due to fire, flood,
terrorism or other natural or man-made disasters. In particular, several of our facilities could be
subject to a catastrophic loss caused by earthquake due to their locations. Our production facilities,
headquarters and Agilent Technologies Laboratories in California, and our production facilities in
Washington and Japan, are all located in areas with above average seismic activity. If any of these
facilities were to experience a catastrophic loss, it could disrupt our operations, delay production,
shipments and revenue and result in large expenses to repair or replace the facility. Although we
carry insurance for property damage and business interruption, we do not carry insurance or
financial reserves for interruptions or potential losses arising from earthquakes or terrorism.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Agilent Technologies, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated
statements of operations, cash flows and stockholders’ equity present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Agilent Technologies, Inc. and its subsidiaries at October 31, 2003 and 2002,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended October 31, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management;
our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets” as of November 1, 2002, and adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities” and changed its method of revenue recognition as of November 1, 2000.

/s/  PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
December 22, 2003
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended October 31,
2003 2002 2001
(in millions, except per
share data)
Net revenue:
Products . . ..ottt $ 5,240 $ 5,234 $7,485
Servicesand other ........... ... ... . i 816 776 911
Total netrevenue ............. .. i e 6,056 6,010 8,396
Costs and expenses:
Costof products ......... ... e e 3,195 3,369 4,613
Costof servicesandother .......... ... ... . ... .. 567 506 475
Total CoStS . ... e 3,762 3,875 5,088
Research and development . ........... ... ... ... ... ... . ... . ... 1,051 1,250 1,358
Selling, general and administrative .......... ... . .. ... . ... .. ... 1,968 2,492 2,728
Total costs and eXpenses . ...ttt 6,781 7,617 9,174
Loss from operations ............. .. .. (725) (1,607) (778)
Other income (eXpense), Net .. ...ttt 35 60 301
Loss from continuing operations before taxes ........................ (690) (1,647) (477
Provision (benefit) fortaxes ......... ... ... . i . 1,100 (525) 71
Loss from continuing operations ............. ... ... .. .. . ... (1,790) (1,022) (406)
Income from discontinued operations (net of taxes of $15 million) ...... — — 6
(Loss) gain from sale of discontinued operations (net of tax benefit of $6
million and expense of $422 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively) . . . — (10) 646
(Loss) income before cumulative effect of accounting changes .......... (1,790) (1,032) 246
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 133 (net of tax benefit of $16
MilliON) . .o e — — (2b)
Cumulative effect of adopting SAB 101 (net of tax benefit of $27
million) .. ... e — — amn
Cumulative effect of adopting SFASNo. 142 . ........ ... ... ..., (268) — —
Net (10SS) INCOME . ..o\ttt et $(2,058) $(1,032) $ 174
Net (loss) income per share — Basic and diluted:
Loss from continuing operations ..................coouueiuieinn.... $ (3.78) $ (2.20) $(0.89)
Income from discontinued operations,net ......................... — — 0.01
(Loss) gain from sale of discontinued operations,net ................ — (0.02) 1.41
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 133, net .................... — —  (0.05)
Cumulative effect of adopting SAB 101, net ........................ — —  (0.10)
Cumulative effect of adopting SFASNo. 142 ........................ (0.57) — —
Net (10SS) iNCOME .. ..ottt $ (4.35) $ (2.22) $ 0.38
Weighted average shares used in computing net (loss) income per share:
Basicand diluted .......... ... . .. 473 465 458

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

October 31,
2003 2002

(in millions, except
par value and

share data)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents . ......... ... .. ... . . . .. $ 1,607 $1,844
Accounts receivable, net . . ... ... e 1,086 1,118
INVENtOTY . . .. e 995 1,184
Current deferred tax assets .. .....v ittt e 10 462
Other current assets . ... .......o.iitiii e e e e e 191 272
Total current assets . .. ........ i e e 3,889 4,880
Property, plant and equipment, net .......... ... .. .. . . . 1,447 1,579
Goodwill and other intangible assets,net ........... ... .. .. .. . . ... 402 685
Long-term deferred tax assets . .........o. ittt e e 27 635
Other asSets . ...t e e 532 424
TOtAl ASSELS . . v v ottt e e et e e $ 6,297 $8,203
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable . ... ... $ 441 $ 451
Employee compensation and benefits ........... ... ... ... .. ... 566 558
Deferred revenue . ... ... ... .. e 262 244
Income and other taxes payable .......... ... ... ... .. . i 326 325
Other accrued Liabilities . ... ... ... . i e 311 403
Total current liabilities . ... ... ... 1,906 1,981
Senior convertible debentures . ........ ... .. 1,150 1,150
Other liabilities .. ... ... . e e 417 445
Total liabilities ... ... e e e 3,473 3,576
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock; $0.01 par value; 125 million shares authorized; none issued and
outstanding . . ... ... e — —
Common stock; $0.01 par value; 2 billion shares authorized; 476 million shares
at October 31, 2003 and 467 million shares at October 31, 2002 issued and
outstanding . . ... .. 5 5
Additional paid-in-capital ........... . .. 4,984 4,872
Accumulated deficit ....... ... .. e (2,159) (101)
Accumulated comprehensive Ioss . ... e ® (149
Total stockholders’ equity . ............c. it 2,824 4,627
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ... ..., $ 6,297 $8,203

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss excluding discontinued operations ........................
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization .................... ... ... .......
Excess and obsolete inventory-related charges ...................
Deferred taxes . .. ...t e
Non-cash restructuring and asset impairment charges .............
Retirement plans curtailment (gain)loss .........................
Net gain on divestitures and sale of assets .......................
Adoption of SFASNo. 133 ... .. ... . .
Adoption of SFASNo. 142 ... ... .. . .

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable . ...... ... .
INVentory .. ... e
Accounts payable .......... ... ..
Employee compensation and benefits .........................
Income and other taxes payable ..............................
Other current assets and liabilities .............. ... ... ... ....
Other long-term assets and liabilities ..........................

Net cash used in operating activities ........................
Cash flows from investing activities:

Investments in property, plant and equipment .....................
Dispositions of property, plant and equipment .....................
Proceeds from (net investment in) lease receivable .................
Proceeds from sale of equity investments ..........................
Purchase of equity investments ................... ... ... ... .. ....
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired ................................
Proceeds from dispositions .............. ... . . ..
Other, net . ... e

Net cash used in investing activities .........................

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of senior convertible debentures, net of issuance costs ......
Issuance of common stock under employee stock plans ..............
Net payments to notes payable and short-term borrowings ...........

Net cash provided by financing activities ....................
Net proceeds and cash provided by discontinued operations ...........

Change in cash and cash equivalents ................................
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .......................

Cash and cash equivalents atend of year ............................

Years Ended October 31,

2003

2002

2001

(in millions)

$(2,058) $(1,022) $ (478)

362 735 734
11 74 460
1,071 (664)  (94)
91 204 161

5 (19) -

®) (18) (447

- - 41
268 - -
55  (139) 933
169 244  (374)
74 (89)  (480)
@21) 83 (69)
63) 137  (472)
(6) 16 ®
©7 (127 2D
(144)  (585) (114)
(205)  (301)  (881)
6 - 633

- 237  (289)

- - 74
€)) (23) @27

- (15)  (904)

- 31 13

_ _ 16
(203) (71) (1,365)
— 1,123 -
112 121 150
(2) @ Adi3
110 1,243 37
- 87 1,616
(237) 674 174
1,844 1,170 996
$ 1,607 $ 1,844 $ 1,170

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

45

©® Annual Report Financials



AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Stock

Retained
Number Additional Income/ Accumulated
of Par Paid-in (Accumulated Comprehensive
Shares Value Capital Deficit) Loss Total
(in millions, except number of shares in thousands)
Balance as of October 31,2000 .................. 453,976 $5  $4,508 $ 757 $ B $ 5,265
Components of comprehensive income:
Netincome ........... ... ..ot - = — 174 — 174
Reclassification adjustment relating to warrants
(net of tax expense of $12 million) ........... - = — — 22 22
Reclassification adjustment relating to derivatives
(net of tax expense of $3 million) ............. - - — — (6) (6)
SFAS No. 133 cumulative transition adjustment . . - = — — 6 6
Change in unrealized loss on investment (net of
tax benefit of $13 million) .................. - - - - (24) (24)
Unrealized gain on derivatives (net of tax
expense of $4 million) ..................... - - - - 7 7
Total comprehensive income . ............... 179
Shares issued for employee benefit plans and
other ... ... . . . . 55694  — 150 — — 150
Issuance of common shares and options for
Acquisitions ........ ... 1,461 — 70 — — 70
Other additional paid in capital ................. - = (5) — — )
Balance as of October 31,2001 .................. 461,031 5 4,723 931 — 5,659
Components of comprehensive loss:
NetloSS . oviii e - = — (1,032) — (1,032)
Reclassification adjustment relating to derivatives
(net of tax expense of $4 million) ............. - = - — @) @)
SFAS No. 133 cumulative transition adjustment . . - - — — (6) (6)
Foreign currency translation . ................. - = — — 7 7
Change in unrealized gain on investment (net of
tax expense of $1 million) .................. - - - - (D (D
Unrealized gain on derivatives (net of tax
expense of $2 million) ..................... - - — — 4 4
Minimum pension liability adjustment ......... - = - — (146) (146)
Total comprehensiveloss ................... (1,181)
Shares issued for employee benefit plans and other . . 5993 — 145 — — 145
Other additional paid-in-capital ................. - = 4 — — 4
Balance as of October 31,2002 .................. 467,024 5 4,872 (101) (149) 4,627
Components of comprehensive loss:
NetloSS . ov i - = — (2,058) — (2,058)
Reclassification adjustment relating to derivatives
(net of tax expense of $2 million) ............. - = - — 4 4
Reclassification adjustment relating to investments
(net of tax expense of $1 million) .............. - - — — 2 2
Foreign currency translation . ................... - = — — 96 96
Unrealized gain on derivatives (net of tax expense
of $7million) .......... ... .. ... ... ... - - - - (13) (13)
Change in minimum pension liability adjustment . .. - = - — 54 54
Total comprehensiveloss ................... (1,915)
Shares issued for employee benefit plans and other . . 9,125 — 112 — — 112
Balance as of October 31,2003 .................. 476,149 $5  $4,984 $(2,159) $ (6 $ 2,824

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Overview

Agilent Technologies, Inc. (“we,” “Agilent” or the “company”), incorporated in Delaware in May
1999, is a global diversified technology organization that provides enabling solutions to technology
markets within the communications, electronics, life sciences and chemical analysis industries. Prior
to our initial public offering of 16 percent of our stock in November 1999, we were a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hewlett-Packard Company (“Hewlett-Packard”). Hewlett-Packard distributed the
remaining 84 percent of our stock to its stockholders on June 2, 2000 in the form of a stock dividend.

On August 1, 2001 we completed the sale of our healthcare solutions business to Koninklijke
Philips Electronics, N.V. The results of the healthcare solutions business are presented as
discontinued operations for all periods in the consolidated financial statements included herein. See
Note 6, “Discontinued Operations”.

Our fiscal year end is October 31. Unless otherwise stated, all years and dates refer to our fiscal
year.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of presentation. The accompanying financial data has been prepared by us pursuant to
the rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Amounts in the
consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended October 31, 2002 and October 31,
2001 have been reclassified to conform to the presentation in 2003.

Principles of consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the
company and our wholly- and majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts
and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of estimates. The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the U.S. requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes.
Management bases its estimates on historical experience and various other assumptions believed to
be reasonable. Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions that may impact the Company in the future, actual results may be different from
the estimates. Our critical accounting policies are those that affect our financial statements
materially and involve difficult, subjective or complex judgments by management. Those policies are
revenue recognition, restructuring and impairment charges, inventory valuation, retirement and
post retirement plan assumptions, valuation of long-lived assets and accounting for income taxes.

Revenue recognition. We enter into agreements to sell products (hardware and/or software),
services and other arrangements (multiple element arrangements) that include combinations of
products and services.

We recognize revenue, net of trade discounts and allowances, provided that (1) persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists (2) delivery has occurred (3) the price is fixed or determinable
and (4) collectibility is reasonably assured. Delivery is considered to have occurred when title and
risk of loss have transferred to the customer, for products, or when the service has been provided.
We consider the price to be fixed or determinable when the price is not subject to refund or
adjustments. We consider arrangements with extended payment terms not to be fixed or
determinable and accordingly we defer revenue until amounts become due. At the time of the
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

transaction, we evaluate the creditworthiness of our customers to determine the appropriate timing
of revenue recognition.

Product revenue. Our product revenue is generated predominantly from the sales of various
types of test equipment and semiconductor components. Software is embedded in many of our test
equipment, but the software component is generally considered incidental. Product revenue,
including sales to resellers and distributors, is reduced for estimated returns and distributor price
protection, when appropriate. For sales or arrangements that include customer-specified acceptance
criteria, including those where acceptance is required upon achievement of performance milestones,
revenue is recognized after the acceptance criteria have been met. For products that include
installation, if the installation meets the criteria to be considered a separate element, product
revenue is recognized upon delivery, and recognition of installation revenue is delayed until the
installation is complete. Otherwise, neither the product nor the installation revenue is recognized
until the installation is complete.

Where software is licensed separately, revenue is recognized when the software is delivered and
title and risk of loss have been transferred to the customer or, in the case of electronic delivery of
software, when the customer is given access to the licensed software programs or over a license
period contractually agreed to with the customer. We also evaluate whether collection of the
receivable is probable, the fee is fixed or determinable and whether any other undelivered elements
of the arrangement exist, on which a portion of the total fee would be allocated based on
vendor-specific objective evidence. Revenue from software licensing was not material for all periods
presented.

Service revenue. Revenue from services includes extended warranty, customer support,
consulting, training and education. Service revenue is deferred and recognized over the contractual
period or as services are rendered and accepted by the customer. For example, customer support
contracts are recognized ratably over the contractual period, while training revenue is recognized as
the training is provided to the customer. In addition the four revenue recognition criteria described
above must be met before service revenue is recognized.

Multiple element arrangements. We use objective evidence of fair value to allocate revenue to
elements in multiple element arrangements and recognize revenue when the criteria for revenue
recognition have been met for each element. In the absence of objective evidence of fair value of a
delivered element, we allocate revenue to the fair value of the undelivered elements and the residual
revenue to the delivered elements. The price charged when an element is sold separately generally
determines fair value.

Deferred revenue. Deferred revenue is primarily comprised of advanced billing and customer
deposits for service, support and maintenance agreements.

SAB 101 “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements”. In December 1999, the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101,
“Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements” (“SAB 101”). During the fourth quarter of 2001, the
company adopted SAB 101 retroactive to the beginning of the year. The cumulative effect of the
adoption resulted in a charge to 2001 net income of $47 million (net of income taxes of $27 million)
or $0.10 per basic and diluted share. For the year ended October 31, 2001, the net impact on 2001
net revenues including amounts deferred at October 31, 2001 was an increase of $67 million of
revenue and $29 million of cost of products which were included in the cumulative effect
adjustment.
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Warranty. Our warranty terms typically extend 90 days after delivery for on-site repairs and
one to three years for products returned to Agilent for repair. Our warranty is accounted for in
accordance with Statement of Financial Standards No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies” (“SFAS No.
57), such that an accrual is made when it is estimable and probable based on historical experience.
We accrue for warranty costs based on historical trends in warranty charges as a percentage of gross
product shipments. A provision for estimated future warranty costs is recorded as cost of products
when revenue is recognized and the resulting accrual is reviewed regularly and periodically adjusted
to reflect changes in warranty cost estimates. See Note 13, “Guarantees”.

Variable interest entities. On February 1, 2003, we adopted FASB Interpretation No. 46,
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“FIN 46”), which requires that we consolidate variable
interest entities in which we are the primary beneficiary. The primary beneficiary is generally
defined as having the majority of the risks and rewards arising from the VIE. We have evaluated and
will continue to assess our relationships with our equity investments, joint ventures and other
entities that we have relationships with that may be deemed a variable interest entity. The adoption
of FIN 46 did not have any material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

Stock-based compensation. We account for stock-based awards to employees and directors
using the intrinsic value method of accounting in accordance with Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25 “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”). Under the intrinsic value
method, we record compensation expense related to stock options in our consolidated statement of
operations when the exercise price of our employee stock-based award is less than the market price
of the underlying stock on the date of the grant. See Note 5, “Stock-Based Compensation” for the
impact on net loss and net loss per share if we had applied the fair value recognition provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” (“SFAS No. 123”) to stock-based incentives.

Pro forma information. Pro forma net loss and net loss per share information, as required by
SFAS No. 123, has been determined as if we had accounted for all employee stock options granted,
including shares issuable to employees under the 423(b) Plan and the Option Exchange Program
described above, under SFAS No. 123’s fair value method. The pro forma effect of recognizing
compensation expense in accordance with SFAS No. 123 is as follows:

2003 2002 2001

(in millions, except
per share data)

Net (loss) income —asreported ..................cuoun... $(2,0568) $(1,032) $ 174
SFAS No. 123 based compensation (1) and (2) ............. (328) 471 (798)
Taximpact (3) ... (613) 160 295
Net1oss — pro forma . ..............uuueiiiiieenennana.. $(2,999) $(1,343) $(329)
Basic and diluted net (loss) income per share — as

TePOTEEd . o o\ttt $ (4.35) $ (2.22) $0.38
Basic and diluted net loss per share — pro forma ........... $ (6.34) $ (2.89) $(0.72)

Weighted average shares used in computing net (loss)
income and pro forma net (loss) income per share:

Basicand diluted ............ .. ... ... . 473 465 458
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AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

(1) The pro forma results for 2003 include approximately $24 million of compensation expense
relating to our Option Exchange Program. The remainder of the expense for those periods
related to options granted over the past four years.

(2) No tax benefits were attributed to the SFAS No. 123 based compensation during 2003 as we
have provided substantially a full valuation allowance on our net deferred tax assets.

(3) Due to the valuation allowance provided on our net deferred tax assets as described in Note 4,
“Tax Valuation Allowance and Provision (Benefit) for Taxes”, we have also established a
valuation allowance for the incremental amount of tax benefits which were determined for
purposes of reporting our historical SFAS No. 123 pro forma results. As a result, $613 million of
accumulated tax benefits recognized between 1996 and 2002 for pro forma reporting purposes
have been essentially eliminated in 2003.

The fair value of options granted was estimated at grant date using a Black-Scholes option-
pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions:

2003 2002 2001
Risk-free interest rate for options ...... 1.15-3.31% 2.9% 4.25%
Risk-free interest rate for the 423(b)

Plan ... ... ... ... . 1.1-1.77% 1.89-5.87% 3.68-6.04%
Dividend yield ....................... 0% 0% 0%
Volatility for options . ................. 60-80% 63% 77%
Volatility for the 423(b) Plan ........... 63-80% 47-77% 7%
Expected option life .................. 3.5-5.5 years 5.5 years 5.5 years
Expected life for the 423(b) Plan ....... 6 months-2 years 6 months-2 years 6 months-2 years

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to
expense over the vesting period of the options and amortized over six months to two years for the
423(b) Plan.

Shipping and handling costs. Our shipping and handling costs charged to customers are
included in net revenue and the associated expense is recorded in total costs for all periods
presented.

Goodwill and purchased intangible assets. On November 1, 2002, we adopted SFAS No. 142
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS No. 142”), which requires that goodwill no longer be
amortized but reviewed annually (or more frequently if impairment indicators arise) for
impairment. Subsequently, we were required to evaluate our existing goodwill and intangible assets
and make any necessary reclassification in order to comply with the new criteria in SFAS No. 142.

As part of our initial assessment of goodwill impairment, we used the fair value measurement
requirement, rather than the previously required undiscounted cash flows approach. As a result of
that assessment, we recorded a transitional impairment loss from the implementation of SFAS No.
142 as a change in accounting principle in the first quarter of 2003. The fair value of the reporting
units was determined primarily by the income approach, which estimates the fair value based on the
future discounted cash flows. The first step evaluation of reporting units on a fair value basis, as
required by SFAS No. 142, indicated that an impairment existed in the communications solutions
reporting unit within our test and measurement business. The revenue forecasts of the

50



AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

communications solutions reporting unit have been impacted by the prolonged economic downturn
in the communications test markets. As such, we were required to perform the second step analysis
to determine the amount of the impairment loss for the reporting unit that failed the first step test.
The second step analysis consisted of comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s
goodwill with the carrying amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill, with an impairment charge
resulting from any excess of the carrying value of the reporting unit’s goodwill over the implied fair
value of the reporting unit’s goodwill. Based upon this evaluation, we recorded an impairment
charge of $268 million, representing 100 percent of the reporting unit’s goodwill and approximately
44 percent of total consolidated goodwill recorded as of November 1, 2002. We also reclassified
approximately $6 million of intangible assets associated with workforce-in-place to goodwill on
November 1, 2002. The adoption of SFAS No. 142 had a material impact on our results of operations
because goodwill is no longer being amortized. Amortization of goodwill was $326 million for the
year ended October 31, 2002 and $307 million for the year ended October 31, 2001.

Net loss and basic and diluted net loss per share for the years ended October 31, 2002 and
October 31, 2001 are disclosed below, adjusted to remove goodwill amortization, certain intangibles
amortization and their related tax impacts, as if SFAS No. 142 had applied to those periods.

For the Years

Ended
October 31,
2002 2001

Reported (loss) income before cumulative effect of accounting changes ........... $(1,032) $ 246
Add back: Goodwill and workforce-in-place amortization, net .................... 320 296
Adjusted (loss) income before cumulative effect of accounting changes ............ $ (712) $542
Per share data — Basic and diluted reported (loss) income before cumulative effect

of accounting changes pershare ....... ... ... ... . . . . i $ (2.22) $0.54
Adjustment for goodwill and workforce-in-place amortization, net ................ 0.69 0.65
Adjusted (loss) income before cumulative effect of accounting changes per share ... $ (1.53) $1.19
Reported net (10SS) INCOME . .. .o\ \ ittt et et et et $(1,032) $174
Add back: Goodwill and workforce-in-place amortization, net .................... 320 296
Adjusted net (Ioss) income . . ... ... e $ (712) $470
Per share data — Basic and diluted reported net (loss) income per share ........... $ (2.22) $0.38
Adjustment for goodwill and workforce-in-place amortization, net ................ 0.69 0.65
Adjusted net (10sS) income per SNAre . .. ..........cooiiier i $ (1.563) $1.03
Weighted average shares used in per share computations above—Basic and

diluted: . ... 465 458

Purchased intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is
computed using the straight-line method over the economic lives of the respective assets, generally
three to five years.

Advertising. Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and amounted to $44 million in 2003,
$81 million in 2002 and $115 million in 2001.
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Taxes on income. Income tax expense or benefit is based on income or loss before taxes.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized principally for the expected tax consequences of
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts.
Tax expense is also affected by any valuation allowance against deferred tax assets.

Net (loss) income per share. Basic net (loss) income per share is computed by dividing net
(loss) income — the numerator — by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding — the denominator — during the period excluding the dilutive effect of stock options,
other employee stock plans and our senior convertible debentures. Diluted net (loss) income per
share gives effect to all potentially dilutive common stock equivalents outstanding during the period.
In computing diluted net (loss) income per share, the average stock price for the period is used in
determining the number of shares assumed to be purchased from the proceeds of stock option
exercises. Diluted net (loss) income per share for 2003, 2002 and 2001 excludes the potentially
dilutive effect of common stock equivalents as their effect is antidilutive.

Cash and cash equivalents. We classify investments as cash equivalents if their original
maturity is three months or less. Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.

Fair value of financial instruments. The carrying values of certain of our financial
instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accrued compensation and other accrued
liabilities approximate fair value because of their short maturities. The fair values of investments are
determined using quoted market prices for those securities or similar financial instruments.

Concentration of credit risk. We sell the majority of our products through our direct sales
force. No single customer accounted for 10 percent or more of the combined accounts receivable
balance at October 31, 2003 and 2002. Credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is generally
diversified due to the large number of entities comprising our customer base and their dispersion
across many different industries and geographies. We perform ongoing credit evaluations of our
customers’ financial conditions, and require collateral, such as letters of credit and bank guarantees,
in certain circumstances.

Derivative instruments. Effective November 1, 2000, we adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended by SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for
Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities” (“SFAS No. 133”). SFAS No. 133, as
amended, establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments, and requires
that all derivatives be recognized as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and carried at
fair value.

If derivative instruments are designated and qualify as a fair value hedge, changes in value of
the derivative are recognized in income in the current period, along with the offsetting gain or loss
on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk. If derivative instruments are designated and
qualify as a cash flow hedge, changes in the value of the effective portion of the derivative
instrument are recognized in other comprehensive loss, a component of stockholders’ equity. These
amounts are reclassified and recognized in income when either the forecasted transaction occurs or
it becomes probable the forecasted transaction will not occur. Changes in the fair value of the
ineffective portion of derivative instruments are recognized in income in the current period.
Ineffectiveness in 2003, 2002 and 2001 was not significant.

The adoption of SFAS No. 133 on November 1, 2000 resulted in a cumulative pre-tax reduction
to income of $41 million ($25 million after tax) and a pre-tax increase in other comprehensive
income of $10 million.
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We enter into foreign exchange contracts, primarily forward contracts and purchased options,
to hedge exposures to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. These contracts are designated at
inception as hedges of the related foreign currency exposures, which include committed and
anticipated intercompany transactions and assets and liabilities that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the subsidiary which has the exposure. To achieve hedge
accounting, contracts must reduce the foreign currency exchange rate risk otherwise inherent in the
amount and duration of the hedged exposures and comply with established risk management
policies; hedging contracts generally mature within twelve months. We do not use derivative
financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

When hedging anticipated cash flow exposure, foreign exchange contract expirations are set so
as to occur in the same period that the goods are expected to be sold to third parties, allowing
realized gains and losses on the contracts to be recognized into cost of goods sold. When hedging
balance sheet exposure, gains and losses on foreign exchange contracts are recognized in other
income (expense), net in the same period as the occurrence of gains and losses on remeasurement of
the non-functional currency denominated assets and liabilities. The gains and losses, which have not
been material, are included in cash flows from operating activities in the consolidated statement of
cash flows.

We may also, from time to time, acquire warrants to purchase securities of other companies as
part of strategic relationships.

Inventory. Inventory is valued at standard cost which approximates actual cost computed on a
first-in, first-out basis, not in excess of market value. We assess the valuation of our inventory on a
quarterly basis and periodically write down the value for estimated excess and obsolete inventory
based on estimates about future demand and actual usage.

Property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation. Additions, improvements and major renewals are capitalized,
maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are expensed as incurred. When assets are retired or
disposed of, the assets and related accumulated depreciation and amortization are removed from
our general ledger and the resulting gain or loss is reflected in the consolidated statement of
operations. Buildings and improvements are depreciated over fifteen to forty years and machinery
and equipment over three to ten years. The straight-line method of depreciation was adopted for all
property, plant and equipment placed into service after November 1, 2001. The effect of this change
on the net loss for 2003 and 2002 was insignificant. For property, plant and equipment placed into
service prior to November 1, 2001, depreciation is provided using accelerated methods, principally
over fifteen to forty years for buildings and improvements and three to ten years for machinery and
equipment, including equipment leased to customers under operating leases. Depreciation of
leasehold improvements is provided using the straight-line method over the life of the asset or the
term of the lease, whichever is shorter.

Capitalized software. We capitalize certain internal and external costs incurred to acquire or
create internal use software in accordance with AICPA Statement of Position 98-1, “Accounting for
the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” Capitalized software is
included in property, plant and equipment and is depreciated over three to five years when
development is complete.

Impairment of long-lived assets. We continually monitor events and changes in circumstances
that could indicate carrying amounts of long-lived assets, including intangible assets, may not be
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recoverable. When such events or changes in circumstances occur, we assess the recoverability of
long-lived assets by determining whether the carrying value of such assets will be recovered through
undiscounted expected future cash flows. If the total of the undiscounted future cash flows is less
than the carrying amount of those assets, we recognize an impairment loss based on the excess of
the carrying amount over the fair value of the assets. See Note 3, “New Accounting Pronouncements”
for further discussion.

Foreign currency translation. Effective November 1, 2001, we have determined that the
functional currency for many of our subsidiaries outside the U.S. has changed from the U.S. dollar to
local currency based on the criteria of SFAS No. 52 “Foreign Currency Translation”. This change did
not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position as of November 1, 2001. For those
subsidiaries that operate in a local currency functional environment, all assets and liabilities are
translated into U.S. dollars using current exchange rates; revenue and expenses are translated using
average exchange rates in effect during each period. Resulting translation adjustments are reported
as a separate component of accumulated comprehensive loss in stockholders’ equity.

For those subsidiaries that operate in a U.S. dollar functional environment, foreign currency
assets and liabilities are remeasured into U.S. dollars at current exchange rates except for inventory,
property, plant and equipment, other assets and deferred revenue, which are remeasured at
historical exchange rates. Revenue and expenses are generally translated at average exchange rates
in effect during each period, except for those expenses related to balance sheet amounts that are
remeasured at historical exchange rates. Gains or losses from foreign currency remeasurement are
included in consolidated net (loss) income.

For our subsidiaries which are local currency functional, the effect of foreign currency exchange
rate fluctuations during 2003 on our consolidated cash and cash equivalents balance was not
material.

3. New Accounting Pronouncements
Adoption of New Pronouncements.

On November 1, 2002, we adopted SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets,” (“SFAS No. 144”), which amends existing accounting guidance on asset
impairment and provides a single accounting model for long-lived assets to be disposed of. Among
other provisions, the standard changes the criteria for classifying an asset as held-for-sale. The
standard also broadens the scope of businesses to be disposed of that qualify for reporting as
discontinued operations, and changes the timing of recognizing losses on such operations. The initial
impact of adopting SFAS No. 144 was not material to our consolidated financial statements.

On January 1, 2003, we adopted SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or
Disposal Activities,” (“SFAS No. 146”), which nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) 94-3,
“Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an
Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring)”. SFAS No. 146 requires that a liability
be recognized for restructuring costs only when the liability is incurred, that is, when it meets the
definition of a liability in the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASB’s”) conceptual
framework. SFAS No. 146 also establishes fair value as the objective for initial measurement of
liabilities related to exit or disposal activities and is effective for exit or disposal activities that are
initiated after December 31, 2002. The adoption of SFAS No. 146 did not have a material impact on
our results of operations, financial position or cash flows, although it has impacted the timing of
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recognition of costs associated with restructuring activities in our 2003 Plan. (See Note 14,
“Restructuring and Asset Impairment” of this report.)

On January 1, 2003, we adopted FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others”
(“FIN 45”). FIN 45 requires that upon issuance of a guarantee, we must disclose and may be required
to recognize a liability for the fair value of the obligation we assume under that guarantee. The initial
recognition and measurement requirement of FIN 45 is effective for guarantees issued or modified
after December 31, 2002. As of October 31, 2003, there were no material guarantees issued or
modified by us after December 31, 2002. The disclosure requirements of FIN 45, applicable to our
product warranty liability and certain guarantees issued before December 31, 2002, were effective
for our first quarter report and all subsequent quarterly and annual reports. As of October 31, 2003
and October 31, 2002, our product warranty liability was $71 million and $72 million (see Note 13,
“Guarantees” of this report).

On February 1, 2003, we adopted FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities” (“FIN 46”). FIN 46 addresses consolidation by business enterprises of variable
interest entities. Under this interpretation, certain entities known as Variable Interest Entities
(“VIEs”) must be consolidated by the primary beneficiary of the entity. The primary beneficiary is
generally defined as having the majority of the risks and rewards arising from the VIE. For VIEs in
which a significant (but not majority) variable interest is held, certain disclosures are required. We
have not entered into any arrangements or made any investments which qualify as a VIE in the
period from January 31, 2003 to October 31, 2003. Effective August 1, 2003, we have also applied the
accounting and disclosure rules set forth in FIN 46 for VIEs acquired before January 31, 2003. The
adoption of FIN 46 did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations or cash flows.

On February 1, 2003, we adopted SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation —
Transition and Disclosure — an amendment of SFAS No. 123” (“SFAS No. 148”). This statement
amends SFAS No. 123, to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair
value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, this
statement amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require disclosures in both
annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. The adoption of SFAS No. 148
did not have any impact to our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows as
our adoption of this standard involved disclosures only; see Note 5, “Stock-Based Compensation” of
this report for those disclosures.

On July 1, 2003, we adopted SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS No. 149”). SFAS No. 149 amends and clarifies
accounting for derivative instruments including certain derivative instruments embedded in other
contracts and hedging activities under SFAS No. 133. The adoption of SFAS No. 149 did not have any
impact to our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

On August 1, 2003, we adopted EITF Issue 00-21, “Revenue Arrangements with Multiple
Deliverables,” (“EITF 00-21”), which requires companies to determine whether an arrangement
involving multiple deliverables contains more than one unit of accounting. We have applied the
provisions of EITF 00-21 for sales arrangements entered into after August 1, 2003. In applying
EITF 00-21, revenue arrangements with multiple deliverables should be divided into separate units
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of accounting if the deliverables in the arrangement meet certain criteria. Arrangement
consideration should be allocated among the separate units of accounting based on their relative fair
values. The adoption of EITF 00-21 did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

On August 1, 2003, we adopted SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments
with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity” (“SFAS No. 150”). SFAS No. 150 establishes
standards for the classification and measurement of financial instruments with characteristics of
both liabilities and equity. The adoption of SFAS No. 150 did not have a material impact on our
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

4. Tax Valuation Allowance and Provision (Benefit) for Taxes

Our provision for taxes included a non-cash charge recorded during the third quarter of 2003 to
establish a valuation allowance of $1.4 billion, which included approximately $0.4 billion of tax
benefits recorded during the first six months of 2003 resulting in approximately $1.0 billion net tax
provision recorded within provision for taxes for 2003; the valuation allowance essentially
eliminated our net deferred tax assets. During the fourth quarter of 2003, we maintained a full
valuation allowance on our net deferred tax assets in the impacted jurisdictions. The valuation
allowance was determined in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 109 (“SFAS No. 109”), “Accounting for Income Taxes,” which requires an assessment
of both positive and negative evidence when determining whether it is more likely than not that
deferred tax assets are recoverable; such assessment is required on a jurisdiction by jurisdiction
basis. Cumulative losses incurred in the U.S. and the U.K. jurisdictions in recent years represented
sufficient negative evidence under SFAS No. 109 and accordingly, a full valuation allowance was
recorded against deferred tax assets for these jurisdictions. We intend to maintain a full valuation
allowance on the U.S. and U.K. jurisdictions until sufficient positive evidence exists to support
reversal of the valuation allowance.

The provision (benefit) for income taxes is comprised of:

Years Ended October 31,
2003 2002 2001(a)
(in millions)

U.S. federal taxes from continuing operations:

CUITENE oottt e e e e e e et et $ - $ - $ 22

Deferred . ... 876 (01 (105)
Non-U.S. taxes from continuing operations:

CUITENt .. 84 142 (38)

Deferred . ... 64 (113) 20
State taxes from continuing operations, net of federal

benefit .. ... ... . 76 (53) 13)
Total from continuing operations ........................... $1,100  $(525) $(114)

(a) The benefit for income taxes in 2001 includes $71 million tax benefit from operations, $16
million tax benefit from adoption of SFAS No. 133 and $27 million tax benefit from adoption of
SAB 101.
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The significant components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities included on the
consolidated balance sheet are:

October 31,
2003 2002
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Tax Tax Tax Tax
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
(in millions)
INVENtOTY . ..o v vt $ 192 $ — $ 175 $ 4
Property, plant and equipment .............. 69 — 72 8
Warranty reserves ...............coeueinn... 26 — 30 3
Retiree medical benefits .................... 33 — 51 —
Other retirement benefits ................... 40 45 78 44
Employee benefits, other than retirement . . . .. 132 15 242 9
Net operating losses and credit
carryforwards ........... ... .. .. ... 1,236 — 641 —
Unremitted income of foreign subsidiaries . ... — 200 — 238
Other ........ .. . . i, 108 106 134 33
Subtotal .......... ... ... .. ... . 1,836 366 1,423 339
Tax valuation allowance .................... (1,456) — — —

$ 380 $366 $1,423 $339

At October 31, 2003, we had federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $2,347
million and tax credit carryforwards of approximately $273 million. The net operating loss and tax
credit carryforwards will expire beginning in 2004 through 2023 if not utilized. In addition, we have
California net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $441 million, which will expire
beginning in 2005 through 2013 if not utilized. Included in the total net operating loss carryforwards
are net operating losses of $12 million related to employee stock option exercises, the benefits of
which will increase additional paid in capital when realized.

The differences between the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate and our effective tax rate are:

Years Ended October 31,

2003 2002 2001
U.S. federal statutory income taxrate ....................... (35.0)% (35.0)% (35.0)%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit .................... (3.1) (3.5) (2.2)
Lower rates in other jurisdictions,net ...................... (5.2) 2.1 (6.1)
Goodwill . ... .. 2.7 9.1 19.8
Credits . ..ot (2.2) 4.1) (2.0)
Other, net . ... ... (2.9 1.6 6.5
Valuation allowance .............. ... . i, 205.2 — —

159.5%  (34.0)% (19.0)%
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The domestic and foreign components of (loss) income from continuing operations before taxes
are:

Years Ended October 31,

2003 2002 2001
(in millions)
U.S. continuing operations . .. ............couuuiineeuneenn... $(522) $(1,804) $(487)
Non-U.S. continuing operations ............................ (168) 257 (105)

$(690) $(1,647) $(592)

As a result of certain employment and capital investment actions undertaken by us, income
from manufacturing and other activities in certain countries is subject to reduced tax rates, or is
wholly exempt from taxes, for tax years through 2010. The income tax benefits attributable to the tax
status of subsidiaries in these countries were estimated to be $36 million in 2003, $33 million in
2002 and $37 million in 2001.

We have not provided for U.S. federal income and foreign withholding taxes on $1,072 million of
non-U.S. subsidiaries’ undistributed income as of October 31, 2003 because we intend to reinvest
such income indefinitely. Where excess cash has accumulated in our non-U.S. subsidiaries and it is
advantageous for tax or foreign exchange reasons, subsidiary income is remitted.

We are subject to ongoing tax examinations and assessments in various jurisdictions. The
Internal Revenue Service is currently auditing our federal income tax returns for fiscal years 2000 to
2002. We believe the ultimate outcome of the tax audits will not have a material adverse impact on
the company’s financial position or results of operations.

5. Stock-Based Compensation

Employee stock purchase plans. Prior to February 2, 2000, virtually all of our employees were
able to contribute up to ten percent of their base compensation to the quarterly purchase of Hewlett-
Packard’s common stock under the Hewlett-Packard Stock Purchase Plan (the “Hewlett-Packard
Plan”). Under the provisions of the Hewlett-Packard Plan, employee contributions to purchase
shares were partially matched with shares contributed by Hewlett-Packard. These matching shares
generally vested over two years. After February 2, 2000, we implemented the Agilent Technologies,
Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Legacy Plan”) that was similar to the Hewlett-Packard Plan
and allowed eligible employees to contribute up to ten percent of their base compensation to the
purchase of our common stock. Under the provisions of the Legacy Plan, employee contributions
were partially matched with shares contributed by us. These matching shares also generally vested
over two years. On June 2, 2000, all unvested matching shares of Hewlett-Packard stock held by our
employees were forfeited and replaced by our common stock of equivalent value. Compensation
expense for the matching provision for both the Hewlett-Packard Plan and the Legacy Plan was
measured using the fair value of shares on the date of purchase by Hewlett-Packard for the Hewlett-
Packard Plan and by Agilent for the Legacy Plan and was recognized over the two-year vesting
period. The remainder of the authorized shares are not expected to be issued as the Legacy Plan is
no longer functioning.

Effective October 31, 2000, purchases and contributions under the Legacy Plan ceased. All
unvested matching shares under the Legacy Plan maintained their original vesting terms based on

the employee’s continued employment. Vesting of these matching shares was completed by
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October 31, 2002. Compensation expense under both plans was not material in 2003, $16 million in
2002 and $28 million in 2001. At October 31, 2003, 9,802,100 shares of our common stock had been
authorized for issuance under the Legacy Plan and 3,426,716 of these shares had been issued.

Effective November 1, 2000, we adopted a new plan, the Agilent Technologies, Inc. Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (the “423(b) Plan”). Under the provisions of the 423(b) Plan, eligible employees
may contribute up to ten percent of their base compensation to purchase shares of our common
stock at 85 percent of the lower of the fair market value at the entry date or the purchase date as
defined by the 423(b) Plan. As of October 31, 2003, 38,860,247 shares of our common stock were
authorized for issuance under the 423(b) Plan and 13,636,414 of these shares have been issued.

Incentive compensation plans. On September 17, 1999, we adopted the Agilent Technologies,
Inc. 1999 Stock Plan (the “Stock Plan”) and subsequently reserved 67,800,000 shares of our common
stock for issuance under the Stock Plan. In addition, on May 31, 2000, 19,000,000 shares of our
common stock were registered pursuant to converted stock options previously granted by Hewlett-
Packard Company. In February 2001, our stockholders approved an additional 45,000,000 shares of
our common stock for issuance under the Stock Plan. These shares were subsequently registered in
May 2002. Stock options, stock appreciation rights, stock awards and cash awards may be granted
under the Stock Plan. Options granted under the Stock Plan may be either “incentive stock options,”
as defined in section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code, or non-statutory. Options generally vest at a
rate of 25 percent per year over a period of four years from the date of grant and have a maximum
term of ten years. The exercise price for incentive stock options is generally not less than 100
percent of the fair market value of our common stock on the date the stock award is granted.

On March 4, 2003, our shareholders approved an amendment to the Stock Plan. The amendment
permits the company to offer a one-time exchange of options issued under the Stock Plan having an
exercise price greater than $25.00 for a lesser number of options to be granted at least six months
and one day from the cancellation of surrendered options (the “Option Exchange Program”). On
May 20, 2003, we implemented the Option Exchange Program by filing a Tender Offer Statement
with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, which allowed eligible employees a one-time
opportunity to exchange options to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock, whether
vested or unvested, which were granted under our Stock Plan, with exercise prices greater than
$25.00 per share. The Option Exchange Program was offered from May 20, 2003 to June 18, 2003 and
options to purchase approximately 26 million shares were exchanged, with an average exercise price
of $51.00. As a result, we expect to issue options representing approximately 14 million shares by
the end of the first quarter of 2004. Under the provisions of APB 25 no compensation expense has
been, or will be, recognized in our consolidated statement of operations for the issuance of the
replacement options.

At October 31, 2003, shares registered and available for option and restricted stock grants were
75,861,602. Compensation expense for discounted options, stock appreciation rights and restricted
stock is recognized based on the intrinsic value method defined by APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB No. 25”). Any compensation expense is recognized ratably
over the associated service period, which is generally the vesting period. The compensation expense
related to discounted options, stock appreciation rights and restricted stock was $6 million in 2003,
$7 million in 2002 and $8 million in 2001.

Effective June 2000, a majority of the Hewlett-Packard awards held by our employees were
converted to Agilent awards of equivalent value. The conversion of Hewlett-Packard options into
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Agilent options was done in such a manner that (1) the aggregate intrinsic value of the options
immediately before and after the exchange was the same, (2) the ratio of the exercise price per
option to the market value per option was not reduced, and (3) the vesting provisions and options
period of the replacement Agilent options were the same as the original vesting terms and option
period of the Hewlett-Packard options.

The following table summarizes option activity for the years ended October 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001:

Weighted
Average
Shares Exercise Price
(in thousands)

Outstanding as of October 31,2000 ....................... 46,134 $48
Granted .. ...t 20,814 $40
EXercised ... ...t (1,114) $20
Cancelled . . ...t (1,879) $72
Outstanding as of October 31,2001 ....................... 63,955 $46
Granted .. ... 20,152 $25
EXercised ... ...t (1,128) $12
Cancelled . . ...t (9,140) $51
Outstanding as of October 31,2002 ....................... 73,839 $40
Granted .. ...t 13,152 $16
EXercised ... ...t (1,768) $12
Cancelled under Option Exchange Program ................ (25,882) $51
Other Cancellations . ..............oiiuneiiiinennnnn... (7,975) $41
Outstanding as of October 31,2003 ....................... 51,366 $29

The following table summarizes options exercisable and the fair value of options granted:

Value using

Black-

Scholes

Shares model

(in thousands)

Options exercisable as of October 31,2001 ................... 25,196 $40
Black-Scholes value of options granted during 2001 ........... $27
Options exercisable as of October 31,2002 ................... 31,601 $41
Black-Scholes value of options granted during 2002 ........... $15
Options exercisable as of October 31,2003 ................... 26,141 $35
Black-Scholes value of options granted during 2003 ........... $9
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The following table summarizes information about all options outstanding at October 31, 2003:

Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Weighted

Average Weighted Weighted

Remaining Average Average

Range of Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Exercise Prices Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price

(in thousands) (in thousands)

$ 0-=15 oot 3,286 5.2 years $13 2,306 $13
$15.01 =25 oot 14,249 8.8 years $17 1,679 $22
$25.01 -30 .............. ... 19,161 7.2 years $27 9,453 $28
$30.01-40 ..., 7,358 5.5 years $36 6,100 $35
$40.01 =50 ..ot 4,009 5.5 years $44 3,916 $44
$50andover ................... 3,303 6.6 years $70 2,687 $71
51,366 $29 26,141 $35

6. Discontinued Operations

On August 1, 2001, we completed the sale of our healthcare solutions business to Koninklijke
Philips Electronics, N.V. (“Philips”) pursuant to an Asset Purchase Agreement for a total purchase
price of $1.7 billion. Philips paid initial proceeds of $1.6 billion to us on August 1, 2001, with further
payments following pursuant to the terms of the Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of November
17, 2000, as amended and supplemented by the Amendment and Supplemental Agreement, dated as
of August 1, 2001 (collectively, the “Asset Purchase Agreement”). The total purchase price was
subject to adjustment based on the determination of the final purchased net assets and on our
performance of integration services for Philips.

Our consolidated financial statements reflect our healthcare solutions business as discontinued
operations in accordance with Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 30 “Reporting the
Results of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions” (“APB No. 30”). The
financial position, results of operations and cash flows of our healthcare solutions business have
been classified as discontinued, and prior periods have been restated, including the reallocation of
general overhead charges to our three remaining business segments. We recorded an after-tax gain
of $646 million in 2001 and an after-tax loss of $10 million in 2002 as a result of the sale to Philips.
In 2002, adjustments were made to the gain as a result of purchase price adjustments to reflect the
final purchased net assets and additional costs that were not anticipated at the time of the sale.

We signed an agreement with Philips, dated as of May 15, 2002, finalizing the purchase price
adjustments from the sale. The adjustments did not result in a material adjustment to the gain on
sale. Since August 1, 2001, we received all of the $100 million withheld by Philips from the total
purchase price at the time of the sale plus adjustments for the final purchased net assets. For
incremental fees, we provided support services to Philips after August 1, 2001 and a portion of these
fees offset costs that include an element of fixed costs which are recognized in selling, general and
administrative expenses in 2001 and 2002. As of October 31, 2002, we have completed our
contractual obligation to provide services to Philips.
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The following table shows the components of the gain on sale of discontinued operations
initially recorded and the subsequent adjustments.

Gain on sale of
discontinued
operations

(in millions)

Proceeds not subject to contingency ............ ... .. .. ... ... $1,771

Book value of assets and liabilitiessold ......................... (495)
Book value of assets and liabilities written off ................... (98)
Net loss from operations post-measurementdate ................ (58)
Costs of disposition ........... ... i (62)
Gain on sale before taxes ........... ... ... .. . . i 1,068

XS o ottt e (422)

Gain from sale of discontinued operations, net of taxes for the year
ended October 31, 2001 . ...... ..ttt $ 646

Adjustment to gain:
Cash received after satisfaction of contingencies, including

INEETESt . .ot $ 20
Purchase price adjustment .................. ... ... .. .. .. ... (44)
Information technology and othercosts ....................... 2
Retirement plan curtailment ................................ 10

Loss onsale beforetaxes ............. .o, (16)
Tax benefit . ... ... 6

Loss from sale of discontinued operations, net of taxes for the year
ended October 31,2002 .. .......cuiuiiii i $ (10

The following table shows the results of operations of our healthcare solutions business in 2001.
There were no results of operations in 2003 and 2002.

Years Ended
October 31,
2001(a)
(in millions)
NEtTEVEIIUC . . oottt ettt e e e e e e e e e $765
Costs and eXPeNSES .. ...ttt e 747
Income from discontinued operations ............................ 18
Other income (eXpense), Net .. ..........uuiiiiieiinenneennnenn.. 3
Income from discontinued operations before taxes ................. 21
Provision fortaxes ........... .. e 15
Net income from discontinued operations ........................ $ 6

(a) Includes operations from November 1, 2000 to May 31, 2001, the measurement date.
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7. Acquisitions and Sale of Assets
Acquisitions

On January 5, 2001, we acquired Objective Systems Integrators, Inc. (“OSI”) for approximately
$716 million. Of this total, $690 million was cash and the remainder represents the fair value of
options granted. Using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with Accounting Principles
Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 16, “Business Combinations” (“APB No. 16”), the purchase price was
allocated to tangible and intangible assets including goodwill. The original goodwill balance of $593
million was being amortized over three years. At the time of acquisition, OSI was a leading provider
of next-generation operations-support-system software for communications service providers and
has become part of our test and measurement business. The net book value of goodwill associated
with this acquisition at October 31, 2002 was $234 million. In the first quarter of 2003, we
implemented SFAS No. 142 and wrote-off this goodwill. See Note 12, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets”.

In addition to the OSI acquisition, we acquired several other companies during 2002 and 2001,

which were not significant to our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

These acquisitions were accounted for under the purchase method of accounting as defined in
APB No. 16 or SFAS No. 141 depending on the date of acquisition. The results of operations of the
acquired companies were included prospectively from the date of acquisition and the acquisition
cost was allocated to the acquired tangible assets and liabilities and identifiable intangible assets
based on fair values at the date of acquisition. Residual amounts were recorded as goodwill.
In-process research and development write-offs have been insignificant.

Unaudited pro forma statement of operations information has not been presented because the
effects of these acquisitions were not material on either an individual or an aggregated basis.

Asset Sales
Sale of Leasing Portfolio

In the fourth quarter of 2000, we entered into an asset purchase agreement with CIT Group Inc.
(“CIT,” formerly Tyco Capital Corporation) pursuant to which we sold them substantially all of our
leasing portfolio (the “CIT Group Sale”) over the course of 2000 and 2001. There was no impact on
our consolidated cash flows and results of operations for the CIT Group Sale in 2003 and 2002. The
impact on our consolidated cash flows and results of operations of the CIT Group Sale in 2001 is
shown below.

Year Ended
October 31, 2001

(in millions)

Net proceeds from the CIT Group Sale .. ....................... $287
Productrevenue ........... ...t 254
Costof products ......... ... 131

We also entered into a vendor financing arrangement with CIT whereby CIT will provide
equipment financing and leasing services to our customers on a global basis. This agreement has
been in place since the fourth quarter of 2000.

In addition to the CIT Group Sale and the sale of the healthcare solutions business, we sold
assets related to portions of our businesses to third parties during 2002 and 2001. Gross proceeds
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from these dispositions were $31 million in 2002 and $13 million in 2001. Gains from the
dispositions, included in other income (expense), net, in the consolidated statement of operations,
were $15 million in 2002 and $9 million in 2001. There were no cash proceeds or gains from these
dispositions in 2003.

Sale of San Jose Land

In February 2001, we sold a parcel of surplus land in San Jose, California for $287 million in
cash, resulting in a pre-tax gain of approximately $269 million. In August 2001, we invested the
proceeds in the leasehold of several municipal properties in southern California for a total value of
$289 million. In 2002, we received $237 million in non-refundable prepaid rent related to the
investment in leaseholds as described above.

8. Net (Loss) Income Per Share

The following is a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted
net (loss) income per share computations for the periods presented below.

For the Years Ended

October 31,
2003 2002 2001
(in millions)
Numerator:
Loss from continuing operations . ....................... $(1,790) $(1,022) $(406)
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes ........ — — 6
(Loss) gain from the sale of discontinued operations, net of
DA S it e — (10) 646
(Loss) income before cumulative effect of accounting
changes ....... .. . (1,790)  (1,032) 246
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS No. 133, net of taxes .. — — (25)
Cumulative effect of adopting SAB 101, net of taxes ....... — — 47
Cumulative effect of adopting SFASNo. 142 . ............. (268) — —
Net (1I0SS) INCOME . ..\ttt et et $(2,0568) $(1,032) $ 174
Denominators:
Basic and diluted weighted average shares ............... 473 465 458

Options to purchase 51 million shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise price of
$29 per share were outstanding in 2003, but were not included in the computation of diluted net loss
per share because the options were antidilutive for 2003. The options, which expire no later than
2013, were still outstanding at the end of 2003. Options to purchase 74 million shares of common
stock at a weighted average exercise price of $40 per share were outstanding in 2002, but were not
included in the computation of diluted net loss per share because the options were antidilutive for
2002. In 2001, options to purchase 64 million shares of common stock at a weighted average exercise
price of $46 per share were outstanding, but were not included in the computation of diluted net
income per share because the options were antidilutive.

Our senior convertible debentures were also antidilutive during 2003 and 2002. Loss from
continuing operations in both periods included approximately $34 million in interest expense
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associated with the senior convertible debentures. If the shares were dilutive, then this amount
would be added back to loss from operations, and approximately 36 million of shares would be
added to the weighted average number of shares for the purposes of calculating diluted income per
share. See Note 17, “Senior Convertible Debentures and Lines of Credit.”

9. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Cash paid for income taxes was $122 million in 2003, $160 million in 2002 and $450 million in
2001. Cash paid for interest was $36 million in 2003, $36 million in 2002 and $28 million in 2001.

Non-cash transactions were primarily related to the issuance of common stock under various
employee stock plans in the amount of $0 in 2003, $23 million in 2002 and $26 million in 2001, and
acquisitions in the amount of $70 million in 2001. Prior to November 1, 2000, the Legacy Plan (See
Note 5 “Stock-Based Compensation”) included a company-matching element where the matching
shares generally vested over two years. The final vesting period occurred in 2002. There will be no
additional issuances of common stock related to the Legacy Plan in the future.

10. Inventory

October 31,
2008 200

(in millions)
Finished 00ds . ........ ...ttt $356 $ 377
WOrK INn Progress . ...ttt et e e 85 130
Raw materials ...... ... ... . . ﬂ 677
$995  $1,184

Inventory-related charges of $11 million, $74 million and $460 million were recorded in total
cost of products in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. We record excess and obsolete inventory
charges for both inventory on our site as well as inventory at our contract manufacturers and
suppliers where we have non-cancelable purchase commitments.

11. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

October 31,
2003 2002

(in millions)
Land . ... $ 106 $ 148
Buildings and leasehold improvements .................... 1,838 1,625
SOftWare .. ... ... e 404 306
Machinery and equipment ................ ... .. ... . ...... 1,923 1,994
Total property, plant and equipment ...................... 4,271 4,073
Accumulated depreciation ................ ... .. ... . ..., (2,824) (2,494

$ 1,447 $ 1,579

We have sold substantially all of our portfolio of operating leases to CIT. See Note 7,
“Acquisitions and Sale of Assets.” Equipment under operating leases was $10 million at October 31,
2003 and $10 million at October 31, 2002 and was included in machinery and equipment.
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Accumulated depreciation related to equipment under operating leases was $8 million at October 31,
2003 and $5 million at October 31, 2002.

12. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The following table presents goodwill balances as of October 31, 2003 and 2002 and the
movements in the year ended October 31, 2003 for each of our reportable segments are shown below:

Life Sciences

Test and Automated Semiconductor Chgrl:gca.l
Measurement Test Products Analysis Total
(in millions)

Goodwill at October 31,2002 .......... $ 434 $74 $85 $23 $ 616
Adoption of SFAS No. 142 goodwill

impairment .............. ... .. .... (268) — — — (268)
Foreign currency translation impact ... 17 11 10 1 39
Goodwill arising from new

acquisitions ............... ... ... .. = = 1 = 1
Goodwill at October 31,2003 ......... $ 183 $§ @ $24 $ 388

The component parts of other intangibles as of October 31, 2003 and October 31, 2002 are
shown in the table below:

Purchased Other Intangible Assets

Gross
Carrying Accumulated Net Book
Amount Amortization Value
(in millions)
As of October 31, 2003:
Purchased technology ...................... $122 $110 $12
Customer relationships . .................... 23 21 _2
Total ...t $145 $131 $14
As of October 31, 2002:
Purchased technology ...................... $122 $ 63 $59
Customer relationships ..................... 23 13 ﬂ
Total ...t $145 $ 76

69

Amortization for purchased intangible assets was $45 million in 2003, $52 million in 2002 and
$41 million in 2001. Amortization expense related to purchased intangible assets is estimated to be
$14 million for 2004.

During 2003, we recognized an impairment charge pursuant to SFAS No. 144 of approximately
$10 million for intangible assets (representing developed technology and customer relationships) in
our test and measurement business as a result of a decline in the projected cash flows. The
impairment charge has been recorded in cost of sales ($8 million) and selling, general, and
administrative ($2 million) in the consolidated statement of operations.
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13. Guarantees
Standard Warranty

A summary of the standard warranty accrual activity for October 31, 2003 and 2002 is shown in
the table below:

For the Years

Ended
October 31,
2003 2002
" (in millions)
Balance at October 31, 2002 and 2001 ......... ... .. ... ... .. .... $72 $70
Accruals for warranties issued during the period ................ 70 61
Accruals related to pre-existing warranties (including changes in
eStIMAtes) . ..ot e 5 10
Settlements made during the period ............. ... .. ... .. ..... _(76) (69)

Balance at October 31, 2003 and 2002 .......................... $71 $72

Extended Warranty

Revenue for our extended warranty contracts with terms beyond one year is deferred and
recognized on a straight line basis over the contract period. Related costs are expensed as incurred.
Amounts recorded for extended warranty contracts are included in deferred revenue on the
consolidated balance sheet.

For the Year
Ended
October 31,
2003

Balance at October 31,2002 .. ............uiuriieiiaaa. $ 37
Recognition of revenue .......... ... ... .. . ... ... @21
Deferral of revenue for new contracts ............................ j

Balance at October 31,2003 .. ... ... ... .. .. $ 33

Lease Guarantees

As of October 31, 2003, we have issued credit guarantees to CIT Group Inc. with an aggregate
maximum exposure of $31 million that has been fully accrued as a component of other accrued
liabilities. In addition to the credit guarantees, we gave CIT Group Inc. guarantees that could require
us to repurchase individual leases if, for example, the documentation we provided to support the
lease was not materially accurate. In our opinion, the fair value of these additional guarantees is not
material.

We have evaluated our relationship with the CIT Group Inc. and have determined that CIT is not
a variable interest entity under FIN 46.
Indemnifications to Hewlett-Packard Company

We have given multiple indemnities to Hewlett-Packard Company in connection with our
activities prior to our spin-off from Hewlett-Packard for the businesses that constituted Agilent prior
to the spin-off. These indemnifications cover a variety of aspects of our business, including, but not
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limited to, employee, tax, intellectual property and environmental matters. The agreements
containing these indemnifications have been previously disclosed as exhibits to our registration
statement on Form S-1 filed on August 16, 1999. In our opinion, the fair value of these
indemnifications is not material.

Indemnifications to Koninklijke Philips Electronics, N.V. (“Philips”)

In connection with the sale of our healthcare solutions business to Philips on August 1, 2001, we
indemnified Philips for various matters, including product liability issues arising within two years of
the sale agreement. In our opinion, the fair value of these indemnifications is not material.

Indemnifications to Officers and Directors

Our corporate by-laws require that we indemnify our officers and directors, as well as those
who act as directors and officers of other entities at our request, against expenses, judgments, fines,
settlements and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred in connection with any proceedings
arising out of their services to Agilent. In addition, we have entered into separate indemnification
agreements with each director and each board-appointed officer of Agilent which provides for
indemnification of these directors and officers under similar circumstances and under additional
circumstances. The indemnification obligations are more fully described in the by-laws and the
indemnification agreements. See Exhibits 3.2 and 10.7 of this document. We purchase standard
insurance to cover claims or a portion of the claims made against our directors and officers. Since a
maximum obligation is not explicitly stated in our by-laws or in our indemnification agreements and
will depend on the facts and circumstances that arise out of any future claims, the overall maximum
amount of the obligations cannot be reasonably estimated. Historically, we have not made payments
related to these obligations, and the fair value for these obligations is zero on the consolidated
balance sheet as of October 31, 2003.

Other Indemnifications

As is customary in our industry and as provided for in local law in the U.S. and other
jurisdictions, many of our standard contracts provide remedies to our customers and others with
whom we enter into contracts, such as defense, settlement, or payment of judgment for intellectual
property claims related to the use of our products. From time to time, we indemnify customers, as
well as our suppliers, contractors, lessors, lessees, companies that purchase our businesses or assets
and others with whom we enter into contracts, against combinations of loss, expense, or liability
arising from various triggering events related to the sale and the use of our products and services,
the use of their goods and services, the use of facilities and state of our owned facilities, the state of
the assets and businesses that we sell and other matters covered by such contracts, usually up to a
specified maximum amount. In addition, from time to time we also provide protection to these
parties against claims related to undiscovered liabilities, additional product liability or
environmental obligations. In our experience, claims made under such indemnifications are rare and
the associated estimated fair value of the liability is not material.

14. Restructuring and Asset Impairment

Summary

We currently have three restructuring plans — one initiated in the fourth quarter of 2001 (the
“2001 Plan”), a second initiated in the fourth quarter of 2002 (the “2002 Plan”), and a third initiated
in the first quarter of 2003 (the “2003 Plan”) after it became clear that the actions taken in fiscal
2001 and fiscal 2002 would not be sufficient to return the company to profitability.
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All of our plans were designed to reduce costs and expenses in order to return the company to
profitability. As of the end of 2003, we have reduced our workforce by approximately 15,000 people
(approximately 13,400 from involuntary terminations and approximately 1,600 from net attrition) to
29,000 employees.

Our plans to consolidate excess facilities resulted in charges for lease termination fees and
losses anticipated from sub-lease agreements. We have exited, or plan to exit in the near future,
more than 110 production, support and sales facilities in the U.S., Korea, Japan, U.K. and other
countries, representing more than 4.3 million square feet, or about 22 percent of our worldwide
property. As of October 31, 2003, we had vacated approximately 90 percent of this space, however
we will continue to make lease payments on some of this space over the next five years. We lease
most of these buildings from third parties, and the closures impacted all segments. In most cases, we
are exiting administrative office buildings housing sales and administrative employees. However, a
small number of production facilities were closed as a result of our plans to consolidate
manufacturing into fewer sites.

Actions for all plans have been focused on segments that were impacted most severely by the
market downturn - primarily our test and measurement and semiconductor products groups - but
actions have also been taken to reduce the costs associated with support services such as finance,
information technology, workplace services and to a lesser extent our other business segments. Cost
reductions were initiated by moving manufacturing and some of our global shared services
operations sites to lower cost regions, reducing the number of properties, particularly sales and
administrative sites, and by reducing our workforce through involuntary terminations and selected
outsourcing of manufacturing and administrative functions. Our strategy is to move towards a more
variable operating cost structure.

We have executed all key actions under our 2001 Plan, although there may be changes in
estimates for the consolidation of excess facilities due to changes in market conditions from those
originally expected at the time the charges were recorded. Our 2002 Plan is substantially complete.

The 2001 Plan

As a result of the economic downturn we announced a plan and reduced our workforce by
approximately 8,400 jobs and reduced costs across all functions, primarily manufacturing and
selling, general and administrative costs, including sales and marketing. Research and development
activities were terminated on some product development initiatives, none of which were
individually or in total significant to our future revenues or profitability. We also took actions to
reduce the number of employees at production facilities that had experienced declining demand,
such as those making equipment for the long-haul wireline business. This plan was designed to
reduce costs across almost all of our administrative and support services, including sales and
marketing, and to focus our production activities on those products that we believed would return
us to profitability, such as those in life sciences, semiconductor test and wireless
telecommunications. Our plan impacted the test and measurement group and the semiconductor
products group and had little direct impact on the automated test and life sciences and chemical
analysis groups except as the plan related to support services reductions across all of our
businesses. We reduced production capacity dramatically for communications test product lines and
for product lines in networking, especially long-haul networks. We also reduced production capacity
for some personal systems, general purpose and semiconductor test product lines.

The three main components of the 2001 Plan related to workforce reductions, consolidation of
excess facilities and impairments of property, plant and equipment. The impairments of machinery
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and equipment in our production facilities that we have closed or scaled back have been recognized.
We have executed all key actions under this plan, however we will continue to make lease payments
over the next five years.

Asset impairment charges relate to fixed assets and were determined using estimates of the
expected future cash flows generated from those assets. Impairments were recorded for machinery
and equipment in production facilities that we were closing or scaling back, such as for the long-haul
wireline business and for leasehold improvements in leased facilities that we planned to exit. One
production facility in Kobe, Japan accounted for approximately $60 million of the $129 million of
asset impairment charges in 2002. In order to determine the amount of the impairment, under the
held-for-use model in accordance with SFAS No. 121, we estimated the cash flows that would result
from our continued use of the building until we expect to vacate it and also estimated the sales
proceeds that we expected to be able to realize. The resulting impairment was approximately 80
percent of the net book value of the facility, primarily due to the decline in the local property
market.

In 2002, we also took a $53 million charge for exiting a number of leased facilities. During 2003
we recorded an additional $15 million in net charges and adjustments due primarily to reductions in
our estimate of expected sublease income. Due to the length of some of the lease terms and the
uncertainty of the real estate market, we expect to make periodic adjustments to the accrual balance
to reflect changes in our estimates, and to reflect actual events as they occur.

The cost of the 2001 Plan through October 31, 2003 was $526 million; $154 million in 2001, $357
million in 2002 and $15 million in 2003.

A summary of restructuring activity for the 2001 Plan through October 31, 2003 is shown in the
table below:

Impairment of
Consolidation Assets,
Workforce of Excess Property, Plant
Reduction Facilities and Equipment Total

(in millions)

Beginning balance at July 31,2001 ................ $ - $ — $ - $ -
Total charge .......... ... .. ... 117 20 17 154
Cashpayments ............. ... 0iiiiiinnirann.. (65) — — (65)
Ending balance at October 31,2001 ............... 52 20 17 89
Total charge ........ ... .. .. . . . i i 175 53 129 357
Assetimpairment .............. ... ... . . .. ... — — (146) (146)
Cashpayments ................ ..t iiiiiinann.. (210) (10) — (220)
Ending balance at October 31,2002 ............... 17 63 — 80
Total charge and adjustment (&) ................... — 24 €©)) 15
Assetimpairment .............. ... ... . .. ... .. — — 9 9
Cashpayments ................ ..t iiiiiinann.. an (25) — 42)
Ending balance at October 31,2003 ............... $ - $ 62 $ - $ 62

(a) Represents primarily changes in estimates relating to consolidation of excess facilities arising
from a decline in real estate market conditions and an adjustment recorded within property,
plant and equipment, net.
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The 2002 Plan

On August 19, 2002, we announced our intention to further reduce our workforce by 2,500 to
achieve a quarterly operating cost structure of approximately $1.6 billion. This plan primarily
affected the manufacturing and field operations serving the wireline markets that are components of
our test and measurement group as well as information technology support services.

As part of the 2002 Plan we have reduced our workforce by approximately 2,400 as of October
31, 2003. Similar to the 2001 Plan, this reduction impacted all regions, all expense categories and
most of our segments particularly our test and measurement and semiconductor products segments.
We continued to reduce the number of employees at production facilities that experienced declining
demand, outsourced selective operations and also reduced the number of employees that provided
information technology support services as we streamlined our operations with the implementation
of our new information systems.

We have incurred total asset impairment charges of $39 million. Asset impairment charges of
$34 million recognized in 2002 relate to machinery and equipment, primarily owned by the
semiconductor products group in Singapore. The equipment had been purchased in support of
communications research but as a result of our restructuring plans we have decided to sell the
equipment and conduct the research using existing equipment in the U.S. Asset impairment charges
of $5 million recognized in 2003 primarily related to semiconductor products machinery and
equipment that will be abandoned. The equipment had been purchased to support a manufacturing
facility whose operations will be moved as a result of our plans to consolidate our excess facilities.
However, no material charges for the consolidation of excess facilities have yet occurred under the
2002 Plan.

The cost of the 2002 Plan through October 31, 2003 was $166 million; $117 million in 2002 and
$49 million in 2003.

A summary of restructuring activity for the 2002 Plan through October 31, 2003 is shown in the
table below:

Impairment of
Assets,
Workforce Property, Plant
Reduction and Equipment Total

(in millions)

Beginning balance at July 31,2002 .................. $ — $ — $ —
Total charge ........... ... .. .. . . ... 83 34 117
Assetimpairment ........... ... ... .. . . ... — (34) (34)
Cashpayments ......... ... . .. .. (15) — (15)
Ending balance at October 31,2002 .................. 68 — 68
Total charge ........... ... .. .. . . ... 44 5 49
Assetimpairment ........... ... ... .. . . ... — (5) (5)
Cashpayments ..............0iiiiiiiiiennnnnn.. (98) — (98)
Ending balance at October 31,2003 .................. 14 $ — $ 14
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The 2003 Plan

On February 21, 2003, we announced our intention to further reduce our quarterly operational
costs to a level of $1.45 billion as part of the 2003 Plan. In order to accomplish this, we announced a
workforce reduction of approximately 4,000 jobs in addition to previously-announced cuts.

As part of the 2003 Plan we have reduced our workforce by approximately 4,300 as of
October 31, 2003, primarily in our U.S. operations. Reductions were made across all businesses with
significant reductions in our test and measurement and semiconductor products groups. We
continued to reduce the number of employees at production facilities and employees that provide
support services across all businesses. We have also reduced the number of research and
development employees as we continue to look for opportunities to align our business with available
markets.

As we execute on all of our plans, we have continued to consolidate excess facilities. We have
and plan to exit administrative office buildings, research and development facilities, and move
manufacturing to lower cost regions. Our plan to consolidate excess facilities resulted in increased
charges of $13 million for lease termination fees and losses anticipated from sub-lease agreements
primarily located in Europe.

As part of the 2003 Plan, we incurred asset impairment charges of $57 million for fixed assets
primarily owned by our semiconductor products segment. Impairments were recorded for
machinery, equipment and buildings used in research and development or production that are
impacted by our plans to consolidate excess facilities or are no longer needed due to over capacity.
During the third quarter, we closed a production facility in the U.K. and have substantially vacated
the remaining buildings on that site except for a minor portion of the facility, which will be used for
research and development. We are progressing as planned through our transition towards
reestablishing production in Singapore and have entered into an agreement to sell the site to a third
party. In accordance with SFAS No. 144, we measured the assets at their fair value based on the
sales agreement less the cost to sell. We recorded an impairment of $27 million as a result of the
significant decline in the U.K. property market.

As of October 31, 2003, the cost of the 2003 Plan was $308 million.

A summary of restructuring activity for the 2003 Plan through October 31, 2003 is shown in the
table below:

Impairment of

Workforce Consolidation of Prolisrst;fsl”lant
Reduction Excess Facilities and Equipment Total
(in millions)
Total charge ...................... $ 238 $13 $ 57 $ 308
Asset impairments ................ — — (B7) (B
Cashpayments .................... (234) ﬁ) — (238)
Ending balance at October 31,
2003 ... $ 4 $_9 $ — $ 13

Summary information for combined plans

The restructuring accrual for all plans, which totaled $89 million as of October 31, 2003 and
$148 million as of October 31, 2002 (for the 2001 and 2002 Plans only), is recorded in other accrued
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liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet and represents estimated future cash outlays. Lease
payments are expected over the next 5 years. Other payments, primarily severance, are expected
within a one-year period.

A summary of the statement of operations impact of the charges resulting from the all of the
restructuring plans is shown below.

Years Ended October 31,
2003 2002 2001
(in millions)

Cost of products and services .......................... $111 %210 $ 79
Research and development ............................ 66 56 17
Selling, general and administrative ..................... 195 208 58
Total restructuring and asset impairment charges ........ $372  $474  $154

Other asset impairment charges

In July 2003, we recorded an impairment charge pursuant to SFAS No. 144 of approximately
$10 million for intangible assets (representing developed technology and customer relationships) in
our test and measurement business as a result of a decline in the projected cash flows. The
impairment charge has been recorded in cost of sales and selling, general, and administrative in the
consolidated statement of operations.

In June 2001, we recorded a $74 million asset impairment charge with respect to our decision to
cancel the development of a software system for our customer support activities. We entered into an
agreement with Hewlett-Packard to extend our use of their legacy customer support systems in place
of the one that we were developing. In 2002, we began to develop a new Customer Relationship
Management (“CRM”) system independent from Hewlett-Packard.

We also incurred asset impairment charges primarily to write down investments that we hold
on a cost basis to their fair value. Impairment charges related to these asset impairments were $15
million in 2003, $24 million in 2002 and $8 million in 2001. These impairment charges were
recorded in cost and expenses and other income (expense), net in the consolidated statement of
operations.

15. Retirement Plans and Post Retirement Benefits

General. Substantially all of our employees are covered under various defined benefit and/or
defined contribution plans. Additionally, we sponsor post retirement health care benefits and a
death benefit under the Agilent Survivor Protection Plan for our eligible U.S. employees.

Restructuring. Beginning in late 2001, we carried out plans to reduce our workforce by
approximately 8,000 employees. In the U.S., employees affected by restructuring were offered a
choice of remaining as a deferred terminated participant in the Agilent Retirement Plan (the
“Retirement Plan”) or taking a distribution from the Retirement Plan. In the funded status table
below, amounts relating to settlements of benefit obligations due to employees affected by
restructuring are treated as regular plan payments. Additionally, eligible employees (i.e., those who
met eligibility requirements as of their individual termination dates) were offered the opportunity to
elect to receive benefits under the Agilent Continued Group Medical or SeniorMed Programs.
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Outside the U.S., subject to local statutory and other practical limitations, employees affected by
restructuring were offered the choice of remaining in the applicable retirement plans or taking
distributions from those plans.

In accordance with SFAS No. 88, “Employer’s Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of
Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits”, workforce-related events such as
restructuring cause curtailment and settlement gains or losses when they have a material impact on
the average future working lifetime or total number of participants in our retirement and
postretirement plans. Our restructuring program has resulted in material changes to our plan
demographics in the U.S. and several other countries. The curtailment and settlement gains and
losses related to each event are separately identified in the tables that follow.

Spin-off from Hewlett-Packard. On or before June 2, 2000, we assumed responsibility for
pension, deferred profit-sharing, 401(k) and other post retirement benefits from Hewlett-Packard for
current and former employees whose last work assignment prior to the spin-off was with Agilent.
These current and former employees are collectively referred to as “Agilent Employees.” In the U.S.,
the Hewlett-Packard Company Retirement Plan and Deferred Profit-Sharing Plan Master Trust was
converted to the Group Trust for the Hewlett-Packard Company Deferred Profit-Sharing Plan and
Retirement Plan and the Agilent Technologies, Inc. Deferred Profit-Sharing Plan and Retirement
Plan (the “Group Trust”), and a pro rata share of the assets of the Group Trust was assigned to the
Agilent Deferred Profit-Sharing Plan Trust and the Agilent Retirement Plan Trust. Outside the U.S.,
generally, a pro rata share of the Hewlett-Packard pension assets, if any, were transferred or
otherwise assigned to the Agilent entity in accordance with local law or practice. The pro rata share
was in the same proportion as the projected benefit obligation for Agilent Employees was to the total
projected benefit obligation of Hewlett-Packard and Agilent combined. For all periods presented, the
consolidated financial statements include the trust assets, liabilities and expenses that were
assigned to Agilent.

Pension and deferred profit-sharing plans. Worldwide pension costs included in loss from
continuing operations were $187 million in 2003, $122 million in 2002 and $81 million in 2001.

U.S. employees who meet eligibility criteria under the Retirement Plan are provided pension
benefits under the Retirement Plan. Defined benefits are generally based on an employee’s highest
five consecutive years’ average pay during the years of employment and length of service. For
eligible service through October 31, 1993, the benefit payable under the Retirement Plan is reduced
by any amounts due to the eligible employee under our fixed and frozen defined contribution
Deferred Profit-Sharing Plan (“DPSP”), which was closed to new participants in November 1993.

As of October 31, 2003 and 2002, the status of the Retirement Plan and DPSP for U.S. Agilent
Employees follows.

Retirement
Plan DPSP

2003 2002 2003 2002

(in millions)
Fair value of plan assets ....................... $488  $407 $863  $952
Retirement benefit obligation ................... $660 $761 $863  $952

Eligible employees outside the U.S. generally receive retirement benefits under various
retirement plans based upon factors such as years of service and employee compensation levels.
Eligibility is generally determined in accordance with local statutory requirements.

74



AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Post retirement benefit plans. In addition to receiving pension benefits, our U.S. employees
who meet retirement eligibility requirements as of their termination dates may participate in our
Continued Group Medical or SeniorMed Plans. Substantially all of our current U.S. employees could
become eligible for these benefits, and the existing benefit obligation relates primarily to those
employees. Once participating in a medical plan, retirees may choose from managed-care and
indemnity options, with their contributions dependent on the options chosen and length of service.
Our U.S. retirees are also covered by a death benefit that is part of the Agilent Survivor Protection
Plan. This benefit provides a fixed sum to retirees’ survivors and is available to all retirees
regardless of length of service or compensation.

401(k) defined contribution plan. Our U.S. eligible employees may participate in the Agilent
Technologies, Inc. 401(k) Plan (“the 401(k) Plan”). Enrollment in the 401(k) Plan is automatic for
employees who meet eligibility requirements unless they decline participation. Under the 401(k)
Plan, we provide matching contributions to employees up to a maximum of 4 percent of an
employee’s annual eligible compensation. The maximum contribution to the 401(k) Plan is 20
percent of an employee’s annual eligible compensation, subject to regulatory and plan limitations.
Our expense included in loss from continuing operations related to the 401(k) Plan was $41 million
in 2003, $48 million in 2002 and $53 million in 2001.

Components of net periodic cost. For the years ended October 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, our
net pension and post retirement benefit costs were comprised of:

Pensions U.S. Post
Retirement
U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans Benefit Plans

2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001

(in millions)

Service cost — benefits earned during

theperiod ......................... $70 $ 83 $87 $44 $42 $44 $13 $13 $ 13
Interest cost on benefit obligation ...... 44 46 41 46 41 42 30 27 24
Expected return on plan assets ........ B9 @1 B6) B3) B9 (B9 (22) (28) (36)
Amortization and deferrals:

Actuarial loss (gain) ................ 14 10 (10) 33 13 6 1 ® 18

Prior servicecost ................... 1 1 1 — — 1 — — —
Net plan costs (income) ............... 90 99 63 70 37 34 22 4 (17
Curtailment loss (gain) . ............... — 1 (28 — (D (€)) — 4D @)
Settlementloss ...................... — 5 1 4 7 21 — — —
Special termination benefits ........... — — — 1 1 — — — —
Other .......... .. ... .. - - - - - 7 - - —

Total net plan costs (income) ...... $90 $105 $36 $75 $44 $58 $22 $(37) $(24)
Distribution of net plan costs (income):
Continuing operations .............. $90 $105 $59 $75 $44 $38 $22 $(27) $(16)
Discontinued operations ............ — — (23 — — 20 — (10 )]
Total net plan costs (income) ...... $90 $105 $36 $75 $44 $58 $22 $(37) $(24)
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Funded status.
post retirement benefit plans was:

Change in fair value of plan assets:
Fair value — beginningofyear................ ... ..........
Net addition (deletion) of plans
Actual return on plan assets
Employer contributions
Participants’ contributions
Benefits paid
Transfer from DPSP
Special termination benefits
Currency impact
Curtailment/settlement impact — restructuring
Other

Fair value — end of year

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation — beginningof year .......................
Net addition (deletion) of plans
SeIVICE COSL . oot vttt e e e
Interest cost
Participants’ contributions
Plan amendment
Actuarial (gain) loss
Benefits paid
Transfer from DPSP
Special termination benefits
Currency impact

Curtailment/settlement impact — divestiture of Healthcare
Solutions Business

Curtailment/settlement impact — restructuring

Benefit obligation — end of year

Plan assets less than benefit obligation ........................
Unrecognized net actuarial loss (gain)

Unrecognized prior service cost (benefit) related to plan
changes

Net (accrued) prepaid costs . ......... i

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet consist of:

Prepaid defined benefit plancosts .............. ... ... ... ...
Accrued defined benefit plan costs
Intangible assets
Additional minimum pension liability .........................
Accrued post retirement benefitscosts ................. ... ....

Net (accrued) prepaid costs . ......... i

As of October 31, 2003 and 2002, the funded status of the defined benefit and

Non-U.S. U.S. Post
U.S. Defined Defined Retirement
Benefit Plans  Benefit Plans Benefit Plans
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002

(in millions)

$ 407 $ 451 $ 657 $ 746 $ 256 $ 311

_ _ 6 _ _
89 (68) 95 (213) 49  (49)
91 84 127 105 - 1
- - 8 8 - 4

(100) (60) (35) (21) (15) (1D)
1 _ _ — _ _
_ _ 1 1 _ _
- - 83 29 - -
- - ® a - -
_ _ _ 12 _ _

$ 488 $407 $ 928 $ 657 $290 $ 256

$761 $702 $ 957 $ 821 $437 $ 380
_ _ _ 19 _ _
70 83 4 42 13 13
4 46 46 41 30 27
_ _ 8 8 _ 4
- - - 3 (25 -
88) 19 8 30 122 66

(100) (60) (35) (21) (14) (1D
1 _ _ — — _

_ _ 1 1 _ _

- - 102 44 - -

- - - - - 10
28) (29 (200 (31 (24) (32)

$ 660 $ 761 $1,095 $ 957 $ 539 $ 437

$(172) $(354) $ (167) $(300) $(249) $(181)
34 213 425 483 120 49

3 5 (5) (B) (23 2

$(135) $(136) $ 253 $ 178 $(152) $(130)

$ — % — % 253 $187 § — $ —
(135) (136) (136) (239) - —
— _ 4 6 — _

- — 132 224 - —

(152) (130)

$(135) $(136) $ 253 $ 178 $(152) $(130)
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Plan assets consist primarily of listed stocks and bonds. Our Retirement Plan assets are
allocated approximately 80 percent to equities and approximately 20 percent to fixed income
investments. Our DPSP assets are allocated approximately 60 percent to equities and approximately
40 percent to fixed income investments. Allocation between equities and fixed income investments
varies by plan in countries outside the U.S., but all plans’ assets are broadly diversified both
domestically and overseas.

As of October 31, 2003 and October 31, 2002, all of our defined benefit plans had projected
benefit obligations (“PB0O”) that were in excess of the fair value of the plan assets. The amounts of
the obligations and assets for the plans were:

Non-U.S.

U.S. Defined Defined

Benefit Plans Benefit Plans

October 31, October 31,

2003 2002 2003 2002
(in millions)

Aggregate projected benefit obligation (“PBO™) ....... $(660) $(761) $(1,095) $(957)
Aggregate accumulated benefit obligation (“ABO”) .... $(422) $(438) $ (924) $(736)
Aggregate fair value of plan assets .................. $488 $407 $ 928 $ 657

An additional minimum pension liability adjustment was required for our pension plans in
Germany, Japan and the United Kingdom during 2003 as the accumulated benefit obligation of $439
million for those plans exceeded the $408 million of pension plan assets for those plans as of the
measurement date. The $31 million difference was increased by $105 million for net prepaid pension
costs for all of the affected plans and reduced by $4 million for intangible assets in the United
Kingdom’s plan and one of the Japanese plans, resulting in a gross additional minimum pension
liability of $132 million. Of this amount, $92 million impacted accumulated comprehensive loss in
2003, offset by $40 million applied to deferred tax assets. An additional minimum pension liability
adjustment was required for our pension plans in Germany, Japan and the United Kingdom during
2002 as the accumulated benefit obligation of $529 million for those plans exceeded the $441 million
of pension plan assets for those plans as of the measurement date. The $88 million difference was
increased by $142 million for net prepaid pension costs for all of the affected plans and reduced by
$6 million for intangible assets in the United Kingdom’s plan and one of the Japanese plans,
resulting in a gross additional minimum pension liability of $224 million. Of this amount, $146
million impacted accumulated comprehensive loss in 2002, offset by $78 million applied to deferred
tax assets.
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Assumptions. The assumptions used to determine the benefit obligations and expense for
our defined benefit and postretirement benefit plans are presented in the table below. The impacts
of the assumptions listed for the years 2003, 2002 and 2001 have already been recognized in our
consolidated statement of operations. The assumptions for the year 2004 were used to determine the
obligations presented as of October 31, 2003 in the funded status table above, and their impacts will
be recognized in our consolidated statements of operations during 2004.

Years Ended October 31,

2004 2003 2002 2001

U.S. defined benefit plans:

Discountrate .......... ... . . i 6.25% 6.75% 7.0% 7.5%

Average increase in compensation levels ......... 4.25% 5.25% 5.5% 6.0%

Expected long-term return on assets ............ 8.756% 8.756% 9.0% 9.0%
Non-U.S. defined benefit plans:

Discountrate .......... ... .o 2.0-6.5%  2.25-6.0% 2.5-6.5% 3.0-6.5%

Average increase in compensation levels ......... 2.5-4.0%  3.5-4.25% 3.56-5.5% 3.56-5.5%

Expected long-term return on assets ............ 5.0-7.5%  5.5-7.75% 6.5-8.5% 6.1-8.5%
U.S. postretirement benefits plans:

Discountrate ......... ... ... ... .. . ... 6.25% 6.75% 7.0% 7.5%

Expected long-term return on assets ............ 8.75% 8.75% 9.0% 9.0%

Current medical costtrendrate ................. 10.0% 9.0% 7.75% 7.75%

Ultimate medical cost trend rate ................ 5.0% 5.56% 5.5% 5.5%

Medical cost trend rate decreases to ultimate rate

INyear ... ...t 2009 2007 2007 2007

Assumed health care trend rates could have a significant effect on the amounts reported for
health care plans. A one percentage point change in the assumed health care cost trend rates for the
year ended October 31, 2004 would have the following effects:

One One
Percentage Percentage
Point Point
Increase Decrease

(in millions)
Effect on total service and interest cost components . .. .. $9 $ (D
Effect on postretirement benefit obligations ............ $99 $(78)
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16. Other Accrued Liabilities

Other accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities at October 31, 2003 and 2002 were as
follows:
October 31,
2003 2002
" (in millions)

Other accrued liabilities

AcCrued eXPEeIISES .. .ottt $114  $108
Restructuring . ....... ... . . 89 148
Warranty accruals .......... . . i 57 59
Lease guarantees . ............c.cuutiiiii i 31 68
Other ... e 20 20

Total other accrued liabilities ............................. $311  $403

Other long-term liabilities

Retirement plans . ............ouuiiuniiiii i $285  $318
Deferred compensation................. ... ... . ... . . . ... 37 34
Minority interest . .......... ... 25 21
Other ... 70 72

Total other long-term liabilities ............................ $417  $445

17. Senior Convertible Debentures and Lines of Credit

Senior convertible debentures. On November 27, 2001, we completed a private offering of
$1.15 billion aggregate principal amount of three percent senior convertible debentures (the
“debentures”) due 2021 and generated net proceeds of $1.12 billion after deducting fees and
expenses. The debentures are convertible at any time into our common stock at an initial conversion
price of $32.22 per share, subject to adjustment (as defined in the related Indenture dated November
27, 2001). They are redeemable for cash at the company’s option beginning at any time on or after
December 6, 2004 at a price equal to 100 percent of the principal amount plus interest. Holders of
the debentures have the ability to require us to repurchase the debentures, in whole or in part, on
December 1 in each of 2006, 2011 and 2016. Holders also have the right to require us to repurchase
all or a portion of the outstanding debentures if the company undergoes a Fundamental Change (as
defined in the Indenture). The debentures bear interest at an annual rate of three percent, which is
payable on June 1 and December 1 of each year beginning June 1, 2002. The interest rate will reset
(as defined in the Indenture) in June 2006, June 2011 and June 2016, but in no event will it be reset
below three percent or above five percent per annum. To date there have been no adjustments to the
conversion price of the debentures.

Lines of credit. Effective November 1, 2002, we terminated our $250 million five-year
revolving credit facility that was due to expire on November 5, 2005 and did not extend the $250
million 364-day revolving credit facility that expired on November 1, 2002. There were no balances
outstanding under either facility at October 31, 2002.

18. Commitments

Operating lease commitments. We lease certain real and personal property from unrelated
third parties. Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases at October 31,
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2003 were $95 million for 2004, $82 million for 2005, $64 million for 2006, $49 million for 2007, $40
million for 2008 and $89 million thereafter. Certain leases require us to pay property taxes,
insurance and routine maintenance, and include escalation clauses. Rent expense was $126 million
in 2003, $177 million in 2002 and $100 million in 2001.

19. Contingencies

We are involved in lawsuits, claims, investigations and proceedings, including patent,
commercial and environmental matters that arise in the ordinary course of business. There are no
such matters pending that we expect to be material in relation to our business, consolidated
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

20. Segment Information

Description of segments. We are a diversified technology company that provides enabling
solutions to customers in markets within the communications, electronics, life sciences and chemical
analysis industries.

In 2003, we decided to separately report the automated test operating segment that was
previously reported as part of our test and measurement reportable segment. Management made this
decision to provide more information to our investors.

We organize our business operations into four major groups — test and measurement, automated
test, semiconductor products, and life sciences and chemical analysis — each of which comprises a
reportable segment. The segments were determined based primarily on how the chief operating
decision maker views and evaluates our operations. Other factors, including customer base,
homogeneity of products, technology and delivery channels, were also considered in determining our
reportable segments.

Our four reportable segments are as follows:

test and measurement business provides standard and customized solutions that are used in
the design, development, manufacture, installation, deployment and operation of electronic
equipment and systems and communications networks and services. The test and
measurement business includes two operating segments that have been aggregated based on
the similarity of the nature of their products and services, their production processes, their
class of customers, their distribution methods and their economic characteristics;

automated test business provides test system solutions that are used in the manufacture of
semiconductor devices and printed circuit assemblies. Our test solutions enable electronics
designers and manufacturers to reduce the design to production cycle, lower manufacturing
cost of test, confirm the functional quality of their devices and of their manufacturing
processes, and accelerate the high-volume delivery of their products;

semiconductor products business is a leading supplier of semiconductor components,
modules and assemblies for high performance communications systems. We design, develop
and manufacture products for the networking and personal systems markets; and

life sciences and chemical analysis business provides application-focused solutions that
include instruments, software, consumables and services that enable customers to identify,
quantify and analyze the physical and biological properties of substances and products.
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Segment revenue and profit. The accounting policies used to derive reportable segment
results are generally the same as those described in Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies.”

A significant portion of the segments’ expenses arise from shared services and infrastructure
that we have historically provided to the segments in order to realize economies of scale and to
efficiently use resources. These expenses, collectively called corporate charges, include costs of
centralized research and development, legal, accounting, employee benefits, real estate, insurance
services, information technology services, treasury and other corporate infrastructure expenses.

In 2003, we changed the methods by which corporate charges were allocated to the segments.
This change impacted the cost of goods and services, research and development and selling, general
and administrative expenses and (loss) income from operations recorded by each of the segments,
but did not impact our consolidated results from operations or cash flows. Information provided
with respect to prior periods has been reclassified to reflect these changes. Charges are allocated to
the segments and the allocations have been determined on a basis that we considered to be a
reasonable reflection of the utilization of services provided to or benefits received by the segments.

The following tables reflect the results of our reportable segments under our management
reporting system. These results are not necessarily a depiction that is in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the U.S. The performance of each segment is measured based on
several metrics, including (loss) income from operations. These results are used, in part, by the chief
operating decision maker in evaluating the performance of, and in allocating resources to, each of
the segments.

The profitability of each of the segments is measured after excluding goodwill, other intangible
amortization and restructuring and asset impairment charges.

Life
Sciences
and
Test and Automated Semiconductor Chemical Total
Measurement Test Products Analysis Segments
(in millions)
Year Ended October 31, 2003:
Total net revenue .................. $2,529 $ 755 $1,586 $1,186  $6,056
(Loss) income from operations ...... $ (315) $ (34 $ (59 $ 148 $ (260)
Year Ended October 31, 2002:
Total netrevenue .................. $2,612 $ 706 $1,559 $1,133  $6,010
(Loss) income from operations ...... $ (710) $ (70) $ (115) $ 140 $ (755)
Year Ended October 31, 2001:
Total netrevenue .................. $4,547 $ 885 $1,850 $1,114  $8,396
(Loss) income from operations ...... $ 52 $(128) $ (222) $ 92 $ (206)
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The following table reconciles segment results to Agilent’s total enterprise results from
continuing operations before taxes:

Years Ended October 31,

2003 2002 2001
(in millions)

Total reportable segments’ (loss) income from operations ................ $(260) $ (755) $(206)
Amortization of goodwill .. ... ... .. . . . ... — (326) (303)
Amortization and impairment of intangibles ............................ (65) (52) 41D
Restructuring and asset impairment ............ ... .. ... . . . . 372) 474) (154
Capitalized software write-off . . ....... ... ... ... ... .. .. ... ... ... — — (74)
Other asset impairment . .......... ... .. . . . .. 15 13 —
Retirement plans net curtailment and settlement (loss) gain .............. 5 19 —
Unallocated corporate chargesandother ............................... (28) 6 —
Other income (eXpense), Net . ...... ...ttt e e 5 60 301
Loss from continuing operations before taxes, as reported ............... $(690) $(1,547) $(477)
Depreciation and amortization expense:

Total reportable segments’ depreciation ..................cciuineoo... $311 $ 357 $ 380
Corporate amortization eXpense . ..............tiitiiirnnna.. 51 378 354
Total depreciation and amortization expense, as reported ................ $362 $ 735 $ 734

Magjor customers. No customer represented 10 percent or more of our total net revenue in
2003, 2002 or 2001.

During 2003, we changed the basis by which segment assets are measured and reported to the
chief operating decision maker whereby segment assets are now comprised of inventory, accounts
receivable, property, plant and equipment and gross goodwill and other intangibles. Unallocated
assets primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents, net deferred tax assets, accumulated
amortization of goodwill and other intangibles, investment in equity-method investees and other
assets. The following table reflects the updated measure of segment assets, capital expenditures and
equity method investments directly managed by each segment. All amounts have been reclassified to
conform to the current period presentation:

Life
Sciences
and
Test and Automated Semiconductor Chemical Total
Measurement Test Products Analysis Segments
(in millions)
As of October 31, 2003:
Assets ... $2,622 $638 $1,224 $547 $5,031
Capital expenditures .................. $ 85 $ 23 $ 70 $ 27 $ 205
Investment in equity-method investees ... $ 25 $ — $ 75 $ — $ 100
As of October 31, 2002:
Assets ... $2,903 $644 $1,354 $514 $5,415
Capital expenditures .................. $ 157 $ 38 $ 68 $ 38 $ 301
Investment in equity-method investees ... $ 32 $ — $ 73 $ — $ 105
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The following table reconciles segment assets to Agilent’s total assets:

October 31,
2003 2002
(in millions)
Total reportable segments’ assets ... ............ouuieeiininennnnn... $5,031 $5,415
Cash and cash equivalents ............ ... ... .. .. . i, 1,607 1,844
Net deferred tax assets .........c. i e 37 1,097
Other ..o (378) (153)
TOtal ASSELS . . .ottt et $6,297  $8,203
Geographic Information
United Rest of the
States Japan World Total

(in millions)

Net revenue (based on location of customer):

Year ended October 31,2003 ................. $2203 $ 657 $3,196 $6,056

Year ended October 31,2002 ................. $2,355 $ 597 $3,058 $6,010

Year ended October 31,2001 ................. $3,373  $1,083 $3,940 $8,396
Long-lived assets (all non-current assets):

October 31,2003 ..o $1,033 $ 495 $ 880  $2,408

October 31,2002 . ....... ... ... ... $1,250 $ 434 $1,639 $3,323

October 31,2001 ............ ... . .......... $1,796 $ 539 $ 852 $3,187
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(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended
January 31 April 30 July 31 October 31
(in millions, except per share data)

2003 @ @ 3 @
Netrevenue .............ouuuiueeinennn.. $ 1,412 $ 1,467 $ 1,502 $ 1,675
Cost of products and services and other . . .. 883 961 954 964
(Loss) income from operations ............ (256) (335) (190) 56
(Loss) income from continuing

operations ............... ... .. ... ..., (112) (146) (1,545) 13
Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS

No. 142 .. .. (257) — an —
Net (loss) income ........................ $ (369) $ (146) $ (1,556) $ 13
Net (loss) income per share — Basic and

Diluted:

Net (loss) income from continuing

operations ...............iiiiii... $ 0.2 $ 0.3 $ (3.25) $ 0.03

Cumulative effect of adopting SFAS

No. 142 .. ... (0.54) — (0.03) —

Net (loss)income ...................... $ 0.78) $ 0.3 $ (3.28) $ 0.03
Weighted average shares used in computing

net (loss) income per share:

Basic........ .. . i 471 471 475 476

Diluted .......... ... ... i 471 471 475 481
Range of stock prices on NYSE ............ $13.19-20.30 $11.30-16.82 $15.48-22.64 $20.31-26.48
2002 ®) (D) Q) ®
Netrevenue . .......oouiiiiinennnenn.. $ 1,426 $ 1,457 $ 1,391 $ 1,736
Cost of products and services and other . . .. 920 894 897 1,164
Loss from operations .................... (442) (349) (429) (387)
Loss from continuing operations .......... 317) (247) (223) (235)
Gain (loss) from sale of discontinued

operations, net of taxes ................ 2 (6) (5) @)
Netloss ..o $ (315) $ (253) $ (228) $ (236)
Net loss per share — Basic and Diluted:

Net loss from continuing operations .. ... $ (0.68) $ (0.54) $ (0.48) $ (0.51)

Loss from sale of discontinued

operations, net of taxes .............. — (0.0 (0.0D) —

Netloss .....coiiiii .. $ (0.68) $ (0.55) $ 0.49) $ (0.51)
Weighted average shares used in computing

net loss per share:

Basic and Diluted ..................... 463 464 466 467
Range of stock prices on NYSE ............ $22.06-33.30 $24.83-38.00 $16.00-31.25 $10.50-18.88
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Includes pre-tax restructuring and asset impairment charges of $42 million primarily relating to
severance expenses.

Includes pre-tax restructuring and asset impairment charges of $131 million primarily relating
to severance expenses.

Includes pre-tax restructuring and asset impairment charges of $141 million primarily relating
to severance expenses and a non-cash charge to establish a tax valuation allowance of $1.4
billion.

Includes pre-tax restructuring and asset impairment charges of $58 million primarily relating to
severance expenses.

Includes pre-tax restructuring and asset impairment charges of $105 million primarily relating
to severance expenses.

Includes pre-tax restructuring and asset impairment charges of $35 million primarily relating to
severance expenses.

Includes pre-tax restructuring and asset impairment charges of $78 million primarily relating to
severance expenses.

Includes pre-tax restructuring charges of $133 million primarily relating to severance expenses
and pre-tax asset impairment charges of $123 million.
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- Agilent Technologies

DIRECTIONS TO THE SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO
CONFERENCE CENTER

From the South (San Jose)

Take Highway 101 North to the South Airport Boulevard exit
(which is two miles north of the San Francisco International
Airport). At the first stop light, drive straight across the
intersection and directly into the Holiday Inn parking lot.
The South San Francisco Conference Center is on the left.

From the North (San Francisco)

Take Highway 101 South to the South Airport Boulevard exit
in South San Francisco. Stay to the right and turn east under
the freeway overpass. Make a right at the Hungry Hunter
Restaurant, onto South Airport Boulevard. The South San
Francisco Conference Center is located on the left between
the Ramada Inn and the Holiday Inn.

Parking

The South San Francisco Conference Center has an agreement
to share parking with both neighboring hotels — the Holiday Inn
to the south and the Ramada Inn to the north. Additional
parking is available diagonally across the street in the lot
between the Travelodge and the Best Western Grosvenor Hotel.
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